Public Document Pack

Barbican Residential Committee

Date: THURSDAY, 31 JANUARY 2019

Time: 3.45 pm

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 3

Members: Michael Hudson (Chairman)* Barbara Newman
Rehana Ameer* Graham Packham*
Randall Anderson Susan Pearson*
Chris Boden* William Pimlott
Mark Bostock Stephen Quilter
Deputy David Bradshaw Deputy John Tomlinson
Mary Durcan James Tumbridge*
Jeremy Mayhew* Mark Wheatley*

Deputy Joyce Nash

*non-resident Members

Enquiries:  Julie Mayer - tel.no.: 020 7332 1410
Julie.Mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk

John Barradell
Town Clerk and Chief Executive




AGENDA

APOLOGIES

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

To approve:

1. The public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 4t June 2018.
2. The public minutes of the special meeting held on 21st June 2018.

MINUTES OF INQUORATE MEETINGS

To approve the inquorate minutes of the meetings held on:

1. 17t September 2018
2. 10" December 2018

ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING

Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.

CHARGING POLICY FOR CAR PARKING AND STORES

Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.

REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN
Report of the Town Clerk.

For Decision
(Pages 1 - 14)

For Decision
(Pages 15 - 28)

For Decision
(Pages 29 - 112)

For Decision
(Pages 113 - 130)

For Information
(Pages 131 - 132)

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION — That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) on the grounds that they
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of the
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

For Decision
NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

To approve the non-public minutes of the meeting held 4" June 2018.

For Decision
(Pages 133 - 134)

MINUTES OF THE CAR PARK CHARGES WORKING PARTY

To receive the draft minutes of the Car Park Charges Working Party meetings held
on:

1. 11t June 2018
2. 23 Qctober 2018

For Information
(Pages 135 - 142)

ENFORCEMENT ACTION

Report of the Comptroller and City Solicitor and Director of Community and Children’s
Services. TO FOLLOW

For Decision
REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN

Report of the Town Clerk.

For Information
(Pages 143 - 146)

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND
WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

BARBICAN RESIDENTIAL COMMITTEE
Monday, 4 June 2018

Minutes of the meeting of the Barbican Residential Committee held at Guildhall
on Monday, 4 June 2018 at 1.45 pm

Present

Members:

Randall Anderson
Matthew Bell*

Chris Boden*

Mark Bostock

Deputy David Bradshaw
Mary Durcan

Ann Holmes*

Michael Hudson*
Jeremy Mayhew*
Deputy Joyce Nash (in the Chair until item 6)
Barbara Newman
Susan Pearson*
William Pimlott

Stephen Quilter

Deputy John Tomlinson

*non-resident members

Officers:
Mark Jarvis

Michael Bradley
Alan Bennetts
Chandni Tanna
Helen Davinson
Michael Bennett
Mike Saunders
Anne Mason
Paul Murtagh
Julie Mayer

1.  APOLOGIES

Chamberlains

City Surveyor's Department
Comptroller and City Solicitor's
Communications

Community and Children’s Services
Community and Children’s Services
Community and Children’s Services
Community and Children’s Services
Community and Children’s Services
Town Clerk's Department

Apologies were received from Graham Packham and Rehana Ameer.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN

RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

The Town Clerk reminded those Members who had been granted
dispensations to speak at today’s meeting, as follows:

Page 1



Mark Bostock Granted (speaking 18/05/18 A dispensation be granted to

rights only) — speak only on Ben Jonson,
(Standards Breton, Thomas More,
Committee) Benyon and Willoughby
Houses, Barbican residential
**under delegated car park and stores* at the
authority (SO 41(b)) Barbican Residential
Committee on 4 June 2018.
Deputy John Tomlinson Granted (speaking A dispensation be granted to
rights only) 18/05/18 speak only at Barbican
(Standards Residential Committee on 4
Committee) June 2018 on car park

charges and stores.

Deputy David Bradshaw | Granted (speaking 18/05/18 A dispensation be granted to

rights only until 4 speak only on Baggage

June 18) (Standards stores in the Barbican at the

Committee) Barbican Residential

Committee on 4 June 2018.

William Pimlott Granted (Standards | 31/5/18 A dispensation be granted to

Committee under speak only on Ben Jonson,

delegated authority Breton, Thomas More,

(SO 41(b)) Benyon and Willoughby

Houses, Barbican residential
car park and stores at the
Barbican Residential
Committee on 4 June 2018.

Mary Durcan Granted (Standards | 31/5/18 A dispensation be granted to
Committee under speak only on Ben Jonson,
delegated authority Breton, Thomas More,

(SO 41(b)) Benyon and Willoughby

Houses, Barbican residential
car park and stores at the
Barbican Residential
Committee on 4 June 2018.

Mrs Newman and Mrs Nash, both resident members, had been advised not to
apply for dispensations, in respect of car park charges, as they were not car
owners and had no intention of becoming one in the future.

Members were also reminded of the importance of submitting timely
applications, which were neither too wide nor vague, and the Chairman
suggested that Members work together, across the two wards, to ensure
consistent applications, which were more likely to be granted. A Member, who
is also a Member of the Standards Committee, suggested that the bureaucracy
could be simpler and the timespan between Members receiving reports and the
date of the Committee could be unhelpful. He had raised this matter with the
Chairman of the Standards Committee and, in the interim, Members were
advised to speak to the Monitoring Officer if they were unclear.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED, that - the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting
held on 19t March 2018 be approved.

ORDER OF THE COURT

Page 2




Members received the Order of the Court of Common Council dated 19 April
2018.

RESOLVED, that — the order of the Court dated 19 April 2018 be approved.

TO ELECT A CHAIRMAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH STANDING ORDER 29
The Committee elected a Chairman in accordance with Standing Order 29.

RESOLVED, That — being the only Member willing to serve, Mr Michael
Hudson be elected as Chairman of the Barbican Residential Committee for
2018/19.

It was moved by Deputy Joyce Nash, seconded by Randall Anderson and
RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY, that -

Members of the Barbican Residential Committee wish to place on record their
sincere appreciation to ANN HOLMES for her committed, enthusiastic and
good-humoured way she has chaired their Committee since 2016.

Under Ann’s Chairmanship, the residents’ working party network has
strengthened to include a new Electric Vehicle Charging Working Party,
including a successful launch event in May and a Car Park Charges Working
Party.

In order to improve both the quality of life and safety of residents; Ann’s
Chairmanship has overseen a new Fire Safety Policy, following the tragic
Grenfell Fire in June 2017 and new access arrangements for emergency
services entering the Estate. Concrete testing and surveys to the tower and
terrace blocks have completed, along with repairs to roofs and guttering, and
an historic issue in respect of roof warranties is close to resolution. A new
Lease Enforcement Policy is in place which, as a result of Ann’s commitment to
thorough consultation, aims to deliver a fair but flexible approach to an emotive
and complex matter.

Looking to the future, and from a corporate perspective; the Committee is
currently deliberating options to achieve additional car park/storage income for
2018/19, as part the City Corporation’s service-based review targets. This has
been another highly emotive and contentious area of Policy and, again, Ann
has worked diligently with officers and the Car Park Charges Working Party, to
ensure a measured and fair outcome.

Finally, the Committee wishes to place on record its recognition of Ann’s
dedication to the Barbican Residential Committee and the Estate’s residents,
along with her exemplary work ethic and affable nature. Her colleagues would
like to convey their gratitude and best wishes for the future.

TO ELECT A DEPUTY CHAIRMAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH STANDING
ORDER 30

The Committee elected a Deputy Chairman in accordance with Standing Order
30.

Page 3



RESOLVED, That — being the only Member willing to serve, Ms Susan Pearson
be elected as Deputy Chairman of the Barbican Residential Committee for
2018/19.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BARBICAN RESIDENTS
CONSULTATION COMMITTEE (BRCC)

Members received the draft minutes of the Barbican Residents Consultation
Committee of 21 May 2018.

CAR PARK CHARGING POLICY

Members considered a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services in respect of car park charges and stores on the Barbican Estate.
Members noted that there had been extensive communications from residents
in this matter, including an alternative proposal from one of the House Groups,
which had been supported by the RCC when it met on 21st May. Since the
meeting of the RCC, the City Solicitor had provided legal responses to some of
the questions raised at the RCC’s meeting on 21st May and these had been
circulated to RCC and BRC Members ahead of that day’s meeting.

The Chairman opened the debate by asking Members as to whether or not they
wanted to consider car park and storage either together, or as separate items,
and the consensus was for them to be taken together.

During the discussion and debate the following points were noted and each
Member, who had been granted a dispensation, was given the opportunity to
speak:

1. Should the proposal before Members not go ahead, could Members take
a decision in respect of the bigger stores, and some increase in respect of
car park charges, to residents only, although by a lesser amount than that
suggested in the report?

2.  Could the Car Park Charges Working Party undertake a new study,
including the proposals put forward by the RCC House Groups?

3. Could there be a longer-term approach, with a quick fix on short term
problems, to assist those in small flats who are in need of storage?

4. The proposal appears to lack a consolidated financial analysis and might
need more work; it was suggested that a 15% drop in demand might be
underestimated.

5.  Could the proposal be more creative, without the need for a large
increase? Gradual increases are always more acceptable and Concierge
allocation and stores need a more holistic approach.

6. If non-residents use baggage stores they would not have an assa key

which would access private residential areas of the Estate. Officers
advised access arrangements would be via a dual lock system; one would

Page 4



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

be kept by the Concierge and one by the non-resident, as agreed by the
Police and the Barbican Association Security Committee. Could charging
for key porters be introduced?

Residents of the City are entitled to a considerable discount in City car
parks and there was a concern about assumed elasticity of demand.

There should have been an Equalities Impact Assessment with the report
and Members expressed concern for those residents with mobility issues
who need to park their cars close to where they live. Could a reduced
amount be introduced for residents with a disability?

The RCC had rejected the report before the BRC but there had been
unanimous support for the Lauderdale Tower House Group proposal.
House Groups had clearly given serious thought to producing logical
arguments for scrutiny at the RCC.

There were concerns about the accuracy of data in respect of the number
of car parks and vacancies. Whilst Members accepted that the car park
deficit could not be sustained, they had concerns that commercial costs
appeared to have been applied to a residential area.

The Girls School proposal and Culture Mile would impact on car parking
spaces.

BRC Members would have liked more time to consider the extensive
number of emails from residents over the previous week.

If the Stores application to the Planning and Transportation Committee
had not been delayed, there would be a different set of figures before
Members.

The Deputy Chairman is a resident of Golden Lane and paid more for car
parking than Barbican residents.

Some Members spoke in support of the report and Officers responded, as
follows:

There is a need to look at reapportioning service charges and, whilst not
affecting the basis of this report, car park users effectively pay for the
parking of other residents’ visitors and contractors.

This report is based on the views of a Member/Officer Working Party, on
which Members were in a majority. It was established a year ago as the
BRC had no charging policy and needed one, and the remit of the
Working Party was to look for a fair return for car parking and storage.

It is commonly accepted that a fair return is based on market values - the
basis by which City Corporation rents are set. The City Corporation can

Page 5



choose not to go to the maximum suggested by market valuations; as set
out in the proposal before Members.

18. The only leaseholders with any entitlement to a parking or storage space
in the car parks are those who have bought a lease on one. Other
residents had no entitlement to the use of these spaces.

19. Policy and Resources Committee and the Court of Common Council can
intervene in decisions which impact on a Committee’s ability to balance its
budget. If a facility fails to return a fair rent then it is possible that other
uses could be found.

20. The City is densely occupied and has a very limited amount of land. As
we move towards a City community, which is a mix of business, cultural
and residential uses, is it prudent to leave tracts of land either underused
or undercosted?

21. In response, the resident Members stressed that, notwithstanding their
duty to the City and the Committee’s role as a Landlord, they were also
here to represent their constituents. Given that such a high number of
residents are unhappy, then the Committee should consider an
alternative.

22. Officers confirmed that the current stores Charging Policy expired in
March 2018 and the current car parking Charging Policy expires in
September 2018. Officers also confirmed that stores and car parking
licence holders require three months notification to take effect and that
this would have to be completed by 23 June to effect an increase for the
September quarter.

23. The signing of the contract for the new stores has been delayed and if this
is not done shortly then the works would have to be re-tendered.

It was then Proposed by Jeremy Mayhew, seconded by Matthew Bell and
RESOLVED, that -

The Working Party convene a further meeting to consider the matter further and
a Special Meeting of the BRC be convened, on the morning of Court, 21 June
2018 to take a decision.

FIRE SAFETY UPDATE

Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services in respect of the work done on potential improvements to enhance the
safety of the City of London Corporation’s (CoLC’s) Barbican Residential Estate
and its residents in the event of fire.

When the report was considered by the Community and Children’s Services
Committee, Members were asked to consider the strategic direction the CoLC
should take in its future approach to fire safety. Pending the decision taken at
the meeting of the Community and Children’s Services, Members noted that

Page 6



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

there had been an expectation that the recommendations from Dame Judith
Hackett’s report would be different. The Assistant Director further explained
that, since the cladding at Grenfell Tower had been unfit for purpose, there was
no longer a retrospective requirement to fit sprinklers to Tower Blocks.

Members noted that fire testing of doors had taken place the previous
Saturday, attended by some Members and officers, including RCC Members,
and the Assistant Director advised that the test had gone well, with a
combustion point of 36 minutes. Members also noted that the Fire Risk
Assessments had not raised significant concerns on compartmentation.

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

UPDATE REPORT

Members received the Update report of the Direct of Community and Children’s
Services. In respect of a query about the cost of the retrofitting of assa keys for
Blake Towers, officers agreed to provide the cost of key fobs under the ‘You
Said; We Did' outstanding actions report at the next meeting.

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS QUARTERLY REVIEW
Members received the quarterly Service Level Agreement report of the Director
of Community and Children’s Services.

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

PROGRESS OF SALES AND LETTINGS
Members received the regular update on sales and lettings approved by
officers, under delegated authority, since the last meeting of the Committee.

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE

A Member asked about the apparent increase in the theft of plants from
Thomas More Garden, the Wildlife Garden and the residents’ planter boxes on
the highwalks. This had been upsetting for those residents, and those who
enjoy the gardens, as well as disheartening for the gardening staff and
volunteers. Furthermore, there would be cost implications to both residents
and the BEO. The Members also asked if any action could be taken; i.e.
notices or CCTV? The Chairman of the BA Security Committee; also a
Member of this Committee, agreed to add this matter to the agenda for their
next meeting.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
There was none.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

Page 7



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

In respect of item 18 on today’s agenda; i.e. 18 Brandon Mews, Members were
reminded that the report was exempt under the 1972 Local Government Act as
it contained information that could identify an individual and was commercially
sensitive. Therefore, the Members of the public attending today’s meeting
would be required to leave for this item.

RESOLVED, that — Under Section 100 (a) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items, on the grounds
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1
of Schedule 12 A of the Local Government Act.

Item No Para No
18, 19 1,2&3

At 3.40 pm, Members resolved to suspend Standing Order to complete the
business on the agenda.

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES
RESOLVED, that — the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 19" March
2018 be approved.

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CAR PARK CHARGES WORKING PARTY
The draft minutes of the Car Park Charging Working Party were received.

BRANDON MEWS LEASE VARIATION
Members considered and approved a report of the Director of Community and
Children’s Services.

ARREARS UPDATE
Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services.

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF
THE COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no items.

The meeting ended at 3.55 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Julie Mayer
tel.no.: 020 7332 1410
Julie.Mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 8



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BARBICAN RESIDENTIAL COMMITTEE (BRC)
Thursday, 21 June 2018

Minutes of the meeting held at Guildhall at 9.30 am
Present

Members:

Michael Hudson (Chairman) *
Rehana Ameer*

Randall Anderson
Matthew Bell*

Mark Bostock

Deputy David Bradshaw
Mary Durcan

Jeremy Mayhew*
Deputy Joyce Nash
Barbara Newman*
Graham Packham*
William Pimlott

Deputy John Tomlinson

*indicates non-resident Member

In attendance

Ann Holmes — immediate past Chairman of the Barbican Residential Committee

Officers:
Paul Murtagh - Assistant Director, Barbican and Property Services, Community
and Children’s Services
- Community and Children’s Services
- Community and Children’s Services
- Community and Children’s Services
Alan Bennetts - Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department
Michael Bradley - City Surveyor's Department
Anne Mason - Community and Children’s Services
Mark Jarvis - Head of Finance - Citizen Services, Chamberlains
- Comptroller and City Solicitor’s
Julie Mayer - Town Clerk's Department

1.  APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from Chris Boden, Susan Pearson (Deputy Chairman)
and Stephen Quilter.

Members noted that the Deputy Chairman had broken her arm following a
recent fall and wished her a speedy recovery.

Page 9



MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

The Town Clerk advised that, of those Members who had applied for
dispensations, only Mr Mark Bostock and Mr William Pimlott had been granted
dispensations to speak but not to vote on the Car Park Charges and Storage
Report (at item 3 on this agenda).

The Chairman had agreed that those Members, who had not been granted
dispensations, could email their comments to BRC Members and they had also
been tabled. Members expressed their frustration at being refused
dispensations to speak at this Special Meeting of the BRC, particularly as they
had been granted for previous meetings. NB. This was discussed further
under ‘ltems of Urgent Business’ later on the agenda.

CAR PARK CHARGING AND STORAGE ON THE BARBICAN ESTATE
Members considered a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services in respect of a charging policy for car parking and storage. At the
meeting of the BRC on 4 June 2018, Members agreed that the Car Park
Charges Working Party should convene a further meeting to consider the
representations from Members, residents and officers. The Working Party met
on 11" June 2018 and the report before Members today comprised an
overview of its considerations and recommendations.

Following the discussion and questions, the Chairman advised that many of the
points raised had been addressed at the Working Party. Furthermore, three of
the recommendations in the report; covering an Equalities Impact Assessment,
short-term parking by visitors, tradesmen and ‘others’, free parking periods and
the provision of concierge and related services had been referred to the
Working Party for further consideration, before coming back to the BRC for
decision.

The following points were also noted.

1. The CPI rate had changed since the report was first drafted but it was
not relevant to this decision.

2. There was a general consensus that there should be no cross subsidy.

3. The request for a charging policy for all land on the Barbican Estate was
referred to officers.

4. A resident member stressed the difficulties experienced by visiting
tradesmen, who were not able to park on the street or on driveways.
However, it was noted that, if tradesmen were able to park on the street,
they would need to pay parking fees. Members agreed that this matter
required further consideration to ensure a fair policy, which was neither
too complex nor expensive to administer. It was also suggested that, as
all residents had visiting tradesmen, it might be fair to transfer this to
service charges. The height restriction on garages was also an issue, as

Page 10



this forced some tradesmen to park in front of Lauderdale or Cromwell
Towers, without paying.

There was a general consensus that more work was required in respect
of residents who owned their car parking spaces, concierge charges,
CCTV and security. Members noted that the Management Plan (as
required by the planning permission) would include details of additional
security including dual lock systems for the new stores and CCTV.

A resident Member related an incident from 2014 whereby a car park
roof collapsed on a vehicle and challenged whether the charges should
increase above inflation.

Given that elasticity of demand cannot be measured, the phased
increases over 3 years; i.e. £1340; £1420 and £1500 would be
reviewed after one year, to see if there was a significant drop in demand.

Members were reminded that the BRC was a Landlord and not a Social
Housing Committee.

In respect of the new stores, Members noted that the planning
permission required a management plan before they could be
constructed. Also, under the planning conditions, the stores could not be
let to non-residents until 6 months after they had first been let to
residents. Depending on take up by residents, the BRC would be asked
to take a decision as to whether or not to let to non-residents. Members
were reminded that a decision was required today, to enable
construction to begin and for the first stores to be let by the end of the
year, in order to receive income within the current financial year.

10.Disabled or ‘similar’ would include the infirm, elderly and carers and an

11.

Equalites Impact Assessment of the Car Park Charging Policy would be
undertaken by the Working Party for approval by the BRC. Members
noted that 3 months’ notice was required to increase charges but none
was required to reduce them or make concessions.

Members referred to a 1957 report to the Court of Common Council in
respect of providing amenities to the Barbican Estate; ‘even if this meant
foregoing a more remunerative return on the land ‘. It was suggested
that circumstances had changed in 61 years.

12.Trends for car usage across London continued to fall; the City car parks

were particularly underused and, therefore, any downward trend would
not just be from elasticity of demand.

13.Members noted that there were 2 resident Members on the Working

Party who were entitled to participate and make recommendations to the
BRC. There were also 2 non-resident Members and 2 officers; 6 was
considered an adequate membership for a Working Party looking at a
project of this scale.

Page 11



14.In drawing the debate to a close, the Chairman acknowledged that the
recommendations, as set out in the report, represented a compromise.
He thanked the Working Party, Residents and Members for their
constructive input in reaching this position and particularly commended
the work of the Lauderdale Tower House Group for presenting a viable
alternative set of proposals.

On putting the recommendations to the vote, the following final points were
raised:

e Members noted that the rent for stores within the Barbican Buildings
(£27.50 per square foot) had been £40 but the Working Party had
reduced this following further comparisons with storage space in London
Wall buildings, which were dry and lit. It was proposed by Jeremy
Mayhew, seconded by Matthew Bell and carried that the charge for
internal stores be £25.00 per sq ft and not £27.50, thereby representing
a 25% increase and not 37%.

e |t was proposed by Michael Hudson, Seconded by Matthew Bell and
carried that the charge for non-resident users be £40.00, including VAT.

RESOLVED, that:

1.

The Barbican car park charge, per parking space and for the ensuing year,
be increased to £1,340 per annum, subject to a review in one year.

Officers be instructed to carry out an Equalities Impact Assessment and
report back to the Working Party, so that recommendations as to whether a
reduced charge should apply to disabled or similar users and, if so, what the
reduction should be.

Officers be asked to consider whether the provision of free short-term
parking by visitors, tradesmen and others, could, and if so should, be
allocated to the service charge account, and whether the free period of
parking should be altered, and report to a future meeting of the Working
Party.

Officers be asked to consider how an adjustment can be made, consistent
with complying with the lessor’s obligations and service charge provisions
within the leases, in the way concierge and related services are provided
and charged, and to make recommendations to the Working Party to
consider, prior to it making recommendations to the BRC.

The rents for stores within Barbican buildings (that is, stores not constructed
in the car parks) be increased to £25.00 per square foot, per annum (which
are all classed as small/standard stores) and be subject to review after one
year.

Page 12



6. The rents of all existing stores within the car parks be increased to £20.00
per square foot per annum.

7. The increase of rents for existing stores in the car parks, currently let to
existing users, be phased in over over a three-year period and that they be
let at £14.00 per square foot, per annum for the ensuing year.

8. Rents for the new stores, to be constructed in the car parks, be charged at
£20.00 per square foot, per annum and subject to review after one year.

9. Agree the lettings policy for the new stores in the car parks in order that:

a) stores be first offered to Barbican residents and not offered to non-
Barbican residents, for at least 6 months after the first letting of a new
store;

b) the minimum Barbican resident use of the new stores be set at 90 per
cent (subject to review and depending on the take up of the new stores);

c) non-resident users be restricted to City residents whose home is not
more than one half mile from the entrance to the car parks containing the
store such residents would use;

d) the minimum rent to be charged to non-resident users be set at £40.00,
including VAT, per square foot per annum, subject to review;

e) officers be instructed to finalise the management plan and submit it to
the planning authority for approval.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
Resident Members of the BRC, who had not been granted dispensations,
expressed their disappointment at having been granted them for previous BRC
meetings. Furthermore, they had not been given an explanation as to why they
had been refused this time. Whilst accepting that they might not be able to
vote, resident and non-resident Members agreed that the Cripplegate and
Aldersgate Ward Members should be allowed to represent the views of their
constituents. Members were reminded that all meetings of the Standards and
Dispensations Sub Committees were held in public and encouraged to attend if
their dispensations were being heard.

The Chairman, also a Member of the Standards Committee, advised that Co-
opted Standards Committee Members had raised this issue and the Standards
Committee had taken a Resolution to Policy and Resources Committee in
respect of the BRC’s governance arrangements. The matter was also the
subject of a question to the Court of Common Council later today.

Page 13



Members noted that the BRC was carrying 5 non-resident vacancies, which
compounded its’ governance issues. In the event of today’s Court question not
answering the above points, it was Proposed by Jeremy Mayhew, Seconded by
David Bradshaw and RESOLVED, that:

The Standards Committee be asked to justify why Members of the BRC
had been refused dispensations to speak at today’s meeting, given that
they had been granted for previous meetings.

The meeting ended at 10.45 am

Chairman

Contact Officer: Julie Mayer
tel.no.: 020 7332 1410
Julie.Mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 14



Agenda Item 4

BARBICAN RESIDENTIAL COMMITTEE
Monday, 17 September 2018

Minutes of an INQUORATE meeting of the Barbican Residential Committee
held at 2.30 pm at Guildhall

At 2.30 pm the Chairman proposed and Members agreed to adjourn the start of the
formal Committee meeting in order to continue the informal meeting of the BRC,
which had commenced at 1.45 pm. The meeting of the BRC re-commenced at 3.15
pm.

Present

Members:

Michael Hudson (Chairman)
Susan Pearson (Deputy Chairman)
Rehana Ameer

Randall Anderson

Mark Bostock

Deputy David Bradshaw
Mary Durcan

Barbara Newman

William Pimlott

Stephen Quilter

Deputy John Tomlinson

Officers:

Alan Bennetts - Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department

Helen Davinson - Community and Children’s Services

Mark Jarvis - Head of Finance - Citizen Services, Chamberlains

Anne Mason - Community and Children’s Services

Julie Mayer - Town Clerk's Department

Paul Murtagh - Assistant Director, Barbican and Property Services,
Community and Children’s Services

Mike Saunders - Community and Children’s Services

1.  APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from Matthew Bell, Chris Boden, Jeremy Mayhew,
Deputy Joyce Nash and Graham Packham.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
The following Members, who are Barbican Residents, had received
dispensations to speak but not vote on Agenda item 5 (Housing Governance
Review):

Randall Anderson

Page 15



David Bradshaw

Mary Durcan

Deputy John Tomlinson
Mark Bostock

William Pimlott

MINUTES

RESOLVED, that - the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting
of the Barbican Residential Committee (BRC) on 4™ June and the minutes of
the Special Meeting of the BRC on 215t June 2018 be approved.

MINUTES OF THE BARBICAN ESTATE RESIDENTS CONSULTATION
COMMITTEE (RCC)

RESOLVED, that — the draft minutes of the meeting of the Barbican Residents’
Consultation Committee (RCC) of 10" September 2018 be received.

HOUSING GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Members considered a report of the Town Clerk in respect of a review of
Housing Governance at the City of London Corporation. Members had debated
this matter at length at an informal meeting directly before this inquorate and
agreed that - the existing Barbican Residential Committee be retained as a
standalone Grand Committee, reducing the number of resident Members to six,
two from Aldersgate and two from each side of Cripplegate, retaining the
number of non-residents at 11.

Note: the view to retain the BRC was unanimous: reduction of the number of
resident Member numbers was a small minority view

As this meeting was inquorate, this decision would be taken by the Town Clerk,
in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Barbican
Residential Committee, under Urgency Provision.

BARBICAN ESTATE 50TH ANNIVERSARY CELEBRATIONS 2019

Members considered a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services in respect of the Barbican 50 Commemorations in 2019. Members
had received the draft minutes of the previous week’'s RCC meeting, where
residents had raised strong objection to this event being service chargeable.
There was also a challenge as to whether a lease could be invoked to include a
‘celebration’ in service charge accounts.

The Chairman suggested a couple of options; i.e. a speaker at the Committee
Dinner on the Estate’s Architecture; Open Gardens in June and Open House in
September, within existing Committee budgets. Members noted that that
Hospitality Working Party, chaired by the Chief Commoner (in attendance at
this meeting) received nominations for events and all Members could attend the
public session of the meeting.

A Member had written to the Chairman of Policy in support of the City

celebrating the Barbican Estate and the Chairman (of the BRC) agreed to add
this to a formal request to the Chairman of the Hospitality Working Party. The

Page 16



10.

BRC Members were also encouraged to make individual representations. The
Chief Commoner advised the meeting that the HWP had a budget and
employed consultants to market the events.

RESOLVED, that - given the outcome of consultation with RCC and the
comments at this meeting, the above options for a 50th Anniversary
Celebration of the Barbican Estate be explored.

FIRE SAFETY UPDATE

Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services in respect of progress made to date in relation to fire safety matters
since the last update report in March 2018.

In response to a question about Counsel’s opinion, Members noted that a
number of London Councils have decided to recharge leaseholders for works
such as sprinklers and fire doors and deal with any subsequent challenges
through the legal channels. The City Corporation would not be taking this action
but, officers continued to monitor the actions of neighbouring Boroughs would
advise Members on the outcome of any challenges. Members noted that the
Director had given assurance that resources for fire safety would remain a
priority. In concluding, the Chairman and Members thanked the Assistant
Director (Barbican and Property Services) and his team for their hard work in
protecting residents’ safety.

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

RESIDENTS SURVEY
Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services in respect of this year’'s Resident Survey.

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

2017/18 REVENUE OUTTURN (EXCLUDING THE RESIDENTIAL SERVICE
CHARGE ACCOUNT)

Members received a joint report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services and the Chamberlain in respect of the 2017/18 Revenue Outturn
(excluding the Residential Service Charge)

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

2017/18 REVENUE OUTTURN FOR THE DWELLINGS SERVICE CHARGE
ACCOUNT

Members received a joint report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services and the Chamberlain in respect of the 2017/18 Revenue Outturn for
the Dwellings Service Charge. Members had been given an opportunity to
discuss the report during the informal meeting directly before this inquorate
meeting.

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

Page 17



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

UPDATE REPORT

Members received an update report of the Director of Community and
Children’s Services. Members noted a recent meeting in respect of the
handover of Blake Tower in September 2019, which sought a smooth
handover. The Lease Enforcement Policy had also been implemented and
Members would receive an update at the next meeting of the BRC.

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS QUARTERLY REVIEW

Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services which provided information on the implementation of Service Level
Agreements (SLAs) and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for the quarter April
to June 2018.

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

PROGRESS OF SALES AND LETTINGS

Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services in respect of sales and lettings, approved by officers under delegated
authority, since the last meeting of the Committee.

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

BARBICAN ARREARS

Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s
Services in respect of tenant and leaseholder arrears. Members noted a more
detailed appendix in the non-public part of the agenda and commended officers
on the collection rates.

RESOLVED, that — the report be noted.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE
There were no questions

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
There were no items.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part | of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Item no’s Paragraph No
18-19 1and 2

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

Page 18



RESOLVED, that - the non-public minutes of the meeting of the Barbican
Residential Committee (BRC) on 4th June be approved.

19. BARBICAN ARREARS - APPENDIX
Members received the appendix in respect of agenda item 14.

20. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF
THE COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

21. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED
There were no items

The meeting ended at 3.35 pm.

Chairman

Contact Officer: Julie Mayer
tel.no.: 020 7332 1410
Julie.Mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



BARBICAN RESIDENTIAL COMMITTEE
Monday, 10 December 2018

Notes from an INQUORATE meeting of the Barbican Residential Committee
(BRC) held at 11 am at Guildhall

At 11 am the Chairman proposed, and Members agreed, to open the inquorate
meeting and, after agenda item 4, to adjourn it in order to allow Members to have an
informal discussion in respect of the remaining agenda items.

The inquorate meeting of the BRC re-convened at 12.20 pm
Present

Members:

Michael Hudson (Chairman)
Susan Pearson (Deputy Chairman)
Randall Anderson

Deputy David Bradshaw

Mary Durcan

Jeremy Mayhew

Barbara Newman

Stephen Quilter

Officers:

Paul Murtagh - Community and Children’s Services

Michael Bennett - Community and Children’s Services

Alan Bennetts - Comptroller and City Solicitor’s
Department

Michael Bradley - City Surveyor's Department

Helen Davinson - Community and Children’s Services

Mark Jarvis - Chamberlains

Anne Mason - Community and Children’s Services

Julie Mayer - Town Clerk's Department

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from Rehana Ameer, Matthew Bell, Chris Boden,
Mark Bostock, Deputy Joyce Nash, Graham Packham, William Pimlott and
Deputy John Tomlinson.

Inquorate Meeting Procedure

The Town Clerk reminded Members that, as this was an inquorate meeting; i.e.
4 non-Barbican residents were not in attendance, the notes from this meeting
would be recorded, to be approved at the next quorate meeting, and no
decisions could be taken.

Page 21



The Chairman suggested, and Members agreed, that he would open the
inquorate meeting, in order to discuss agenda items 1-4, and then adjourn in
order to hold an informal discussion on the remaining agenda items. The
Chairman exercised his right to hold the informal discussion in public. The
Town Clerk advised that the agenda items for decision would need to be taken
under urgency; i.e. by the Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chairman and
Deputy Chairman of the Barbican Residential Committee (BRC).

The Deputy Chairman, Mrs Susan Pearson, advised that she would be
standing down as Deputy Chairman of the Committee, with immediate effect,
but would remain as a Member of the Committee. The Town Clerk advised
that, until such time as a Deputy Chairman could be elected, the urgent
decisions would be taken by the Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chairman
and most senior (non-resident) Member of the BRC.

The Town Clerk advised that it would be necessary to call a Special Meeting of
the BRC, in February 2019, in order to consider a report in respect of an
Electric Vehicle Policy, which could not wait until the next scheduled meeting in
March 2019. All Members would be canvassed as to a suitable date for this
meeting. The Chairman suggested that Members should also be canvassed on
those dates already set for 2019, in order to ensure a quorum for future
meetings. The Town Clerk advised that any decisions which were not urgent
could be considered by the full Committee in February, rather than under
Urgency Provision. The Chamberlain advised that the agenda items in respect
of the Revenue and Capital and Service Charge Budgets would need to be
taken by the end of the month.

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There was some discussion about the Motion put to the Court of Common
Council on 6" December 2018 in respect of dispensations. The Chairman
advised that he was in discussion, with the Chairman of the Standards
Committee, about the possibility of a standardised dispensation form for BRC
Members. Members noted that the Policy and Resources Committee would be
considering a report on Housing Governance at their meeting in January 2019.

A copy of the draft minutes of the RCC’s meeting on 3 December had been
emailed to BRC Members and copies had been laid around the table.
Members were asked to note, in particular, the comments in respect of items:

5 — Revenue and Capital Budget
6 — Service Charge Budget
8 — Charging Policy for Car Park and stores.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Town Clerk advised that the notes taken at this inquorate meeting would
need to be approved at a quorate meeting of the committee, along with the
minutes from the June 2018 BRC Meetings and the notes of the last inquorate
meeting in September 2018.

Page 22



Matters arising

The BRC Chairman had approached the Chairman of the Hospitality Working
Party in respect of the Barbican’s 50-Year Celebrations for an event next
Summer at the Museum of London and a photographic exhibition in the
Guildhall Yard.

BREXIT UPDATE

Members noted that this was a new standing item for all Service Committees.
The Assistant Director, Barbican and Property Services, would be assessing
the risk associated with those members of staff who might be affected by
‘settled status’. Members were asked to note that, whilst the City Corporation
had a very good understanding of the demographic of HRA Estates, this was
not possible for the Barbican. As Leaseholders, they were not obliged to give
City Corporation officers access to their properties and did not have to provide
personal information. However, they might be captured if they had tenants who
lost their ‘settled status’; although it was likely to be very few.

REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGETS - LATEST APPROVED BUDGET
2018/19 AND ORIGINAL 2019/20 (EXCLUDING DWELLINGS SERVICE
CHARGE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE)

Members noted the RCC’s comments on this report, as minuted in their
meeting of 39 December 2018. Members commended the work of the Barbican
Association’s Sub Groups, in respect of the stores and car parks, and noted
that a joint audit with officers was drawing to a close and an occupancy
schedule would be available shortly.

There was some discussion on the terminology in respect of ‘latest approved
budgets’ and Members were asked to note that the budget reports were being
approved ‘for submission’, with the final decision of approving the budgets
falling within the remit of the Resource Allocation Sub Committee.

Members noted that the decision on this report would need to be taken under
urgency. The Chairman and the Chairman of the Finance Committee (also a
Members of the BRC) suggested that, in the interest of good governance, the
Chamberlain, in_consultation with the Chairman of the BRC and Deputy
Chairman of the Finance Committee/Barbican Residential Committee (as
appropriate) be authorised to revise these budgets to allow for further
implications arising from departmental re-organisation and other reviews,
including corporate projects. Members agreed with this suggestion.

SERVICE CHARGE EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ACCOUNT - LATEST
APPROVED BUDGET 2018/19 AND ORIGINAL BUDGET 2019/20

As with item 5 above, Members noted that the decision on this report would
need to be taken under urgency. The Chairman of the BRC and the Chairman
of the Finance Committee (also a Members of the BRC) suggested that, in the
interest of good governance, the Chamberlain, in_consultation with the
Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Finance Committee/Barbican
Residential Committee (as appropriate) be authorised to revise these budgets
to allow for further implications arising from departmental re-organisation and

Page 23



26.

other reviews, including corporate projects. Members agreed with this
suggestion.

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE TO ROOFS/BALCONIES FOLLOWING
WATER PENETRATION: VERBAL UPDATE

Members noted the update provided at the RCC on 3 December 2018 as set
out in their draft minutes.

CHARGING POLICY FOR CAR PARKING AND STORES

Members noted that a decision on this report would need to be taken under
Urgency or wait until a Special Meeting of the BRC in February 2019. The draft
minutes from the RCC’s meeting in respect of paragraphs 21-29 in the report
were noted, along with an error in recommendation 3 which should read
‘available car parking spaces plus (Not less) those that are occupied ...." In
addition, the recommendation should be in respect of disabled_voters and not
residents.

The City Solicitor advised that Barbican Leases had been based on right to buy
Leases from the 1980s. Therefore, the Leases contained a lot of old fashioned
definitions and restrictions, which were difficult to ‘shoe horn’ into modern
practices, and there was no provision within them to allocate free parking to the
service charge payers.

The resident Members expressed strong views on the current provision of 5
hours free parking for visitors and trades, as there was no access to on or off-
street parking for Barbican residents and the City’s car parks could be very
expensive. Furthermore, the Barbican had a number of unoccupied parking
bays. Officers were not sure when the 5 free hours had come into force but
residents believed it to be part of their original leases, albeit without the charges
being specified. Members were reminded that Golden Lane had just 2 hours of
free parking. Offices also advised that the City recovered just half of the cost of
providing free parking.

Members noted that the recommendations in this report could be taken at a
Special Meeting, to be scheduled for February 2019. In respect of
commissioning an external consultant to verify the time recording for the Estate
Concierge, the RCC expressed a view that this might compromise the good
relationship between concierges and residents and therefore RCC Members
had agreed not to recommend the commissioning of an external report.

In the interim, as suggested by the Working Party, all leaseholders would be
balloted in respect of the Estate Concierge, parcel and key services and
allocations to the service charge, and reducing the 5 free hours parking to 2.
Officers agreed to consult the Car Park Charges Working Party in drafting a
letter introducing the ballot. Members noted from the RCC’s draft Minutes that
the residents had strongly resisted a reduction in the free period of visitor car
parking and it was an amenity which they valued.

Page 24



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

LANDLORD'S APPROVAL PROCESS - SIX-MONTH REVIEW
A report for information.

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS QUARTERLY REVIEW JULY -
SEPTEMBER 2018
A report for information.

PROGRESS OF SALES & LETTINGS
A report for information.

BARBICAN ARREARS

Members noted that items 12 and 13 in respect of residential and commercial
arrears (both for information) had non-public appendices and any discussion
thereon would need to be in the closed part of this inquorate meeting.

BARBICAN COMMERCIAL ARREARS
A report for information.

UPDATE REPORT

The Assistant Director, Barbican, Housing and Property Services, advised that
the next meeting of the RCC and BRC would receive a detailed report and
action plan in respect of fire safety and noted that the RCC had received an
update at its meeting on 3 December, as set out in the draft minutes.

ACTION TAKEN SINCE THE LAST MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE UNDER
URGENCY
This would need to be noted formally at a quorate meeting.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE
There were none.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
There were no items.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that — under Section 100 (a) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds
that they include the likely disclosure of exempt information, as defined in Part
1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act.

There were 9 non-public items and those for decision would be taken forward
under urgency.

Agenda items paragraph nos
20 - 22 3
23 -26 1,2&3

Page 25



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 4 June 2018 would need to be
approved at the next quorate meeting of the Committee.

MINUTES OF THE CAR PARK CHARGES WORKING PARTY
Members noted that the content of the Working Party Minutes were largely
reflected in the report at Agenda Item 8.

HOUSING AND BARBICAN RESPONSIVE REPAIRS, MAINTENANCE AND
VOIDS SERVICE
A report for information.

HOUSING MANAGEMENT SYSTEM UPGRADE
A report for information. Members noted that the next ‘gateway’ report would
have more up to date figures.

BARBICAN ARREARS
An appendix in respect of item 12.

BARBICAN COMMERCIAL ARREARS
An Appendix in respect of item 13.

LEASE RENEWAL
To be considered under urgency.

LEASE RENEWAL
Members suggested an amendment to the recommendations, before this
renewal went forward under urgency.

ACTION TAKEN SINCE THE LAST MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE UNDER
URGENCY
To be noted formally at the next quorate meeting.

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF
THE COMMITTEE
There were no questions

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no items.

The meeting ended at 1pm

Chairman

Page 26



Contact Officer: Julie Mayer
tel.no.: 020 7332 1410
Julie.Mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



Agenda Iltem 5

Committee(s) Dated:
Residential Consultation Committee — for information 28/01/2019
Barbican Residential Committee — for decision 31/01/2019
Subject: Public
Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure
Report of: For Decision
Director of Community and Children's Services
Report author:
Beth Humphrey — Low Emission Neighbourhood Project
Manager

Summary

In December 2016, a Working Party was established by the Barbican Residential
Committee to look to pilot the introduction of Electric Vehicle (EV) charging points
across the Barbican Estate.

In May 2018, 22 charging units were installed in five car parks on the Barbican Estate
providing a total capacity for 30 EV charging bays. A selection of charging units (3kW,
7kW, 22kW, dual, single, tethered and cable) were chosen and installed as part of the
trial to determine the best type of charger to meet Barbican Estate residents’
requirements.

15 participants took part in the 6- month pilot trial which concluded in November 2018.
Consultants were contracted to oversee the pilot and produce a report of the study
with recommendations for a working business model regarding cost and management
of the charging units, and for further roll-out of EV charging on the Barbican Estate
(Appendix 1).

The installation of the current electric vehicle charging units on the Barbican Estate,
the pilot study and associated costs has been funded by the Low Emission
Neighbourhood (LEN). However, this funding ceases in April 2019. Therefore, a
decision is required on the immediate and long-term proposals for management and
extension of EV charging on the Barbican Estate.

Recommendation(s)

The Residents Consultation Committee are asked to comment on and note the Electric
Vehicle Charging Infrastructure report.

The Barbican Residential Committee are asked to approve that:

e From 18t April EV charging point costs be covered by EV charging bay users.
Management of EV charging points and bay allocation to new users will follow
same method as during the pilot trial as outlined in the management plan in
paragraph 19 of this report.

Page 29



Officers continue to progress this project through the Working Party to install further
EV charging in Barbican Estate car parks in line with forecasts and
recommendations in the pilot study report and will report back to these committees
in one-years’ time as outlined in paragraph 20 of this report.

Main Report

Background

1.

In July 2016 the Mayor of London awarded the City of London Corporation
£990,000 over three years to implement a Low Emission Neighbourhood (LEN) in
the Barbican and Golden Lane area. The funding was designated to support a
range of focused pilot measures to improve air quality locally. The funding for LEN
projects ceases in end of the 2018/2019 financial year.

. A survey of Barbican Residents in 2014 revealed that 150 residents would consider

buying an EV with 22 actively wanting to. In the last 5 years, Barbican Estate
Officers have received a number of requests for charging points, indicating a high
level of demand.

Recognising the demand for EV charging units, a Working Party was set in up
December 2016 by the Barbican Residential Committee, to investigate EV
Charging options for the Barbican Estate.

To set a baseline for the pilot study of the charging infrastructure use, an additional
survey ran from January — May 2018. Of the 81 respondents, 12 (24%) already
owned a plug-in EV, with a further 51 (63%) of respondents considering purchasing
an EV.

The Working Party and LEN Project team identified five car parks as the most
suitable to pilot the introduction of charging points: Breton House, Bunyan Court,
Cromwell Tower (02 Level), Thomas More and Willoughby House (01 Level).

In early 2018, funded through the LEN, work was undertaken to upgrade the power
distribution in to these car parks to provide enough electrical supply for the
charging points.

In May 2018, a total of 22 EV charging units were installed in the five carparks.
Due to the ‘dual charging’ nature of some of the units, this provided 30 car parking
bays with EV charging. For locations and types of chargers please see Appendix
1, pages 16-19.

A launch event was held in May 2018, with the attendance of over 80 residents,
Members and EV industry professionals. At this launch event, the pilot trial began.

The pilot ran for 6 months with 15 participants, monitoring electricity usage from
the EV charging points and assessing user and stakeholder experiences.

10.For the duration of the trial participants were granted a designated EV charging

bay, in addition to their permitted car parking bay. In the majority of cases

Page 30



participants ordinary use bay and EV charging bays were in the same car park as
dictated by participant preference and convenience.

Current Position

11.Consultants WSP were contracted to oversee the pilot project and produce a report
detailing their findings on EV charger use and user experience. They have
produced a report of the study with recommendations for a working business model
regarding user and management costs associated with the charging units, and for
further roll-out of EV charging on the Barbican Estate (Appendix 1).

12.Key findings from the pilot study:

Positive response to the pilot from participants

Average electricity consumption of 1.3kW / day per participant

Low charger usage is due to high proportion of plug-in hybrid EVs in the
participant group and the low mileage typical of the inner-City location
Concerns over bay dimensions

Preference for users to be charged per kW of electricity they use
Preference for dedicated use bays

Convenience of charging units’ locations is key to uptake of using charging
points

Preference for communicating charging units (RFID) that can be operated
with a swipe card and are connected to the Chargemaster management
system

7kW units identified as most suitable for the demand and use by Barbican
Estate residents

13.Estimated uptake of EVs by residents on the Barbican Estate suggest by 2025
there will be 86 EVs (10% of total vehicles) and by 2030 there will be 230 EVs
(30% of total vehicles). This forecast is based on an average drawn from industry,
manufacture and government forecasts, and acknowledges the potentially higher
uptake in the City due to local factors, for example the Mayor’s Ultra Low Emission
Zone coming into force in April 2019. A full forecast is found in Appendix 1, Chapter

6.

Options

14.Based on the demand for convenience, the Barbican Estate should take steps to
install EV charging units into the remaining car parks that do not currently have this
infrastructure (Appendix 1, Chapter 8).

15.To increase EV charging capacity to meet future demand, the Barbican Estate
should install new EV charging infrastructure in a ‘scalable’ manner. For example,
passive cabling infrastructure can be installed in identified banks of bays in all car
parks within the next two years, providing the ability to install individual charging

Page 31



units to selected car parking bays on an ‘on demand basis’ as the electrical supply
infrastructure will already be in place (Appendix 1, Chapter 8).

16.The LEN is currently funding electricity costs associated with the charging points
use, in addition to costs associated with the pilot study. All future costs associated
with EV charging on the Barbican Estate should be covered through other means.

Proposals for the short term

17.1t is proposed that, regarding the EV related costs, from 1st April all electricity and
management overhead costs are picked up by the EV charging bay owner.

18.There are two options through which costs would be met by the EV charging bay
user.

a. Option 1: EV charging users are billed per kWh of electricity at a proposed
rate of 20-25p/kW (14p/kW domestic rate + 5-10p management levy/kW).
i. Advantage of users only paying for the electricity that they are
using.
ii. Does require more management to obtain individual usage records
and provide individual bills accordingly.

b. Option 2: EV charging bay users have an additional quarterly surcharge on
their car parking bay permits.
i. Very little management needed as would be included in standard
car parking bay permit and payment procedures.
ii. Disadvantageous to users who only use a small proportion of
electricity to charge vehicles compared to more regular users.

19.1t is proposed that the following management plan be progressed:

e Option 2 above in relation to EV charging costs

e EV charging capable bays remain assigned to a dedicated user as opposed
to becoming communal use charging bays

e pilot participants have the option of retaining their allocated EV charging bay
and/or their dedicated non-charging bays and pay the appropriate licence
fees for their occupied bays

¢ new EV owners wanting a charging capable bay would request one when
applying for a car parking permit route (the application form has an option
for ‘Electrical User’) and be assigned a dedicated bay according to the
method used for the pilot participants (consideration of resident’s location
preference, convenience and charging bay availability)

Proposals for the longer term

20. 1t is proposed that the following is progressed in the longer term:

Page 32



e in order to meet the longer term EV charging demand, Officers continue to
progress this project to install further EV charging in the car parks in line
with forecasts and recommendations in the pilot study report

e future EV charging bays are equivalent to two ordinary bays in recognition
of the tight dimensions of the car parking bays and the need for extra space
required to reverse park and plug-in chargers'

e Officers to consider alternative funding sources post-March 2019

e Officers to report back to these committees in one-years’ time

21.1t must be noted that progress will be dependent on resourcing in the Barbican
Estate Office as a result of the LEN project ending this financial year and
subsequent withdrawal of the LEN project officers.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

22.This work supports the aims and objectives of the City of London Air Quality
Strategy 2015 — 2020 and goes towards addressing air quality, which has been
identified as a corporate risk.

23.This work supports Proposals 29 and 30 in the draft Transport Strategy that the
City of London Corporation has recently consulted on.

24.Measures included in the LEN scheme support the Department of Community and
Children’s Services strategic aim of delivering value for money and outstanding
services through the Barbican Estate’s Service Based Review Programme.

Conclusion

25.This project is currently being fully funded by the LEN project. From April 1st, 2019
costs and management associated with the EV charging in Barbican car parks will
no longer be sustained by LEN funding and will be sourced elsewhere. The
Working Party and BEO Officers will continue to progress EV charging on the
Barbican Estate and report back to these Committees in one year’s time.

Appendices

26.Appendix 1 — Barbican Estate Residents Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure
Study

Background Papers

ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING POINTS PILOT PROJECT, Report of the Director of
Community and Children’s Services - Residential Consultation Committee, 22" May
2017 and Barbican Residential Committee, 5" June 2017

Beth Humphrey

Low Emission Neighbourhood Project Manager
T: 020 7332 1190

E: beth.humphrey@cityoflondon.gov.uk

"For the present EV charging infrastructure, current and new users will remain with an EV charging
bay of current dimensions. All the installed charging units are in adjacent bays within a charging block
bank of bays (Appendix 1, Chapter 4). For futyre EV bays,.charging units should be installed every
other bay to allow for the an EV car parking bay ag@ | to two bay’s width.


mailto:beth.humphrey@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



YD

oy

Low Emission
Neighbourhood

City of London Corporation

BARBICAN ESTATE RESIDENTS
ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING

INFRASTRUCTURE STUDY
Draft Final Report

JANUARY 2019



\\\I)

City of London Corporation

BARBICAN ESTATE RESIDENTS ELECTRIC
VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE
STUDY

Draft Final Report

WSP

WSP House

70 Chancery Lane
London

WC2A 1AF

Phone: +44 20 7314 5000
Fax: +44 20 7314 5111
WSP.com

Page 36



\\\I)

QUALITY CONTROL

Issue/revision

Draft issue

Draft Final

Final

Date

Prepared by

Checked by

Authorised by

Project
number

Report number

File reference

January 2019

Matt Croucher
Fiona Coull

Hiren Patel

Matt Croucher
Glenn Higgs
Mark Moscrop

Glenn Higgs

Matt Croucher

70040803

1

Draft Report — Barbican EV
Infrastructure Study v1.0

January 2019

Matt Croucher

Fiona Coull

Hiren Patel

Matt Croucher

Glenn Higgs

Mark Moscrop

Glenn Higgs

Matt Croucher

70040803

2

Draft Final Report —
Barbican EV Infrastructure
Study v2.00p

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

Project No.: 70040803-
City of London Corporation

Page 37

WSP
January 2019



\\\I)

1.  BACKGROUND AND OBJECTIVES 1
11. BACKGROUND 1
1.2. OBJECTIVES 2
1.3. REPORT STRUCTURE 2
2.  APPROACH 3
3.  BARBICAN ESTATE - CAR PARK UTILISATION AND ELECTRICAL
SUPPLY 9
3.1. BARBICAN BUILDING 9
3.2. CAR PARKS 9
3.3. ELECTRICAL SUPPLY CAPACITY 13
4.  PILOT STUDY - CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE AND PARTICIPANTS 15
41. CHARGE POINTS DEPLOYED 15
4.2. PILOT STUDY PARTICIPANTS 20
5.  PILOT STUDY FINDINGS — USER EXPERIENCE AND ELECTRICITY
USAGE 23
5.1. MONITORING AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 23
5.2. BASELINE FINDINGS 23
5.3. INTERIM SURVEY FINDINGS 29
54. ONE TO ONE INTERVIEWS 36
5.5. WORKSHOP 43
5.6. CHARGE POINT USAGE AND ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION 44
6. FORECASTING DEMAND FOR ELECTRIC VEHICLES AT THE BARBICAN

48
Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 38 January 2019

City of London Corporation



\\\I)

7. REVIEW OF CHARGING TECHNOLOGIES AND TRENDS 52
7.1. CHARGE POINT TYPES 52
7.2. FUTURE CHARGING DEVELOPMENTS 56
7.3. FUTURE VEHICLE DEVELOPMENTS 58
7.4. CHARGE POINT COSTINGS AND DELIVERY OPTIONS 59
8. RECOMMENDATIONS 63
8.2. FORECAST EVS AND CHARGE POINT REQUIREMENTS 67
TABLES
Table 3-1 — Resident Car Park Charges 10
Table 3-2 — Car Park Utilisation (July 2018) 12
Table 4-1 — Barbican Pilot Charge Points 16
Table 4-2 — Pilot Scheme Patrticipants 21
Table 5-1 — Residents Preferred Charging Arrangements 25
Table 5-2 — Residents Estimate Annual Mileage 26
Table 5-3 - Residents Estimate Mileage in the past week (Spring 2018) 26
Table 5-4 — EV owners estimated monthly charging costs 28
Table 5-5 — Current occupation of respondents 29
Table 5-6 — Participants usage of allocated charge point (May-August 2018) 30
Table 5-7 - Participants usage of allocated charge point in the past week 30
Table 5-8 - Participants mileage in the past week (Summer 2018) 32
Table 5-9 - Participants usage of intermediate/ destination charge points in last month
(August/ September) 33
Table 5-10 — One-to-one Interviews — stakeholders and interview dates 36

Table 5-11 — Pilot Scheme Participant Interviews — Charge Point Users (Residents and

Cars) 37
Table 5-12 — Electricity Consumption per Car Park and Participant 45
Table 5-13 - Electricity Consumption — Barbican Reference Cases 46
Table 6-1 — Forecast EV uptake scenarios in the Barbican 50
WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 39 Project No.: 70040803

City of London Corporation



\\\I)

Table -7.1 Charge point cost ranges (November 2018) 59
Table 8-1 - Charge point specification 63
Table 8-2 — Forecast EVs and Charge Point Requirements 68
FIGURES

Figure 2-1 - Approach 3
Figure 3-1 - Barbican Estate Map 9
Figure 3-2 - Application Form for Parking Permit 11
Figure 3-3 - Car Park Utilisation Trends (1997-2018) 13
Figure 5-1 — Journey purposes of car travel by Barbican residents 27
Figure 5-2 — Charge Point Electricity Consumption by Car Park 44
Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 40 January 2019

City of London Corporation



1

BACKGROUND AND OBJECTIVES
\\\I )

Page 41



\\\I)

1. BACKGROUND AND OBJECTIVES
1.1. BACKGROUND
1.1.1. The City of London has some of the worst air pollution levels in the UK. The City of London

1.1.2.

1.1.3.

1.1.4.

1.1.5.

1.1.6.

1.1.7.

1.1.8.

Corporation has made improving local air quality a key objective within its forward-looking
policies and strategies.

In July 2016 the Corporation was successful in securing £1million funding from the Mayor of
London, as part of the Mayors Air Quality Fund, to develop a Low Emission Neighbourhood
(LEN) in the Barbican area of the City.

The LEN includes a range of innovative approaches to improve air quality and reduce the
impacts of air pollution on residents, visitors and workers in the Square Mile.

The City has been a trailblazer in the past when it comes to tackling air quality, with the first
smokeless zone introduced in1954, and preventing the burning of sulphurous fuels in 1971.

Transport related emissions are now the largest source of air pollution in London, and so a
key component of the City’s Low Emission Neighbourhood strategy is to support and
accelerate the uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles (ULEVs)! amongst residents in the
Barbican Estate.

In December 2016, the Barbican Residential Committee approved the formation of a
Working Party to pilot the introduction of Electric Vehicle charging points on the Barbican
Estate. The Working Party comprised appointed resident representatives, Barbican Estate
Officers and the Low Emission Neighbourhood project team. The Working Party met
quarterly from January 2017, and worked closely to deliver and implement the pilot of EV
charging on the Barbican Estate. This report would like to acknowledge and thank Working
Party members for their input, time and support.

In June 2017 the Barbican Residential Committee approved the pilot project to install 22
electric vehicle charging points (EVCPSs) of different charging capabilities, servicing 30
bays, across five car parks on the Barbican Estate, with the installations completed and
launched in May 2018. However, in addition to the installation of a number of charge points
in the immediate term as part of the LEN programme, it was also recognised that it will be
essential to learn from the experience of these initial installations.

In December 2017 WSP was commissioned to monitor and support a six-month pilot
project from May — November 2018, with the intention of determining the best solution for

L EV or ULEV refers to any electric vehicle or plug-in ultra-low emission vehicle with a battery that
can be charged from an external source (i.e. not only from regenerative breaking), and emits no
more than 75 grams of CO; per kilometre.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 42 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 1 of 70



1.2.

1.3.

\\\I)

the wider rollout of electric vehicle charging infrastructure across City of London
Corporation managed residential car parks.

OBJECTIVES

1.2.1. The objective of this study is help the City Corporation understand how it can:

Best meet the needs and requirements of residents when charging their vehicles;
Future-proof car parks to accommodate growth in electric vehicles;

Ensure an EV charging scheme will be sustainable and self-financing in the future; and
Ensure any scheme is straight forward to manage with minimal resources required from the
Residential Services Management team.

REPORT STRUCTURE

1.3.1. The remainder of this report is set out as follows:

Chapter 2 — Background and Objectives

Chapter 3 — Approach

Chapter 4 — Barbican Car Park — Site Information

Chapter 5 — Pilot Study — Charging Infrastructure and Participants

Chapter 6 — Pilot Study Findings — User Experience and Charge Point Usage
Chapter 7 — Forecast Future Charging Requirements

Chapter 8 — Review of Charging Technologies and Trends

Chapter 9 — Recommendations

Chapter 10 — Case Study Examples and Best Practice Guidance

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 43 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 2 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

APPROACH

2.1.1. This study approach is outlined in the figure below:

Figure 2-1 - Approach

Inception

Meet with Barbican Estates team and comprehensive site visits
Develop Marketing materials and approach

Delivery Marketing for Pilot

Develop and deliver initial online survey

A - Stakeholder Engagement
and Communications

Intermediate online survey

Concluding online survey

On-going reviews and assessments of electricity usage
Consultation Workshop 1 - residents and barbican estate
One-to-one Interviews

B - Monitoring of
Usage

Review findings of monitoring, workshops and interviews
Forecast future demand for EVCPs

Review suitable technologies, layouts, business models
Develop business case for EVCP delivery and charges
Develop set of processes for allocating EVCP bays

Assess power capacities of car parks

Assess power upgrade requirements for future demand

C - Assessment of Scheme
and Recommendations

Draft and Final Reporting
Presentations
Produce best practice case studies and best practice guidance

D — Reporting and
Presentation

Stage A — Stakeholder Engagement, Communications and Implementation

2.1.2. The first stage of the project was to engage with the residents and other key stakeholders,
undertake a baseline survey to establish existing EV ownership, and identify participants to
take part in the pilot study. It also sought to understand potential future demand for EVs,
and views around charging infrastructure requirements and preferences.

Online Survey Prior to Pilot

2.1.3. A web survey of residents was developed, alongside a package stakeholder
communications and marketing materials, to promote awareness of the web survey, prior to
the EVCPs being installed and the pilot beginning in May.

2.1.4. The web survey was developed in a user-friendly format designed to route respondents
only questions applicable to them based on their preceding responses. This enabled us to
capture detailed feedback from respondents where they were EV owners, and establish
whether they were interested in participating in the pilot, whilst also collecting short-form
responses from residents who for example do not own a vehicle and do not plan to
purchase one. The survey questions included the following topic areas:

- User Profile — Residential Building/ Car Park
- Vehicle Type - who presently owns an EV
- Who is intending to buy an EV (electric or hybrid vehicles in the near future)

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 44 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 3 of 70



\\\I)

What residents require to support the shift from internal combustion engines (ICEs) to electric
vehicles (EVs)?

Key factors likely to influence if/ when they would switch to an EV.
Mileage and journey purposes

Working Status

Preferred charge point type

Charging habits — use of workplace, destination and intermediate charging
Views on communal versus dedicated charging bays.

Interest in participating in the pilot study

Willingness to use a charge point in a neighbouring car park

N2 20 2N 28N 2N 2N N 2 2

Communications and Marketing

2.1.5. WSP worked with the City LEN project team to market the EVCP pilot, both to prospective
users but also more widely to raise awareness of the scheme, using the same format and
branding as applied to other LEN materials, and through pre-existing channels where
appropriate, including:

- Twitter via the City Air account, which

has over 2,000 followers.

- City Resident magazine — published 2
times a year for all residents in the
City of London

- Leaflets/ pamphlets focused
specifically on the EVCP pilot

- Posters on community notice boards
in community spaces

- Emails to over 1,200 residents via the
weekly bulletin from the BEO

2.1.6. The web survey and marketing
were used to identify and recruit
participants to take part in the -
trial, and commit to using an allocated charge point within the Barbican.

2.1.7. Alaunch event was held and the charge points were activated on 14th May 2017. Over 80
people attended the event, which included demonstrations of how to use the charge points,
with a number of EVs supplied by BMW, Nissan and ZipCar for residents to experience and
discuss with representatives.

2.1.8. This was followed by an evening reception at nearby Ironmongers’ Hall, which included
presentations regarding electric vehicle developments by Nissan, the Low Emission
Neighbourhood project, the pilot, and a prize draw for the respondents to the survey. It also
provided an opportunity to further advertise the web survey, and the availability of charge
points for those interested in participating in the pilot by making use of the charge points.

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 45 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 4 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

Electrifying the Barbican Launch event

Join us for the launch of our new electric vehicle charging points
followed by an evening information and networking event

Monday 14" May

e

v

y

-
o [

‘ta

(1

¢ > .

<1
%
v

http://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/documents/s102138/LEN%20Update_Appendix_28Sept18 PHES%20Committee.pdf

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 46
City of London Corporation

January 2019
Page 5 of 70



\\\I)

Stage B — Monitoring of Usage

2.1.9. Having assembled the participants and launched the pilot, the next stage was to undertake
the monitoring of charge point usage and the experience of residents and other
stakeholders throughout this period.

2.1.10. The electricity consumption and charging events were recorded, processed and aggregated
from the data available from the ChargeVision data platform. Where EVCPs did not provide
remote communications data, monthly data on electricity consumption was collected by
either BEO staff or WSP staff.

2.1.11. In addition to data monitoring, further qualitative and quantitative information was recorded
of the user experiences through:

= web surveys of the participants;
= one-to-one interviews with a residents and other stakeholders; and
= a consultative workshop with residents.

Online surveys during the pilot

2.1.12. An intermediate survey of the residents participating in the scheme was undertaken 3
months into the pilot in August/September, building on the initial web survey undertaken
when the pilot began. This enabled us to establish user satisfaction with their allocated
charge points, any issues encountered, and to collect supporting data around their charge
point usage, re-charging times and habits, to supplement the more limited data available
through the charging portal. It also enabled us to revisit questions around their mileage, and
use of other charging infrastructure, and to invite their estimates of the electricity they had
used.

One-to-one interviews with stakeholders

2.1.13. In addition to the web surveys, more detailed one-to-one interviews were undertaken with a
sample of the participating residents, as well as a number of other stakeholders, including
Barbican Estate officers. They also included a representative from ZipCar, recognising that
they will have a distinct set of requirements to the residents.

2.1.14. These enabled us to explore in further detail their experiences, and to understand some
individual perspectives from each stakeholder group.

2.1.15. Inthe case of local stakeholders — such as the residents and the Barbican Estate team, we
were seeking to understand their experiences to date, what is working well, what isn’t, any
concerns, any actual or perceived difficulties or barriers in terms of usage, installation
maintenance, preferences in terms of EVCP types, layouts, operational arrangements,
management methods, payment processes and pricing considerations.

2.1.16. Interms of wider stakeholders such as charge point operators — we were looking to
understand from them any delivery challenges and opportunities, costs, planned or
anticipated future market developments and upcoming technologies.

2.1.17. The interviews took between 30-45 minutes on average, and took a structured approach
around discussion areas to keep the conversation reasonably focused, whilst still allowing it
to flow.

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 47 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 6 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

2.1.18. We also approached representatives from UKPN and Tesla to take part in a one-to-one
interview, to record their perspectives as an OEM (Original Equipment Manufacturer — a car
manufacturer) and DNO (Electrical Distribution Network Operator), but neither were
available within the project timescales.

Consultative Workshop

2.1.19. A workshop was held on 1%t November for residents participating in the trial, with remaining
spaces opened up to other interested residents. The session was hosted on Barbican
Estate for the convenience of attendees, with 11 residents attending.

2.1.20. This was an interactive workshop, and provided an opportunity for all trial participants,
Barbican Estate staff and any other interested residents to hear about the results of the
trial, and ask questions.

2.1.21. The workshop consisted of a 30-minute overview of the trial and the findings, and 30 min
Question and Answers/ discussion.

2.1.22. The workshop enabled us to sense check the emerging findings and outputs from the
monitoring and usage of the EVCPs, and the findings of the interim online survey. It also
enabled residents to meet other EV owners’ resident in the Barbican, and for those
interested in purchasing an EV to speak with their peers about their experiences.

2.1.23. We were also keen to open up the discussion to wider feedback from the group on their
experiences to date — framed within a series of specific topic headings.

Stage C — Assessment of the scheme and recommendations

2.1.24. Upon completing the 6-month pilot period, and having gathered the usage data and
experience of the range of stakeholders consulted throughout, we undertook a detailed
review and analysis to inform our subsequent recommendations.

2.1.25. Forecasts of the future demand for EVCPs at the Barbican were then developed. These
were developed in conjunction with assessing how the demand would be catered for,
informed by the feedback collected from residents, the car club operator, the Estate team
and the charger point operator.

2.1.26. We also undertook a review of the latest EVCPs available on the market, through desktop
research and discussions with EVCP suppliers and operators. To ensure that our
recommendations are future proofed.

2.1.27. These differing charging options were then combined with the demand forecasts to
determine EVCP requirements in a range of different scenarios.

2.1.28. Based on the preceding analysis of current and forecast future demand for EVCPs, and the
review of technologies, cost and stakeholder feedback, we developed a business case
outlining appropriate pricing levels, management platforms, delivery mechanisms.

Power capacities and upgrade requirements for future demand

2.1.29. We interviewed the facility management teams and undertook detailed reviews to establish
the current power capacities, an incremental range of indicative costed upgrades required
to facilitate the forecast demand, and accounting for the impact of differing EVCP types and
applications such as demand management and smart charging on costs, deliverability,

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 48 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 7 of 70



\\\I)

charging capabilities to users, and trigger points for the requirements of more substantial
infrastructure improvements such as new sub-stations.

2.1.30. Recommendations across a range of scenarios were then developed, including best
practice guidance and case study examples for consideration when rolling out charge
points more widely across the City.

Stage D — Reporting and Presentation

2.1.31. A draft report was prepared and issued for comments by the Working Party, followed by a
final report.

2.1.32. A concluding presentation was delivered to the Barbican Estates Electric Vehicle Charging
Points Working Party, summarising the findings of the pilot study.

2.1.33. This report will also be presented to the Residents Consultation Committee and Barbican
Residential Committee for information, and for a decision on future management and
expansion of EV charging on the Barbican Estate.

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 49 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 8 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

3. BARBICAN ESTATE - CAR PARK UTILISATION AND

ELECTRICAL SUPPLY

3.1. BARBICAN BUILDING

3.1.1. The Barbican Estate was constructed between 1969 and 1976, and covers a 40-acre site.
The complex was built in a distinctive brutalist architectural style. In 2001 it was Grade I
listed and designated a site of special architectural interest, as one of London's principal
examples of concrete brutalist architecture.

3.1.2. The residential estate consists of 21 residential blocks, including 3 tower blocks, 13 terrace
blocks, 2 mews and The Postern, Wallside and Milton Court. The residential blocks are set
on a raised podium and features underground parking, making space available for public
squares. There are total of 2,059 flats and approximately 4,500 to 5,000 residents.

3.2. CARPARKS

3.2.1. The Barbican Estate includes a total of 10 secure car parks (7 of which have 24-hour
Estate Concierge staff), with an overall capacity of 1,273 parking spaces as of November
2018:

= Andrewes House

= Breton House

= Bunyan Court

= Cromwell Tower

= Defoe House

= Speed House

= Lauderdale House

= Thomas More

=  Willoughby House (Level 01)
= Willoughby House (Level 03)

Figure 3-1 - Barbican Estate Map

2. Willoughby House Car Park, Moor Lane. EC2Y 8BL |
3. Speed House Car Park, Silk Street. EC2Y 8AT -
4. Breton House Car Park, Golden Lane. EC2Y 8DQ

5. Bunyan Court Car Park, Fann Street. EC2Y 8DH

6. Defoe House Car Park, Beech Street. EC2Y 8DH

7. Thomas More House Car Park, Aldersgate Street. EC2Y 8BT

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 50 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 9 of 70



\\\I)

Access Arrangements o DONGTSTAE

3.2.2. The concierge service
help with parking,
deliveries and
maintaining resident
and visitor safety.

3.2.3. Each car park bay is
numbered and
allocated for use by
the permit holder.
There are no rightto
park’ unallocated bays. |

BARBICAN ESTATE BARBICANCAR PARKS — ‘ = | ‘ -
i I I WS I ) | g
o | o [ | T l= 700321 T2-GAD02 A

e AR PAFK LAYOLT
FORINFCRMATION @ WSP UK Lid

ngann

I

Car Park Licences

3.2.4. The Barbican Estate car parks are available to residents, lease holders and sub-tenants.
The Barbican also has a few commercial arrangements with local businesses and
operators.

3.2.5. Barbican Estate leaseholders/ homeowners and their sub-tenants must obtain parking
permits to use car parking on the Barbican Estate. Ongoing long-term licenses are offered
to leaseholders, and short-term licenses (3-, 6-, 9-, 12-month) are offered to sub-tenants.

3.2.6. Leaseholders are charged an initial administration fee (£62), plus quarterly charges which
can be added to their quarterly service charges, or leaseholders may elect to pay in
advance for a fixed term duration.

3.2.7. Sub-tenants may purchase parking permits for periods of up to 12 months, with the option
to renew the permit for a further period. Permits are provided to be displayed in the car
showing the expiry date.

Table 3-1 — Resident Car Park Charges

Car Park Licenses Parking Charges*

3 Month License £397

6 Month License £732

9 Month License £1,067

Annual License £1,402

Long Terms Lease/ Bay Purchase (£8,598) £962
WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 51 Project No.: 70040803-

Page 10 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

Current Charge Point Application Process

3.2.8.

3.2.9.

3.2.10.

3.2.11.

At present Electric Vehicle charge point provision is limited to providing residents with
access to one of the 30 bays with accessible charging infrastructure installed as part of this
pilot study.

At the time of writing, no charge is levied for access to the charge point or the electricity
consumed, though a £50 deposit is required for the charge point key/ RFID.

The process of registering interest in a charge point, and making the deposit for the key, is
administered through the application form that residents and others must complete to
secure a parking space. The form includes a tick box option where the user specifies they
are an ‘Electrical User’. Payment of the deposit is to be made via a cheque made payable
to the ‘City of London’.

There is no further information provided in the permit application form in terms of where the
existing charge points are available, or opportunity for the applicant to specify what type of
charge point they require.

Figure 3-2 - Application Form for Parking Permit

BARBICAN CAR PARKING LICENCE - APPLICATION FORM

Make of Car (3): Registration No (5):

FalName (e title) i@ ISR it inssinsmsinisossossossisrsssstosns

Lesseholder or Sub-Tenad? ... 7. NF
Barbican ASHeaE oo W0 N g

Key/RFID No
Telephone No: Home e e WOIK....

Mobile... ....ismrrnns ... LR
Start date of Licence .................... Car Bay Number (if known)................

[ am prepared to accept the terms and conditions of the licence permitting me to use a Barbican Car

Parking Bay.

Signed. ... ..o Date. ...
NB! PLEASE NOTIFY US OF ANY CHANGES TO THE ABOVE DETAILS

'or Leazebolders - \n admunistration change of £62 1s payable for the granting of a lioenoe

Ylease note that 2 separate payment is required for this charge, please make cheques payable to the 'City of London’- A
(uarterly charge of £335 00 will be added to your service charge account

“or Sub-Tenants - An administration charge of £62 is payable for the granting or renewal of 2 licence. (Option also available
0 Leaseholders)

"he annual cost of renting a car bay is currently £1,402.00 (includes an administration charge of £62); the following options
re 2lso available: |

\ three month Licence for £397.00 (includes an administration charge of £62)

\ six month licence for £732.00 (includes an administration charge of £62)

\ nine moath licence for £1,067.00 (includes an administration charge of £62)

‘or Electrical Users

50 Deposit for KeyRFID :]
‘ayment is required in advance - Cheques should be made payable to the 'City of London’

The City of London Corporation is a data controller, and processes personal data in accordance with the
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the Data Protection Act 2018. For full details of how and why
the City of London Corporation processes personal data, please refer to the full privacy notice at

www citvoflondon gov.uk privacy. Altematively, you can request a hard copy. Please direct all data protection

Jueries to the Ci )} e Team at information officer@citvoflondon gov.uk

JFFICE USEONLY

- Park Leaseholder admin charge

ixpiry Date Sub-Tenant (Cheque /Card) inc admin charge

Barbican

estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP

Project No.: 70040803 Page 52 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 11 of 70



Car Park Occupancy
926 (73%) spaces are utilised as of November 2018, from the 1,273 spaces across the

3.2.12.

Barbican.

3.2.13.

\\\I)

The car parks across the Barbican Estate feature varying levels of utilisation, and differing

compositions of residential, commercial and longer term lets, as demonstrated in the table

below.

3.2.14.

House operates at around 51% of capacity.

3.2.15.

3.2.16.

Table 3-2 — Car Park Utilisation (July 2018)

The most heavily utilised car park is Speed House, with occupancy at 93%, whilst Breton

The commercially let bays are concentrated in Willoughby House (Level 01) — 25 of 27,
including 2 EV charging car club bays used by ZipCar.

The long-term car bay agreements are concentrated in Speed House (110) and Willoughby
House (Level 03) (77).

(0] = @ — —
> %) S 1) ) = = 1) )
© = 2
@ s |3 | 8 |E | 2|3 | % |32 | 23 23
~ ) 9 - D 2 T ] 0 <2 | £2
@ z o c @ = = = o O 1 S S o %
o = 0 S > e o ) S w0 S o w ow =
g 23| © S S ¥ S so| 2 =3 =3 =
O < I o o O o ) T — =T =T =
Total Bays 134 127 120 92 162 155 106 147 133 97 1,273
Total 69% | 51% | 73% | 63% | 78% | 93% | 82% | 61% | 74% | 80% | 73%
Occupancy
Residential
Short-Term 81 65 87 50 91 32 70 82 68 1 627
Permits
Commercial 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 25 0 27
Long Term
Car Bay 11 0 1 8 35 110 17 8 5 77 272
Agreements
Vacant 42 62 32 34 36 11 19 57 35 19 347
Trends

3.2.17. There has been a declining demand for parking bays amongst residents over the past
twenty years, with 332 (34%) fewer residents parking compared to 1998. Over this period
this equates an average annual reduction in resident parking of 1.9%.

3.2.18.

This has been partly counterbalanced by a growing number of “sold bays”, which are sold

on long term leases as opposed to regular short-term renewals. These “sold bays” have
increased by 201 (264%) since 1998.

WSP
January 2019
Page 12 of 70

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

Page 53

Project No.: 70040803-
City of London Corporation



3.3.

\\\I)

3.2.19. The total number of bays has also fallen over the past twenty years as a humber of bays
have been repurposed for alternative purposes, such as storage and cycle parking.

Figure 3-3 - Car Park Utilisation Trends (1997-2018)

1,769

1,569 !

N~

1,369 \

1,169
969
769
569
369
169
-31
9;\ &P ‘90 S e P @ngo ‘\ RS IR @@ S
\0 RO @ & @ ?.Q ) Q éq, 09 00 0° O(“ 0(' ‘_)Q,Q ‘\o @0 \;o '\,
> °5’
mmm | et Bays (Residential) I | ef Bays (Commercial) [ Sold Bays  ====Total Parking Capacity

Longer Term City Car Park Policy and Strategy

3.2.20. A new Future of City Car Parks report is also due to be produced by City Transportation,
and presented to the Planning and Transportation and Policy and Resources Committee’s
in March 2019. The report will include a 25-year strategy, and considers potential
decreases in volume of traffic, and the demands from other users, delivery hubs and cargo
bicycles.

ELECTRICAL SUPPLY CAPACITY

3.3.1. The choice of charging system is in part limited by the existing electrical network capacity in
the chosen area. It is therefore important that this is considered and assessed as early as
possible within the infrastructure planning / development process. This may limit what can
be achieved or require advance work from the electricity companies to increase their
capacity in that area.

3.3.2.  Assuch, it is necessary to also consider the question of the UK electricity grid and its ability
to meet the load requirements. We are already seeing the electrical supply industry
requiring ‘electrical capacity’ surveys for all EV proposed locations, and a number of these
are being highlighted as unsuitable based upon the current capacity of the electrical

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 54 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 13 of 70



\\\I)

network. This can lead to some specific challenges at the local level, as the DNOs
(Electrical Distribution Network Operator) cannot always meet the required electrical load
locally.

3.3.3. The Energy Networks Association (ENA) www.energynetworks.org have developed an
electric vehicle charging infrastructure installation notification procedure. This looks at the
capacity requirements to determine the level of electrical supply capacity that currently
exists, which then enables consideration for the EV charging facilities in terms of type,
electrical load and quantify of charge points, provided a capacity exists on the network.

Existing and available electrical capacity

3.3.4. The car parks with charge points installed as part of the pilot scheme (5 of the Barbicans 10
resident’s car parks) currently have UKPN supplies consisting of 3 Phase 100A and
BS1361 Fuses. The available electrical capacity that has been agreed with UKPN is 68kVA
or 98A per phase.

3.3.5. Based on the existing installations and arrangement of UKPN transformers and electrical
switch rooms, it is expected that additional 68kVA 3 Phase supplies could be provided to
the 5 remaining car parks not currently fitted with charge points. However, in order to
confirm the availability of new connections an application must be submitted to UKPN
before any dialog can take place.

3.3.6. Inthe case of the car parks with charge points, a sub-main cable was installed from the
switch room to the sub-distribution board in each of the car parks. Prior to installing any
additional charge points the sub-main cable would need to be inspected physically and from
test certificates to confirm that the current carrying capacity is not exceeded. Our initial
surveys indicated that 25mm cable was used, which can typically carry around 99A
depending on method of installation.

DNO (Distribution Network Operator) assessment of supply

3.3.7. In order to assess the available supply for those car parks which do not currently have EV
charge points, a formal assessment of the supply is required by the DNO. UKPN are the
DNO for the London area and they have advised that based wholly on the existing
installations carried out last year, it would be a fair assumption that 68kVA supplies could
be made available for each car park for the provision of EV charge points.

Limitations in the data available

3.3.8. Unfortunately, due to the age of the building and record keeping over the years, information
and plans to further inform these assessments is limited.

Key point summary

= Declining parking demand and available bays in Barbican Estate car parks

= All parking bays are allocated, with no right to park bays.

= [ssues with determining available electrical supply due to lack of plans and records due to age of
the building

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 55 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 14 of 70 City of London Corporation


http://www.energynetworks.org/

\\\I)

4. PILOT STUDY - CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE AND
PARTICIPANTS
4.1. CHARGE POINTS DEPLOYED

4.1.1. As part of the pilot study a total of 22 charge point units were deployed across the Barbican
Estate for City residents, and officially activated and launched on 14" May 2018.

4.1.2. The charging points were procured by the City of London
Corporation using the LEN funding, supplied and commissioned
by Chargemaster, and were installed by SRG Electrical.

4.1.3. Arange of charge point types were installed in order to gauge
feedback on each from users and the estate team, to inform
future decision-making. The units included:

= Power outputs ranging from 3.5kW, 7kW to 22Kw.
= Both tethered? and socketed units

= RFID? card or Key operated systems

= Single or Dual chargers

4.1.4. The charge points were installed in five car parks identified by the
Barbican Estate Office as being most suitable for introducing
charging points as part of a pilot project. The car parks are:

= Bunyan Court

= Breton House.

= Cromwell Tower (Level 02)

= Thomas More

= Willoughby House (Level 01)

© Chargermqemetasinns

4.1.5. A further point of variation between the charge points installed as part of the pilot, and the
user experience, is where a resident from a different block which does not have its own
charge points, is using the charge points in a neighbouring car park, and the extent to which
residents would be willing to incur this potential inconvenience.

4.1.6. The range of electric vehicle charge points installed means a variety of recharging times
were available. For example, the indicative timings to recharge a Nissan Leaf (40kW
battery) from a fully drained battery using the charge points deployed are:

2 A tethered charge point refers to the charging cable being integrated into the unit, rather than
featuring a socket for the user to plug a cable into.

3 RFID is an acronym for “radio-frequency identification” and refers to a technology whereby digital
data encoded in RFID card communicates with a reader via radio waves.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 506 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 15 of 70



Slow Charger (~3.5kW), type 2, single phase* — 12hrs
Standard Charger (~7kW), type 2, single phase - 6hrs
Fast Charger (~22kW), type 2, three phase - 2hrs

\\\I)

4.1.7. The charge points include a range of RFID and Key operated models:

The RFID operated units are unlocked and activated using an RFID card supplied to the user.

= The key operated units feature a lock and key mechanism, and a key is provided to the user.

4.1.8. The RFID units use GSM (Sim Cards) to enable communications. This also means they are
able report data on electricity consumption, charge events and duration via Chargemaster’s
ChargeVision portal. The key operated units have a meter installed on their electricity
supply cable. This must be manually checked to determine electrical use.

Table 4-1 — Barbican Pilot Charge Points

Number. Single/ Wall/ Power RFID or  Number
Sl s of points dual post S e (KW) Key of bays
Breton 9 Single | Wall Socket 3kw Key | 9
Bunyan 2 Dual Wall Socket Tkw RFID 4
Bunyan 1 Dual Wall Socket 3kw RFID 2
Cromwell 3 Single Wall Socket 22kw Key 3
Thomas 1 Dual Wall Socket Tkw RFID 2
More
Thomas 1 Dual Wall Socket 22kw RFID 2
More
Willoughby 3 Dual Wall Socket Tkw RFID 6
(Level 01)
Willoughby 2 Single Wall Tethered Tkw RFID 2
(Level 01)
Total 22 30

4.1.9. The charge points are installed in banks of between 2 and 9 parking bays.

4 Single phase and three phase power systems use alternating current (AC) electric power. With AC power,
the flow of current is constantly alternating directions. The primary difference between single phase and three
phase is the constancy of delivery. With a three-phase power supply a steady stream of power is delivered at
a constant rate, making it possible to carry more load. For most businesses and industrial units, it is delivered
in three phase to accommodate higher loads, whereas residences are generally provided single phase to
sufficiently power household items.

WSP
January 2019
Page 16 of 70

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

Page 57

Project No.: 70040803-
City of London Corporation



\\\I)

Breton House Car Park

. L1 NEW COLUMNS
1958
1959
L]
1960
1961
H - | _——SUBSTATION
1962 19541965196%1957 9541 0 IS%IW?IQ?AQHIQN‘Q?G]Q?VV/' %
1963

CYCLE STORE
67 | 2068 | 2069 | 2070 | 2071 | 2072 | 2073 | 2074 2077

92 | 2091 !zogo 2089&2088 zuwizoss 2085 2082

=

STORAGE

Bays 1969 - 1977 converted to EV bays:
9 x single 3kw wall mounted

TersNe s ‘3 v ey
=5 iu(u)n!i Y WO!

R e e 7 Tl =

Bunyan Court Car Park

173¢‘1735I1m|1737:1758{1739=174+741lnm{lmi7«‘1745:1745‘1747=17o+749: |
Bays 1718+1719
. = converted to EV bays:
:I 1699 1 x dual 3kw wall mounted
] ——
1127 17261728 172 j ng[171gfn 700 1701
[} [ ] [ ] n_ ® ®
3
STORACH
00 =
7841783|1782{ 1781|1780 177717761775 7417731772 1704
1705

805 1804| 180311802 1801|1800/ 1799 1798{ 1797 1796| 195 1794{ 1793,

SIS
=2 5=1
?wO§

2 o &
jr]
8

18181817 1816{ 1915(1814{1813

52511824 182311822/1821|1820|18

?

Bays 1720-1723 (4 bays) converted to
EV Car Club bays:
2 x dual 7kw wall mounted

. A | _——3 MOTORCYCLE SPACES
ES
[ [

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

Project No.: 70040803 Page 58
City of London Corporation

WSP
January 2019
Page 17 of 70



WS

Cromwell (Level 02) Car Park

LEVEL 2

LEVEL 2
623(1622| 1621 62{1619 1618116” 1616 |61+614161318|2(

Bays 1601 — 1603 (3 bays) converted to EV bays:
3 x single 22kw points

Thomas More House Car Park

mSSssiesnamsn s, mesm ]

Bays 722 — 725 converted to EV charging bays:
1 x dual 7kw (2 bays)
1 x dual 22kw (2 bays)

145 [B44 843|842 841|840 [839 [838 [837 836 [835 |83+ [833[832 831 [BX 629
12 (813 (814 (815 [81€ (817 (818 819 (820 |821 (822 823 |824 825 826 [827
75 | e
76
o
n7 3
n
'94 [793 |792 |791 |79¢ | 789 |78 787 786 785 784 783 782 781 |780 779|778 2
'61 (762|763 |764 | 765 | 766 (767 (768 (769770 (771 (772 773|774 |775 | 776 (177 718 |
- e
AN m
3 ] Yy ‘ ) 708709 710-1
“ 4

1 MOTORCYCLE SPACE/

6 PARKING SPACES

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 59 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 18 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

Willoughby House (Level 01) Car Park

465

506

507 (508

508 |510 (511 512

513

514

515 [516

517

518

519

505

504] 503

502 501 500 499

of

497

496] 495

454‘

493|492 |49

469 1470

471 1472 473 |474

475 |476

477 |478 |473 |480

Bays 455 — 462 converted to 8 EV bays:
3 x dual wall mounted 7kw (6 bays)

2 x single wall mounted 7kw tethered (2 bays)

481 |48

4453

452

451 450

449

448

447

4.1.10. The pilot project also includes the installation of EVCPs at 4 Zipcar car club bays, enabling

Zipcar to offer all electric and hybrid car club vehicles.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
Project No.: 70040803

City of London Corporation

Page 60

WSP
January 2019
Page 19 of 70



4.2.

\\\I)

PILOT STUDY PARTICIPANTS

4.2.1. The Barbican Estate team estimate that there are approximately twenty Electric Vehicles
(EVs®) or Plug-in Hybrid Electric Vehicles (PHEVs®) using the Barbican car parks on a
regular basis.

4.2.2. The pilot study was successful in recruiting 15 participants to take part in the trial, and
commit to using an allocated charge point within Barbican, and participating in the surveys.

4.2.3. The participants selected include a range of characteristics and differing vehicle types, as
summarised in Table 4.2 on the following pages.

4.2.4. ltis notable that the majority of the vehicles are PHEVs (74%, 11) as opposed to Battery
Electric Vehicles (BEVs’) (26%, 4). This is however reflective of the UK average.

4.2.5. Charge points were allocated on basis of a residents preferred car park where available,
and in the nearest adjacent car park if their usual car park did not include a charge point.
The charge points were also allocated on the basis of ensuring a wide range of charge
point types were utilised.

4.2.6. It was notable that a number of EV owners declined to take part in the pilot, with some
stating they would not wish to use a charge point if it meant having to park in an adjacent
car park further from their flat. This serves to emphasise how essential it is for the charge
points to be convenient, as in this case the charge points and electricity are being offered
for free for the duration of the pilot at least, and these were still declined in some cases.
Other residents declined as they used charge points external to the Barbican Estate, or
because they parked their vehicle somewhere other than the Barbican car parks.

4.2.7. ltis also notable that whilst the majority of the participants (11) joined the scheme in May
when it was launched, a number (4) joined only for the remaining 2 months of the scheme,
including the two ZipCar vehicles, which were delayed to due concerns from the operator
over the small parking bays they were initially allocated, as well as contractual issues.

5 Electric Vehicle (EV) — also referred to in the UK as an Ultra-low Emission Vehicle (ULEV) — a
collective term for vehicles using low carbon technologies, produce less than 75g of CO; per
Kilometre driven and are capable of operating in zero tailpipe emission mode for a range of at least
ten miles. This can include different types of vehicles, including BEVs and PHEVs

6 Plug-in Hybrid Electric Vehicle (PHEV) - A vehicle which combines a battery, electric drive motor
and an internal combustion engine (ICE) and the ability to charge the battery from an external power
source. The vehicle can be driven by the ICE, by the electric drive motor, or both together.

" Battery Electric Vehicle (BEV) - A vehicle powered only by electricity. The vehicle is charged by
an external power source and incorporates regenerative braking which helps to extend the available
range.

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page ol Project No.: 70040803-
Page 20 of 70 City of London Corporation



29 abed

\\\I)

Table 4-2 — Pilot Scheme Participants

Participant Vehicle Type Building Working Status Allocated Charge Point
Resident 1 BMW i3 (BEV) Frobisher Crescent Full Time Employment = 3kW Charger

= Lockable Key

= Breton Car Park
Resident 2 BMW i3 REX (REEV) Ben Jonson House Full Time Employment = 3kW Charger

= Lockable Key

= Breton Car Park
Resident 3 VW Golf GTE (PHEV) - Ben Jonson House Retired = 3kW Dual Charger

= RFID Access

= Bunyan Car Park
Resident 4 TBC (PHEV) Shakespeare Tower | Not known = 7kW Dual Charger

= RFID Access

= Bunyan Car Park
Resident 5 BMW X5 (PHEV) Shakespeare Tower | Full Time Employment = 7kW Dual Charger

Young Family = RFID Access

= Bunyan Car Park
Resident 6 TBC (PHEV) Lauderdale Tower Not known = 22kW Dual Charger

= RFID Access

= Thomas More Car Park
Resident 7 Mitsubishi Outlander PHEV (PHEV) Lauderdale Tower Retired = 22kW Dual Charger

= RFID Access
= Thomas More Car Park

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

Project No.: 70040803

City of London Corporation

WSP
January 2019

Page 21 of 70



g abed

Resident 8

Mercedes C350E plug-in hybrid (PHEV)

Willoughby House

Retired

\\\I)

7kW Dual Charger
RFID Access
Willoughby Car Park

Resident 9

VW Golf GTE (PHEV)

Speed House

Full Time Employment

7kW Dual Charger
RFID Access
Willoughby Car Park

Resident 10

VW Golf GTE (PHEV)

Willoughby House

Not known

7kW Charger with tethered cable
Lockable Key
Willoughby Car Park

Resident 11

BMW 225XE (PHEV)

Frobisher Crescent

Retired

22kW Charger
Lockable Key
Cromwell Car Park

Resident 12

Mercedes E350e (PHEV)

Cromwell Tower

Retired

22kW Charger
Lockable Key
Cromwell Car Park

Zipcar 1

VW E-Golf (BEV)

N/A

N/A

7kW Dual Charger
RFID Access
Willoughby Car Park

Zipcar 2

VW E-Golf (BEV)

N/A

N/A

7kW Dual Charger
RFID Access
Willoughby Car Park

City of London Mail Van

VW E-Crafter (prototype) (BEV)

N/A

Full Time Employment

7kW Dual Charger
RFID Access
Thomas More Car Park

WSP
January 2019

Page 22 of 70

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

Project No.: 70040803-
City of London Corporation



\\\I)

PILOT STUDY FINDINGS - USER EXPERIENCE AND
ELECTRICITY USAGE

5.1.

5.2.

MONITORING AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

5.1.1.

This chapter draws together and summarises the findings of the monitoring and stakeholder
engagement, approved by the Working Party, undertaken throughout the pilot study,
including:

= Baseline survey of Barbican residents — completed February to June 2018
= Interim survey of residents participating in the pilot study — August to September 2018
= One-to-one interviews with a sample of participating residents and other stakeholders — October

2018

= Workshop with residents participating in the scheme and other interested residents — November

2018

= Charge point usage data and electricity consumption - duration of pilot study (May to
November 2018

BASELINE FINDINGS

5.2.1.

5.2.2.

Prior to the pilot study beginning, a web survey was undertaken to establish the baseline
position for a range of factors that have bearing on the current and future EV charging
infrastructure requirements of the Barbican residents.

The factors and parameters the survey sought to establish included:

= Current level of EV ownership by Barbican Estate residents
= Attitudes to EVs and vehicle purchasing plans

= Charging requirements — actual and perceived

= Preferred charger types and arrangements

5.2.3.

5.2.4.

The baseline survey was developed as a web survey, with participants routed to applicable
questions based on their preceding answers. The survey was widely publicised in the
Barbican Broadcast weekly email received by subscribed residents, through posters in
communal areas and information boards across the Estate, and leaflets in the reception. It
was also publicised through posters and leaflets within each block. It was also promoted at
the launch event at Ironmongers Hall on 23 May.

In total 81 residents responded to the survey — which equates to approximately 4% of flats
(2,059), or 2% of residents (4,500 to 5,000).

Car Ownership and Sample Rates

5.2.5.

Whilst this is a relatively low sample rate, based on the preceding analysis in Chapter 4 of
the number of resident car park permits issued (927), vehicle ownership at the Barbican is
relatively low (0.45 cars per flat), which is not unexpected given the central location of the
site and the excellent access to public transport and local amenities. As such, the survey
will only be directly relevant to a proportion of the Barbican residents.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 64 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 23 of 70



\\\I)

5.2.6. 64% (52) of respondents to the baseline survey owned a car. 10% (11) of the respondents
owned more than one vehicle (1.2 on average).

5.2.7. Intotal, the survey respondents made up 7% (64) of the all resident permits (927) at the
Barbican, so provides a reasonable representation of the baseline position.

Current EV Ownership
5.2.8. 24% (12) of all survey respondents owned a plug-in electric vehicle (including hybrids)

5.2.9. Itis important to recognise however that the nature of the survey will likely have attracted a
disproportionately high response rate from EV owners relative to conventional EV owners.

Plans to purchase or replace a vehicle

5.2.10. Residents were asked whether they plan to purchase a vehicle, or replace their existing
vehicle. 69% (27) of those that responded to the question (39) advised they did, with 30%
(8) of these considering doing so in the near term (within the next 6 months). Most were
planning to so in the longer term (63%, 17).

5.2.11. 91% (39) of those that responded said they would consider purchasing an electric vehicle,
with:

= 28% would consider a BEV
= 63% would consider a PHEV/ REEV

5.2.12. Of the remaining 9% of respondents, 2% were not sure and 7% would not consider
purchasing an EV.

5.2.13. These findings correspond with an earlier survey of residents undertaken in 2014, which
revealed that 150 residents would consider buying an EV, with 22 actively planning to do
So.

5.2.14. It should be noted that since the baseline survey was undertaken the Government has
withdrawn the plug-in car grant for PHEVs, and reduced it from £4.5k to £3.5k for BEVSs,
which will likely have a bearing on future purchase decisions.

Key factors influencing resident decisions to purchase an EV

5.2.15. Respondents were asked to rank which factors would be more key in informing their
decision to purchase an electric vehicle.

5.2.16. The key factors prioritised by respondents were:
Availability of charge points overnight

Wider availability of charging points

Wider availability of rapid charge points

Vehicle price

Availability of electric vehicle (EV) models that appeal to me
Vehicle range (miles per charge)

Availability of allocated parking for EV users across London

o N o o B~ W N P

Introduction of Ultra Low Emissions Zone

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 65 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 24 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

9 Exemption from Congestion charge

10 Ethical reasons - improving local air quality

11 Other anticipated charges for non-ultra-low emissions vehicles
12 Ethical reasons - wider environmental benefits

13 Enjoyment of new technology

5.2.17. The “Availability of charge points overnight” was considered a high priority amongst all
respondents.

Parking Arrangements

5.2.18. Most, but not all, of the residents park their vehicle at the Barbican. 90% (46) of
respondent’s park at the Barbican, with 10% (5) parking elsewhere.

Preferred Charge Point Access

5.2.19. There was a preference amongst respondents for either charging via a dedicated charge
point, or the option for faster charging from a shared communal charge point used by a
number of residents.

Table 5-1 — Residents Preferred Charging Arrangements

5.2.20. Resident who owned EVs or are considering buying on were asked their preferred charging
options. Residents were able to select multiple responses.

Charge Point Type Resident Preferred Options
Charging via a dedicated charge point, for use by you only 15 42%
Occasional charging via a shared charge point, used by a number of 3 8%
residents

Fast charging from a shared communal charge point, used by a 11 31%

number of residents

Occasional rapid charges at intermediate locations, with occasionally 3 8%
top up charges at home when necessary/available

Not Sure 4 11%

Resident Mileage and Travel Trends

5.2.21. Residents were asked “What is your estimated typical annual mileage?” and “What do you
estimate your mileage to have been over the past week?”

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 00 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 25 of 70



\\\I)

Table 5-2 — Residents Estimate Annual Mileage

Annual Mileage Respondents

0-1,000 miles 2 6%
1,001 - 5,000 miles 10 29%
5,001 - 10,000 miles 16 47%
10,001 - 20,000 miles 6 18%

Table 5-3 - Residents Estimate Mileage in the past week (Spring 2018)

Mileage over the past week Respondents

10-50 miles 9 24%
51-100 miles 8 22%
101-200 miles 6 16%
201-300 miles 3 8%
| have not driven any miles 11 30%

5.2.22. As would be expected given the location of the Barbican, the typical mileage by vehicles is
low compared to the average UK mileage (7,800 miles).

5.2.23. Respondents were asked whether this was representative of how many miles they
ordinarily drive per week - 67% answered yes, 18% answered “No - | drove more miles than
| usually would” and 15% answered “No - | drove less miles than | usually would”. On
balance therefore, we can reasonably infer that the responses are broadly reflective of
typical mileage.

Journey Purpose

5.2.24. The journey purposes of trips made in cars by Barbican residents was most commonly for
leisure purposes (46%), or other trips (32%), with very few of trips made up by commuting
to work (3%) or business travel (12%).

5.2.25. These findings correlate with some of the related findings around low mileage, reflecting the
very central location of the Barbican, and the more convenient access to employment and
business travel by walking, cycling and public transport. Consequently, cars are instead
primarily used for leisure purposes, such as weekend travel out of London.

5.2.26. The ‘other trips’ may correspond with the findings of some of the surveys and interviews,
where residents had a second home, and were based in the Barbican during the working
week, travelling back to their other home at weekends.

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page o7 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 26 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

Figure 5-1 — Journey purposes of car travel by Barbican residents

Commute
to work
3%

Business
travel
12%

Other trips
32%

Shopping
7%

Schoolrun
0%

Leisure
46%

Charging Habits of Existing EV Owners

5.2.27. For those Barbican residents who are EV owners, less than half (43%) were aware of any
convenient intermediate or destination charging opportunities they could have used, or did
use, over the past week.

5.2.28. 50% of those aware of an option had used them once within the past week, the other 50%
had not.

5.2.29. Whilst these responses only represent a very small sample size, they provide some
interesting insights into the extent of the role of public charging infrastructure for the
Barbican’s existing EV owners, which could be summarised as limited. With approximately
only 1 in 4 using a public charging point in a week.

5.2.30. The reasons cited by those that did use intermediate chargers were:

= “Convenience (was going nearby anyway - opportunity charging)”

= “Rapid charge times”

= “l am unable to charge at home”

5.2.31. The reasons given by those who hadn’t used an intermediate charger in the last week were:

= “l did not encounter any”
= “Inconvenient (i.e. didn’t otherwise need to be there)”

5.2.32. Participants were also asked whether they considered using any convenient workplace
charging opportunities over the past week.

= Yes 14% (1)
= No 86% (6)

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 08 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 27 of 70



\\\I)

5.2.33. The reasons given by those who hadn’t used a workplace charger in the last week were
that “none were available”

5.2.34. This finding serves to highlight the continued importance of home charging in enabling EV
uptake.

Range Anxiety

5.2.35. Participants were asked whether they have ever experienced range anxiety (i.e. worrying
that you might not have enough charge to reach your destination)

Yes 28% (2)
No 72% (5)

5.2.36. This finding is a common one amongst EV owners, and whilst a quarter of respondents
reporting themselves as having encountered range anxiety is problematic, it is a lower
proportion of respondents than many non-EV drivers often anticipate.

5.2.37. Have you ever found you've not had sufficient charge at the start of the day to meet your
needs for that day without supplementing the overnight charge?

Yes 43% (3)
= No 57% (4)

5.2.38. This is a less encourage finding and highlights more work is needed to better support EV
uptake, as more mainstream, less committed EV purchasers are less inclined to tolerate
such inconveniences.

Perception of Electricity Cost
5.2.39. EV owners were asked to estimate their monthly spend on electricity for charging their
vehicles:

Table 5-4 — EV owners estimated monthly charging costs

Residents EV Residents Residents Estimated annual | Estimated electric
estimated estimated annual | kW demand for powered mileage
monthly spend on | spend on EV charging? per annum?
electricity electricity

BMW i3 £20 £240 800-1,846 3,200-7,385

BMW i3 REX £5 £60 200-462 800-1,846

BMW i3 £250 £3,000 10,000-23,077 40,000-92,308

BMW225XE £26 £312 1,040-2,400 4,160-9,600

Golf GTE £1 £12 40-92 160-369

MB E350 e £10 £120 400-923 1,600-3,692

Note: Tassumes 13p (standard domestic rate) or 30p per kW (typical public charge point cost) and 4 miles per
kW charged (average mile per kW of electricity, subject to conditions such as driving style and temperature)

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 09 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 28 of 70 City of London Corporation



5.3.

\\\I)

Residents Current Occupation

5.2.40.

70% of all the respondents to the baseline survey were in full or part-time employment.

Table 5-5 — Current occupation of respondents

Current Occupation Responses

In full-time employment (30 hours 39 59%
or more per week)

In part-time employment (less 7 11%
than 30 hours per week)

Student (full time) 0 0%
Student (part time) 0 0%
Retired 13 20%
Not currently in employment 3 5%
Other 4 6%

Mobility Issues

5.2.41. 5% (3) of all the respondents declared they had mobility issues or special access
considerations.
Key findings

= Low car ownership

= Low mileage

= Strong interest in EVs

= EVCPs for overnight charging seen as a key precondition

= More suited to PHEVs in some cases, longer distance but infrequent drives to second homes etc.

INTERIM SURVEY FINDINGS

5.3.1. The participants in the pilot study were contacted to take part in an interim survey midway
through the 6-month period in August-September 2018.
5.3.2. Participants were asked how many times they had used their allocated residents EV
Charging point
throughout the ;
J . e,
course of the pilot 8 O CG(
period to date FEEDBAC K GOO Lg
(from mid-May LT Goog S O
onwards). 058 o %, &Q‘qc
&
Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 70 January 2019

City of London Corporation Page 29 of 70



\\\I)

Table 5-6 — Participants usage of allocated charge point (May-August 2018)

Charge Point Usage Number of Participants Percentage of Participants
10 times or more (more than once 3 21%

a week)

6 to 9 times (roughly once a 4 29%

week)

3 to 5 times (roughly twice a 2 14%

month)

Up to 3 times (once a month) 4 29%

Never 1 7%

5.3.3. The responses correspond with the relatively low levels of electricity consumption recorded
in the parallel monitoring (see section 5.6), with 50% of participants having used their
charge point less than once a week within that week.

5.3.4. Participants who responded ‘Never’ were asked if there was any reason they have not used
their charge point throughout the course of the pilot period, and the participant advised thus
was because “No charge required (battery fully charged)”. The low levels of usage
observed likely correspond with the low mileage and high proportion of PHEVs amongst the
vehicles in the pilot.

5.3.5. To provide a snapshot of usage in the past week specifically, where respondents are likely
to be more accurate in recalling their activities, participants were also asked how many
times they had used their allocated charge point.

Table 5-7 - Participants usage of allocated charge point in the past week

Charge Point Usage Number of Participants Percentage of Participants
More than 6 times 1 8%
3 to 4 times 2 15%
1to 2 times 5 38%
Not at all 5 38%

5.3.6. This also found relatively low levels of charge point usage, with 38% not having used their
point at all that week, though 62% had said used at least once in a week. Interestingly
these responses suggest slightly higher usage levels than the estimates over the course of
the pilot, possibly indicating some increases in usage as their familiarity with the points has
developed, or their routines have adapted away from previous charging regimes to utilise
the home charging option.

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 71 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 30 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

5.3.7. For the respondents who had not used the points, the following reasons were given:

= Have not used or planned to use my car

= Have not used or planned to use my car in electric mode (if hybrid)
= Charged elsewhere

= Away on summer holidays

Experience of using the charge point

5.3.8. Participants were asked to describe their experience of recharging their electric vehicle
using their allocated charge point.? They were able to select multiple responses where

applicable.
= Convenient 7 (33%)
= Straightforward 10 (48%)
= Reasonable 3 (14%)
= Poor 0 (0%)
= Problematic 1 (5%)

5.3.9. The majority of responses were positive, with 81% of responses describing the charge
points as either straightforward or convenient, and a further 14% were neutral, describing
their experience as reasonable. Only 5% of responses were more negative, describing
some of their experiences as problematic. In the participant's own words, some of the
problems encountered when trying to recharge their electric vehicle included:

Access issues to charge point:

= City trial electric van parked (not charging) in Bay 1 preventing use.

= Parking space is minimal as | have a large saloon.

= There have been issues with non-electric vehicles using the bays for parking.
= Bicycles parked nearby preventing me reversing into the bay.

Charge point not conveniently located:
= There are no points in Shakespeare Tower car park so needs an extra trip

Technical faults/ limitations with the charge point:

= Takes overnight to charge.

= The instructions on screen are confusing and don’t update when charging is ‘on’. And the screen
shows charging in tiny numerals inconspicuously at the bottom of the screen. Difficult to check all
is well!

= Once it did not charge, but that was probably my fault

Administrative/ Management error:
= Key allocated to me was incorrect.

5.3.10. The nature of the responses given in terms of problems encountered underline that for the
most part the charge points themselves perform effectively. The only issues referenced that
relate to the charge points themselves are regarding the power rating (i.e. the slow
chargers require overnight charging to achieve a full charge), or secondary issues
regarding the display screen, and a possible user error.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 72 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 31 of 70



\\\I)

5.3.11. The remainder of the issues relate largely to access issues, with a number of users
encountering obstructions to accessing their charge point, issues with the size of the
parking bays, or a lack of charging points in the applicants’ usual car park. These issues
are within the remit of the parking management team as opposed to the charge points
themselves, as was the administrative error regarding the wrong key being allocated to a
user for their designated charge point.

Charging Times

5.3.12. The participants typical charging times are unusual relative to typical residential settings,

with as many vehicles
being charged during
the daytime as
overnight. This probably
relates to some of the
earlier findings whereby
typical vehicle trips were
not for commuting or
business travel, but
rather for leisure uses or
travelling to second
homes. In some cases,
participants park and
charge at the Barbican
during the day whilst at

work, and travel to a
second home in the

evening.

[ w el

Number of respondents

[y

QOvernight (10pm to 6 am)

Evening (6pm to 10 pm)

Daytime (6am to 6 pm)

Primary recharging times

5.3.13. To provide a snapshot of vehicle usage in the past week specifically, where respondents
are likely to be more accurate in recalling their activities, participants were also asked how
many miles they had driven in the last week.

Table 5-8 - Participants mileage in the past week (Summer 2018)

Charge Point Usage

Number of Participants

Percentage of Participants

Up to 10 miles

10 — 50 miles

51 — 100 miles

101 — 200 miles
More than 300 miles

| have not driven any miles

1

1

8%

8%

17%

33%

8%

25%

WSP
January 2019
Page 32 of 70

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

Page 73

Project No.: 70040803-
City of London Corporation



\\\I)

5.3.14. The results indicate a significant degree of variation in the miles travelled by Barbican EV

owners.

5.3.15. 58% (7) of participants drove fewer than 100 miles a week, including 3 respondents who did

not drive any miles.

5.3.16. There were a number of participants (41%, 5) however whose mileage was more typical of

average weekly vehicle mileage.

5.3.17. The participants responses indicative a slightly higher weekly mileage as compared to the
baseline survey responses in the Spring, where 30% of respondents had not driven any
miles, compared to 25% amongst the respondents in the Summer. It should though be
noted that the baseline survey was open to all Barbican residents, whereas the interim

survey was targeted at the pilot study participants.

5.3.18. Respondents were asked whether this was representative of how many miles they
ordinarily drive per week - 50% answered yes, 30% answered “No - | drove more miles than
| usually would” and 20% answered “No - | drove fewer miles than | usually would”. On
balance therefore, we can reasonably infer that the responses are broadly reflective of

typical mileage.

Intermediate or destination charging opportunities

5.3.19. 82% (9) participants were aware of some convenient intermediate or destination charging

opportunities they could have used over the course of the pilot project.

Table 5-9 - Participants usage of intermediate/ destination charge points in last month

(August/ September)

Charge Point Usage Number of Participants Percentage of Participants
Up to 3 times (once a month) 4 40%

3 to 5 times (roughly twice a 2 20%

month)

6 to 9 times (roughly once a 1 10%

week)

10 times or more (more than once 2 20%

a week)

Never 1 10%

5.3.20. The type of intermediate or destination charge points participants had available to them

were:
= Standard Charge point (3-7.5kW) 5 63%
= Fast Charger (11-22kW) 1 13%
= Rapid Charger (45kW+) 2 25%

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

Project No.: 70040803 Page 74
City of London Corporation

WSP
January 2019
Page 33 of 70



\\\I)

5.3.21. Respondents typically used these charge points to fully charge their vehicles. We
understand a number of the respondents have a charge point at their second homes, and
so some of these figures will include home charging. It also was not clear from the
responses whether a full charge was interpreted as topping up the vehicle until the battery
was charged to 76% or more of its capacity, or whether electricity 76-100% of the battery
capacities power had been drawn from the charge point.

= Full charge (76% or more) 5 56%
= Medium refill (34-75%) 2 22%
= Top up (33% or less) 1 11%
= Nothing 1 11%

5.3.22. Participants gave the following reason for using these charge points:

Opportunity Charging:

= Because | can: it is at a destination
= Convenience and inclusive parking
= Availability to top up

Second home with charge point:
= My main home in Buckinghamshire has one.
= car is based in oxford, periodic use in London

Necessary intermediate charging:
= Ran out of charge - longer journey
= To improve range

Range Anxiety

5.3.23. Participants were asked whether they have ever experienced range anxiety since the
Barbican’s charge points were installed - 83% (10) said no, 17% (2) said yes.

5.3.24. Whilst this figure is taken from a small sample size, this represents an improvement from
the baseline survey, where a quarter of respondents had encountered range anxiety. This
improvement may be attributable to the provision of the pilot scheme charge points, though
it should be noted it will also depend on other factors, such as trip lengths, and the precise
nature of the range anxiety.

5.3.25. Respondents were also asked whether throughout the pilot scheme to date, they had ever
found that, despite overnight charging, they did not have sufficient charge at the start of the
day to meet their needs. 83% (10) had not encountered such an issue, 17% (2) had, an
improvement on the baseline survey results (5.2.36) which showed 43% if respondents had
insufficient charge after overnight charging. Despite the improvement, this in combination
with the feedback on intermediate charging highlights the essential role of wider charging
infrastructure.

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 75 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 34 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

5.3.26. Participants were also invited to provide any other comments regarding the pilot scheme:

| have been allocated a dedicated
charging space, which is great.

4 )
My car is a plug-in hybrid that spends
more time in oxford than London.
Simplicity and flexibility (and not
necessarily a dedicated own point) is
needed.

J

There have been problems with
non-electric vehicles, especially
contractors, using the bays for
parking.
/ Having to use my own type 2

charging cable makes charging
cumbersome and time consuming,
as | have to unlock my car, unwind

the cable, plug in and the. Then
repeat the reverse process to move

the car. | have two children to load
into car in most cases, and this
k process can be quite taxing.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 76 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 35 of 70

| have a plugin hybrid, so range
is not a big issue. Most of my
local journeys are in EV mode




5.4.

Key findings

\\\I)

The majority of responses were positive, with 81% of responses describing the charge points as

either straightforward or convenient

Scheme well run, works well, enables more driving in EV mode for PHEVs
Issues encountered generally not with charge points themselves, access issues
Low usage - not used, or not used in electric mode (if hybrid)

Charged elsewhere — opportunity charging, second homes

Charging times unusual — equal split between daytime and evening

Very inconvenient to take the car to another car park to charge

Preference for tethered

Basic chargers - rather have a card to access the charge point than a simple key

ONE TO ONE INTERVIEWS

One-to-one interviews with stakeholders

5.4.1.

5.4.2.

One-to-one interviews were undertaken with a sample of the participating residents, as well

as a number of other stakeholders, including Barbican Estate officers. They also included a

representative from ZipCar.

These enabled us to explore in further detail their experiences, and to understand some

individual perspectives from each stakeholder group.

Table 5-10 — One-to-one Interviews — stakeholders and interview dates

Stakeholder

Interview Date

Resident 1

Resident 2

Resident 3

Resident 4

Barbican Estate Manager — Shaun Moore
Barbican Estate Head — Michael Bennet

Barbican Estate Car Park Management -
Muhammed Muhid

ZipCar - Jonathan Hampson

Chargernaster — Kevin Howle

22 August
2314 August
5th September
20t August
17t August
215t August

29t August

4th September

2nd November

WSP

January 2019
Page 36 of 70

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

Page 77 Project No.: 70040803-
City of London Corporation



g,) abed

\\\I)

Table 5-11 — Pilot Scheme Participant Interviews — Charge Point Users (Residents and Cars)

Interview
D'SCUSS'OH Resident 1 Resident 2 Resident 3 Resident 4 Car Club
Topics
Electric Vehicle Type | BMW i3 (BEV) BMW 225xe (PHEV) Mercedes e-350e (PHEV) | BMW X5 (PHEV) VW E-Golf x 2 (BEV)

Occupational Status

What is your mileage/
driving habits?

What are your charging

habits?

Full Time Employment

200 miles a week
10,600 miles annually

Commutes to the
Barbican

Live in Windsor,
hardly use car at all
from the Barbican —
25 miles door to door.
Park and charge at
Barbican and walk to

Retired

= 5,001 - 10,000 miles
annually

= Main home in
Oxfordshire, stays at
Barbican 3 nights a
week

= EVCP at Oxfordshire
home, charge
overnight and daytime

= Doesn’t use
intermediate/
destination EVCPs
often

= PHEV so don’t need

Retired

Typically, short
journeys (10-15 miles)
journeys around town
in electric mode

4,500 miles annually

Parks and leave the
vehicle plugged in
within their allocated
Barbican bay charging
over-night, could be
plugged in for several
days at a time.

Full Time Employment
Young Family

= 5,001 - 10,000 miles
annually

= Vehicle only does
around 10 miles on
battery. Adequate for
many trips.

= Charging point not
available in my regular
car park and
inconvenient using
allocated charge point
after every journey.

Car Club Operator

= Vehicle available for
booking by
members

= No car club vehicles
were operating from
the Barbican at the
time of the
interviews

= Elsewhere their E-
Golf vehicles are
parked and charged
in on-street bays.

= The challenge is
encouraging the
users to plug them
in rather than staff.

= They find user are
more likely to plug it

office. tou'a’\lli?t n;ggz ie;]nsszoor = Novelty soon wore off, in if the car is
quatty, ' so haven't used it plugged in when
much. collected.
Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 January 2019

City of London Corporation

Page 37 of 70



6/ abed

How did they charge
before the scheme?

What charge point are
you using?

What has your
experience been so

Polar scheme member
— used Rapid chargers
near Heathrow.

Never previously
charged at Barbican
via 3-pin plugs

3kW Charger
Lockable Key
Breton Car Park

Schemes been good
and fit for purpose
Experienced a
malfunction with a
point, contacted
Barbican Estate
Office.

Appreciates that it

Prior to the scheme
typically commuted
back home using
petrol engine
Charged at second
home.

Previously the nearest
EVCP were Smithfield
NCP, but these had
an issue with there
being no signal, so
could not see if
available/ working
remotely.

22kW Charger
Lockable Key
Cromwell Car Park

Not many issues,
works well

Knows to get in touch
with Estate team if
issue

A more general issue
is the size of parking

No charging option at
the Barbican prior to
the pilot.

First 9 months owned
cars ran in petrol and
charged up off that —
did plug into

Use EVCPs at
Sainsburys or
sometimes Park &
Rides, but only if on
route/ convenient as
not essential.

22kW Charger
Lockable Key
Cromwell Car Park

Schemes worked fine,
everyone’s been
responsive. Less likely
to charge elsewhere
now.

Locking/ unlocking
issues, but not too
bad. Cable has

Previously charged
elsewhere, and
travelled more miles
using petrol engine.

7kW Dual Charger
RFID Access
Bunyan Car Park

The equipment works
fine
Tethered cable would

\\\I)

Did not operate EVs
at the Barbican prior
to the scheme

7kW Dual Charger
RFID Access
Willoughby Car Park

N/A - at the time of
the interviews no
car club vehicles
were operating from
the Barbican

Bays made
available in Bunyan
Car Park were too
small — cars were

Page 38 of 70

? i bays — too small for jammed, then won’t :
s Err]c;\:;;ﬁzlfree larger vehicles charge. be preferable. only an inch apart,
Feels the charge Issue with parts of the Key operated, rather and car club
points deployed are car park being wet than connected so members are
quite restrained — in and potentially Chargemaster need to 0_ccaS|onaI d_nvers,
terms of numbers and unsuitable for EVCPs. reset it rather than car risks damaging
quality. park team. expensive new EVs.
WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Project No.: 70040803-

City of London Corporation



08 abed

\\\I)

What are your charging
preferences in terms of
fast, rapid (destination

or intermediate),
overnight, during day,
work etc?

What'’s your view in

terms of how barbican

should deliver these
charge points?

Slow chargers are fine
for residential
charging — 100%
charge on slow gives
160 miles, 100%
charge on rapid only
130 miles.

Dislikes using on-
street EVCPs, prefers
rapids for on-street
charging.

Feels allocated slow
chargers work well.
Payments for
electricity should on a
per kWhr basis.

Prefers charging via a
dedicated charge
point.

Fair way down from
flat so prefers
dedicated bay to
having to move the
vehicle.

Would be willing to
pay capital cost for
putting EVCP in.
Anticipates metering
to charge per kW
would add lots of cost,
so may be best to add
costs into parking
permits.

Process of dealing
with issues needs to
be refined.
Allocated parking
spaces in Cromwell
tower are incredibly
tight spaces.

Would be concerned if
charge points were
provided on a
communal scheme —
feels it wouldn’t work
well.

Would prefer to
charge via a dedicated
charge point.
Anticipates switching
to a BEV at some
point from a PHEV,
though would still only
need low charge
rates.

Quite happy to pay for
own point to have
unfettered access,
more convenient
Would prefer to pay
per kW hr, feels it
would be fairer as
power needs will differ

Would prefer to
charge via a dedicated
charge point.

Caris a PHEV so
even a regular 13A
socket would be OK.
Only use car when
needing to cart around
their young and their
clobber so place a
high premium on the
car being easily
accessible from the
flat, not in a
neighbouring car park.

Once charging points
are put into
Shakespeare | would
expect to be an
enthusiastic user

7Kw chargers are
fine, though less
good over
weekends

Could operate on
the basis of a fixed
cost per hour, or on
account, per kW.
Would be a bulk
user.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

Project No.: 70040803

City of London Corporation

WSP
January 2019
Page 39 of 70



T8 obed

Other Comments /

What else could be

done to promote EV
uptake?

Other residents are
well aware of pilot
scheme EVCPs
having been installed
— well publicised.
Feels take up of EVs
will continue to be
fairly slow however.

Feels pilot scheme
right thing to do.

City is making right
noises, but needs to
work with the Mayors
team.

Notes that an
increasing proportion
of Barbican parking is
utilised by non-
residents

Awareness raising -
Feels continuing to
promote that the
future will be EVs is
beneficial - lots of
people still worry
about range, whether
tech still improving,
many unaware of the
grant.

Feels increasing
parking charges are
driving people to not
replace their car, and
instead switch to
Zipcar.

Feels in the longer
term the value of flats
will fall if no EVCPS
are available given it
is in ULEZ, so now is
a good time to prepare

\\\I)

Would very much
like to offer EV car
club vehicles more
widely in the City,
but as it charges
business rates on
off-street parking
bays, which in the
City are very high,
rates, more than the
bay lease, they are
not commercially
viable.

Feel the City need
to take a joined
approach across
departments
Interested in utilising
any rapid chargers
in central London in
order to support
their Zipcar Flex
vehicles.

WSP
January 2019
Page 40 of 70

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

Project No.: 70040803-
City of London Corporation



\\\I)

Charge Point Hosts - Barbican Estate

5.4.3. In addition to the EV owner participating in the scheme, the hosts (the Barbican Estate
team) are a key stakeholder, and must be content that the charge points can be managed
and administered effectively, operationally and commercially, as a new function of the car
parks they manage.

5.4.4. The Barbican Estate representatives interview as part of the study were:

= Property Services Manager — responsible for overseeing contractors including the electrical
engineers who installed the charge points, and would install future charge points.

= Head of the Barbican Estates — responsible for heading the working parties with a strategic
decision-making function, including investment plans infrastructure such as charge points, and
pricing regimes.

= Estate Services Officer — responsible for providing administrative support as part of the car park
team, including processing applications and payment for parking spaces and charge point
maintenance.

5.4.5. The feedback provided by these staff is summarised below:
Charge point installations:

= Difficulties were encountered around the installations, particularly with UKPN regarding the
installation of meters, resulting in delays to the project. The main problem was finding the right
person to speak to push through the application, and the process took 5-6 months in total to
complete.

= They also required UKPN to advise on the available electrical supply. Their experience was that
the charge point supplier and their electrical engineers asked them what they wanted in terms of
charge points, and then determined the resultant electrical supply demand. The Barbican Estate
team then requested 100KVA from UKPN, with the cost of the upgrade paid by LEN project.

= They noted that a more joined up approach would have been preferable, whereby UKPN advised
on the available capacity, and the charge point supplier then sought to advise what could be
delivered within that, depending on the charge point types deployed. Otherwise, if all the charge
points were on at same time, it would have meant needing to upgrade the transformer.

Observations on the scheme to date:

= The team felt the scheme was going well, and noted they had anticipated issues, but there had in
fact been very low maintenance required generally.

= |t was noted there was a slight lack of scheme participants, as not all of the EVCPs are being
used.

Charge point maintenance/ responding to issues:

= Their experience was that generally the management and administration of the charge points had
generally been fine so far. There had been some minor issues, some of which they noted was
maybe their fault for not overseeing the installations more closely. Next time they would consider
having an external commissioning engineer to oversee the works.

= When issues have arisen, generally residents have contacted the LEN project team, who have in
turn re-direct residents to the car park team.

= Chargemaster have helped when needed, particularly with the installation, and when a resident
got their cable stuck in a lockable charger. They have found Chargemaster can generally

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 82 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 41 of 70



\\\I)

remotely check and often fix issues. On another occasion they asked the Barbican Estate team to
deactivate a point, but they were not initially sure how to, so it has been a learning curve.

Initial preferences in terms of charge point types and delivery models:

= |t was noted that many residents leave their cars parked overnight, and are not heavily used, so
felt lower powered units may be adequate, but were unsure and seeking guidance from this
study.

= The team would prefer all points are RFID and connected, as they have found these units are
much easier to administer, and Chargemaster can support these remotely.

= There were some concerns over how additional EVCPs might be funded and delivered beyond
the LEN project.

Some mixed views on how best to levy charge point user charges:

= With some preferences for PAYG/ per kwWh billing
= And others preferring for charges to be levied as quarterly surcharges on the existing permit
charges for EV bays over a standard bay.

Charge point application process:

= The parking team anticipate that residents would be required to fill out a parking application as
per the current process, but with additional sections for requesting an EVCP.

Other comments - use of car parks longer term, access arrangements

= Concerns were expressed over the long-term trend of falling car park occupancy (1-5% per year),
which poses challenges in terms of covering the overheads associated with operating and
maintaining the car parks.

= Staff advised of a reluctance from some residents to open up access to underutilised car park
spaces for alternative uses and revenue generation opportunities.

= Suggestion that future EV charging bays would be the width of 2 normal parking bays so as to
allow for access requirements to charging units and consideration of size of EVs. Follows the
precedence being built into future planning car park policy this year where disabled bays will be
the width of 2 car parking bays.

Key findings

= Scheme well received

= Low maintenance from host perspective

= Straight forwards for users

= Clear preference for dedicated bays

= Convenience is key — many of the residents EVs are PHEVS, so it may be a marginal decision to
charge or simply use the petrol engine. Inconvenient charge point access may discourage uptake
too in marginal cases where a prospective buyer is unsure on whether to commit to an EV.

= Satisfied with the charging rates (typically 3-7kW) of the existing charge points.

= Per kW hr charge preferred

= Price elastic, willing to pay for EVCP to install in order to secure dedicated unit

= Awareness raising need recognised to encourage further uptake

= Scheme well received, operated smoothly for the most part

= |ssues where EVCPs not connected units, hard to remote manage

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 83 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 42 of 70 City of London Corporation



5.5.

\\\I)

= Parking bay size to be reviewed — again, convenience is key, have spare capacity

= Car clubs offer potential for good revenue stream, bulk users

= Lessons learnt regarding the charge point installation, including establishing available capacity
with UKPN and then work within that where possible

= Plan to oversee the EVCP installations more closely, would consider having an external
commissioning engineer

= When issues have arisen, generally residents have contacted the LEN project team

= Parking team would prefer all points are RFID and connected

= Some concerns over how additional EVCPs might be funded and delivered beyond the LEN
project

WORKSHOP

5.5.1. The workshop for participants in the pilot study near the end of the 6-month period provided
an opportunity to feedback on the emerging findings, and invite feedback and capture any
additional observations or suggestions to factor into the final reporting and
recommendations.

5.5.2. Atotal of 12 attended the workshop, 4 of which were residents participating in the scheme.
5.5.3. A summary of the notes taken from the workshop is provided below:

General comments on the pilot scheme

= There was agreement amongst those participating that charge points provided had generally
worked well and proven fit for purpose.

= Others attending who were in the process of purchasing an EV, or were considering doing so
were interested to hear the experiences of existing EV owners.

= Discussion over the necessity of installing charge points rather than a series of 3-pin plugs.

Issues encountered by participating residents

= Some issues with charge point bays occasionally being blocked — including by the City Post Van,

=  Some minor issues regarding faulty or unclear display screen instructions on the charge point
units.

= A charging cable was jammed and stuck in one of the lock and key charge points.

= Discussion over issues with the size of car park bays being too small for many larger new
vehicles.

Feedback received regarding additional considerations for future roll-out of charge points

= Some felt charge point users would benefit from a few more instructions initially

= There was interest from some residents in utilising the government grants for home chargers in
installing future charge points. It was confirmed that the LEN project team have previously
confirmed this is possible in the context of the Barbican.

= A City of London Corporation Wi-Fi programme that is currently being rolled out was discussed
should it be helpful in enabling charge points in basements not currently accessible by mobile or
Wi-Fi signals.

= Some would prefer tethered charge points for the added convenience they offer.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 84 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 43 of 70



5.6.

\\\I)

CHARGE POINT USAGE AND ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION

The total electricity consumption through the charge points by electric vehicles participating

5.6.1.
in the pilot was almost exactly 3 Megawatts (MW), or 3,003kW, over the 6-month pilot.

5.6.2. This equates to an average of 1.33kW per participant per day.®

However, there was significant degree of variation in the electricity consumed across each

5.6.3.
of the five car parks, and in turn across each of the participants.

Figure 6.2 and Table 6.12 below demonstrate how, for example, electricity usage in Bretton
Car Park was much higher (3.6kW per day on average per participant), as compared to
Willoughby House Car Park, which was only (0.19kW per do on average).

5.6.4.

Figure 5-2 — Charge Point Electricity Consumption by Car Park

1400

1200
1000
800
600
400
200

—______—_—-
0

$333372IITIIER8888333

I A dddea g3 AL gg

s Braton s Bunyan Cromwell Thomas More s \Nijlloughby

8 Average derived by dividing total electricity consumption by participants, then by the average
number of days participants were engaged in the pilot.

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
Project No.: 70040803-

January 2019 Page 85
Page 44 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

Table 5-12 — Electricity Consumption per Car Park and Participant

Car Park Charge Point Sockets Participants Average per Average per
Units participant participant per
over period day (kW)
(kW)
Breton 9 9 2 657 3.60
Bunyan 3 6 3 27.9 0.20
Cromwell 8 3 2 2445 1.34
Thomas More 2 4 3 329 2.32
Willoughby 5 8 5 25.86 0.19
Total 22 30 15 200.2 1.33

5.6.5. Interestingly, Breton House Car Park features one of only 4 BEVs to feature in the pilot, and
the only BEV to have featured throughout the full 6-months of the pilot, as the others joined
the programme later.

5.6.6. The other car park to sustain higher levels of electricity consumption per EV was Thomas
More — which featured PHEVSs, but also the Royal Mail E-Crafter (BEV).

5.6.7. ltisless clear why usage in Willoughby is so low, although of the vehicles listed are the
ZipCar car club vehicles, which were late being deployed and so were only active for the
latter period of the trial.

How does this compare?

5.6.8. An average electricity consumption of 1.33kW per day is a very low figure (15-20%) when
compared to other more mature EV markets, such as Norway, where their experience is
that 7-10kW per day is a typical usage rate, including central urban locations.

5.6.9. 7-10kW per day equates to 30-50 electric miles per day. The Barbicans 1.5-2kW per day
figure equates to around 7-10 miles per day.

5.6.10. Whilst this is a helpful benchmark against which to compare these usage levels, it is an
imperfect comparison for a number of reasons.

5.6.11. In Norway the ratio of BEVs to PHEV (approximately 60/40%°) is far higher than in the UK
(approximately 30/70%), where the PHEV is more dominant amongst the existing fleet and
sales. BEVs have large batteries and no alternative means of propulsion, so would be
expected to consume more electricity.

® https://insideevs.com/norway-experienced-minor-decrease-of-plug-in-car-sales-in-july/

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 86 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 45 of 70



\\\I)

5.6.12. Furthermore, in Norway, the average daily mileage of EV drivers is around 30-40 miles, in
the UK the average daily mileage is 21.4 miles. This figure will be considerably lower for
Barbican residents, as seen in section 5.6.

5.6.13. The electricity consumption and charge point usage figures are significant because they
can provide a source of revenues against which the high initial capital costs of installing the
charge points can be paid down over time. But delivery models such as this are typically
reliant on a reasonably reliable base level of charging activity. Business models and funding
options are continually evolving in this regard, but at the time of writing we would anticipate
many such models requiring at least 4kW per day.

5.6.14. The reasons for the low levels of charge point usage evidenced in these figures can be
explained through the survey and interview findings reported in sections 5.2-5.5, including:

= Low Mileage, due to the very central location of the Barbican.

= High proportion of PHEVs amongst the participating vehicles (though this is reflective of the UK
average), and lesser reliance on electricity as a means of propulsion.

= Alternative charging locations — particularly at second homes

= Some residents charge points are inconveniently located, and so they are less inclined to use it,
particularly if it is not essential (PHEV or alternative charging options).

5.6.15. A further consideration is that across the individual use cases of each participant there is a
significant degree of variation, and the small sample size means that the particular traits of
each has a larger bearing on the average per kW figure derived. Additionally, as the charge
points and the electricity have been made freely available to the participants for at least the
duration of the pilot, the individuals are not invested in the same way in getting their
money’s worth from the charge point, in the same way that they would be if they had
invested in a charge point and it fulfilled all their specifications.

5.6.16. The table below illustrates the variance in electricity usage across 3 participating residents.

Table 5-13 - Electricity Consumption — Barbican Reference Cases

Electricity Vehicle Daily electricity | EV miles per EV miles per EV miles per
Consumption consumption day week year
Higher BMW i3 (BEV) 3.60 kW 13.7 95.8 4,980
(Resident 1)
Average BMW 225XE 1.34 kW 5.1 35.6 1,853
(Resident 2) (PHEV)
Lower BMW X5 0.11 kW 0.4 3.0 156
(Resident 3) (PHEV)
Key Findings

= Low levels of electricity usage

= Most have PHEVs so are not critically reliant on it them

= Low mileage

= Several participants have second homes - commute in, park and charge

= Emerging theme is a preference for convenience over speed, rather not have to move car

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 87 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 46 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

= Preferences for pricing mixed but generally per kW hr

= A key driver for purchasing EVs is the ULEZ

= Some preference for tethered units

= RFID access cards preferred to key operated

= Concerns around bay dimensions

= Barbican is a special use case - central London location

= Small sample size means that the particular traits of each has a larger bearing on the average
per kW figure derived.

= Charge points and the electricity have been made freely available to the participants for at least
the duration of the pilot, the individuals are not invested in the same way in getting their money’s
worth from the charge point, in the same way that they would be if they had invested in a charge
point and it fulfilled all their specifications.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 88 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 47 of 70



\\\I)

FORECASTING DEMAND FOR ELECTRIC VEHICLES AT THE
BARBICAN

6.1.1. In order to plan how the Barbican can most effectively deliver charging infrastructure to
support a transition to electric vehicles, it is important to understand the likely extent of
demand and the timescales over which this unfolds, to determine a requirement for charge
points.

The Macro Picture of UK EV Uptake

6.1.2. From a low base, electric vehicles sales have grown rapidly in the UK. There are an
increasing number of models on the market (120), with improving battery range (over 200
miles in mid-price range), falling purchase costs, a new pre-owned market, and a fast-
developing public charging ecosystem (18,685 charge points)*°.

6.1.3. The latest sales data at the time of writing (November 2018) shows electric vehicles
registrations increased by 30% in November 2018 compared with last year — and there are
now 187,000 ULEVs registered in the UK. The average annual market share of ULEVS in
new vehicles sales is now 2.5%, compared to 1.9% in 2017.

Electric car registrations (UK) 2016 - 2018 aer)-(tee ncar’
10,000 = a2 a5%
4.0%
3.5%
3.0%
25%
2.0%
1.5%
1.0%
0.5%
0.0%
5 dp“ o‘-"#\’é\ﬁ '?.\"‘} ’j‘v‘ {\; 6"‘;\\.) > \o\,{‘v&x‘* . o‘}:{“‘ "'S\oé:é\'«@«?'\:b ".x: ¢.\;’_‘s"\°«~° \o\,»‘;&x:‘ q\‘o‘:’{x d..\"
10 https://www.nextgreencar.com/electric-cars/statistics/
WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 89 Project No.: 70040803-

Page 48 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

6.1.4.

6.1.5.

6.1.6.

This is despite the market turbulence and uncertainty in the wider economy. The
Government announced changes to OLEVs Plug-in Car Grant in October 2018, which saw
grants for PHEVs (previously £2.5k) removed entirely, and grants for BEVs reduced from
£4.5k to £3.5k. Many in the industry have felt this was a premature withdrawal of funding,
and whilst time will tell, this initial sales data is encouraging. There is also the economic
uncertainty posed by Brexit, and due to concerns about further restrictions and charges
being levied on diesel vehicles. These factors in combination have contributed to an overall
fall in vehicles sales by 3%, with diesel vehicles continuing to see significant falls in sales,
down 30% in 2018. All of which only serves to underline the relative robustness of demand
for EVs in the face of market turbulence.

However, one of the biggest challenges to more rapid EV sales growth now increasingly
stems from a lack of availability of the models available to buy in the UK, which is
constraining the market.

The 2018 National Grid forecasts for national EV growth estimate up to 70% of vehicles in
the UK (25m) could be EVs by 2035, and 100% (36m) by 2040.

Localised Demand

6.1.7.

6.1.8.

6.1.9.

6.1.10.

It is important to note that EV growth is likely to continue to vary considerably spatially. The
proportion of ULEVs amongst registered private cars in City of London (3.2% of fleet in
2016) is significantly higher than the London average (0.4%), which is in turn higher than
the UK average (0.34%), reflecting the unique nature of the City, which must be factored
into planning infrastructure planning for the Barbican.

There is also known to be a high level of demand and interest in EVs amongst Barbican
residents, as reported in section 5.2, with 91% of respondents who were considering
buying/ replacing a vehicle saying they would consider purchasing a ULEV, and a survey of
residents undertaken in 2014 finding that that 150 residents would consider buying an EV,
with 22 actively planning to do so.

For the purposes of establishing a baseline figure, it is estimated that there are currently 20
ULEVs amongst the vehicles permitted to park within the Barbican. 15 of which participated
in the pilot or baseline surveys.

The plans to potentially introduce a pricing mechanism based in part on vehicle emissions
would serve to further incentivised a switch to ULEVs amongst vehicle owners, in addition
to schemes like the Ultra-low Emission Zone, and ULEV only streets such as the scheme
being consulted on for nearby Moor Lane.

Declining car park usage and car ownership

6.1.11.

A further notable trend to account for is the steady decline in car ownership and car park
utilisation by Barbican residents, with 332 (34%) fewer residents parking compared to 1998.
Over this period this equates an average annual reduction in resident parking of 1.9%. This
has though been partly off-set by a growing number of "sold bays", which are sold as long-
term car bay agreements as opposed to regular short-term permit renewals - increasing by
201 (264%) since 1998, mainly due to new Heron development with over 180 car bays as
part of the agreement with Planning and the City.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 90 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 49 of 70



\\\I)

6.1.12. The following assumptions have therefore been applied to forecast EV growth:

= Residential Parking Bay Lets will continue to decline by 1.9% per annum

= Commercial Parking Bay Lets will remain unchanged, due to advice from City Planning regarding
commercial car parking.

= Sold Parking Bays (Long Term car bay agreements) will continue to decline by 2.1% per annum

= Overall this equates to an annual average decline of 1.8% in vehicles parking at the Barbican

6.1.13. The Future of City Car Parks reports 25-year strategy will considers potential decreases in
volume of traffic, and the demands from other users, delivery hubs and cargo bicycles,
indicative of the broader trend for roadspace reallocation away for the private car in the
centres of major urban areas.

Forecast EV growth at the Barbican

6.1.14. The table below includes projections for EV growth at the Barbican.

Table 6-1 — Forecast EV uptake scenarios in the Barbican

Number of EVs Share of EVs
Total Vehicles Parked
Low Mid High Low Mid High
2018 926 20 2.2%
2019 908 23 24 25 2.6% 2.6% 2.7%
2020 891 27 29 31 3.0% 3.2% 3.5%
2021 874 32 55 40 3.6% 4.0% 4.5%
2022 858 37 42 51 4.3% 4.9% 5.9%
2023 841 44 51 66 5.2% 6.1% 7.8%
2024 825 52 63 86 6.3% 7.6% 10.4%
2025 810 62 78 112 7.7% 9.6% 13.9%
2026 794 74 96 148 9.3% 12.1% 18.6%
2027 779 89 119 195 11.4% 15.2% 25.0%
2028 765 106 147 248 13.9% 19.3% 32.4%
2029 750 127 183 300 17.0% 24.4% 40.0%
2030 736 153 228 351 20.8% 31.0% 47.7%
WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page o1 Project No.: 70040803-

Page 50 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

6.1.15. In addition to the assumptions set out earlier regarding the number of vehicles likely to be
parking at the Barbican in future years, these figures assume the following EV uptake rates:

= Average renewal/ replacement rate of vehicle fleet — 7% per annum
= Between 5-7.5% of new sales are ULEVs in 2019, rising incrementally to between 50-100% by
2030.

6.1.16. These are high level forecasts and do not account for variables such as the nature of
charge point provision at the Barbican.

Key Findings

= Forecast EV numbers parking in the Barbican are anticipated to grow from 20 in 2018 to:
= between 27-31 (3 to 3.5%) by 2020;

= 62-112 by 2025 (7.7 to 13.9%); and

= 153-351 (20.8 to 47.7%) by 2030.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 92 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 51 of 70



\\\I)

REVIEW OF CHARGING TECHNOLOGIES AND TRENDS

7.1.

CHARGE POINT TYPES

7.1.1. There are range of charge point technologies, with a number of variants and options with
each subset. The charge point types for consideration in the context of residents parking at
the Barbican are:

Slow Chargers

7.1.2. Domestic three-pin sockets — the power output is therefore limited to the rating of the plug
at around 3kW. EV charging from a 3-pin socket is typically down-rated to only draw 10
Amps from a standard garage radial circuit which equates to about 2.4kW.

7.1.3. The typical charging cable for standard charging possesses a three-pin plug at the
infrastructure end with a Mode 2 device, which communicates the requirement to initiate
charging the EV. The other end of the cable possesses the correct plug to connect to the
vehicle. This is usually one of either the five pin J1772 or seven pin Type 2 plugs.

7.1.4. The typical standard charging time for replenishing a 24kwWh EV battery from 0-100% State
of Charge (SOC) is eight to twelve hours. This depends on the efficiency of the conversion
of AC to DC power by the vehicle onboard converter (the battery is DC) and the power
down-rating of the Mode 2 device. For example; a vehicle onboard AC to DC converter with
85% efficiency and a power input of 2.4kW will take approximately twelve hours to charge a
24kWh battery.

Standard Chargers

7.1.5. A standard charging unit typically found in an apartment block like the Barbican will possess
Type 2 seven pin sockets and provide 3.6kW or 7kW power output, at 16 or 32 Amps,
single or three phase AC.

7.1.6. 3.6kW or 7kW chargers will usually fully charge a 24kWh battery in six or four hours,
respectively. The actual time charging will depend on the efficiency of the vehicle AC to DC
converter. The charger communicates with the EV via the charging cable to initiate
charging. This is termed Mode 3 charging. There is no Mode 2 device in the cable
assembly.

7.1.7. Fast charging from a 7kW, 11kW or 22kW socket to a vehicle with a 24kWh battery that has
a suitably rated 7kWor 22kW onboard charger AC to DC converter will take approximately
four hours. The actual time charging will depend upon the efficiency of the onboard AC to
DC converter. Please note that cables with a lower power rating than the charge point and
the EV will cause charging to take place at the cable’s rated current carrying capacity and
will increase the time charging.

Fast Chargers

7.1.8. Atypical fast charging unit will possess Type 2 seven pin sockets and provide 11kW or
22kW power output at 16 or 32 Amps three phase AC.

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 03 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 52 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

7.1.9. Fast charging from a 11kW or 22kW socket to a vehicle with a 24kWh battery that has a
suitably rated 22kW onboard charger AC to DC converter will take approximately one to two
hours.

Rapid Chargers

7.1.10. Rapid charging is typically from a charge point with tethered plugs that can provide a
significantly higher power output than both fast and standard charging and can generally
charge an EV to 100% state-of-charge (SOC, i.e. a fully charged battery) in an hour or less.

7.1.11. AC three phase rapid charging is typically at 43kW power output (at 63 Amps per phase
from a three phase AC supply) utilising a tethered Type 2 plug attached to a charge point
that resembles a forecourt petrol pump.

7.1.12. DC rapid charging currently provides 20kW, 44kW, 48kW or 50kW power output. The
charging unit possesses the power electronics to convert AC to DC current at the correct
level for the vehicle traction battery (as opposed to the vehicle onboard AC to DC converter
used in AC standard, AC fast or AC rapid charging).

Charge point features and additional considerations

7.1.13. Charge points include a number of sub-component parts and features to be considered,
including:

= Socket or Tethered — a tethered charge point refers to the charging cable being integrated into
the unit, rather than featuring a socket for the user to plug a cable into. This can be preferable for
home charging, to save the user having to remove their cable and plug-in each end every time
they park.

= Single or Dual chargers — some suppliers offer dual chargers, whereby a single unit includes
two sockets that can be used simultaneously. This can be a cost-effective approach for multi-
occupancy dwellings, when positioned between each bay.

= Smart chargers —from July 2019 all newly installed home EV charge points must feature 'smart’
(communication enabled) technology to receive government grant funding. Dumb chargers (non-
communicating) will no longer be supported by the grant. The move is part of the UK
Government's Road to Zero strategy, to enable home units to be remotely accessed, and capable
of both sending and receiving signals, with the potential to dramatically reduce the load during
peak times on the National Grid as EV uptake increases, minimising the cost of charging for
users, and the price of infrastructure upgrades for network operator. Smart chargers also enable
charge scheduling.

= Scalability — a key consideration is ensuring that beyond the initial tranche of charge points
installed, additional points can be added later, in line with demand. It is advisable to at least plan
for 2-3 years ahead, and 5 years or more if the host is being more ambitious. If the first units that
are installed are dumb sockets rather than smart chargers, and not able to optimise their use of
the available electricity supply (i.e. are reliant on static load management, which divides available
supply on the basis all units may be charging), this will significantly limit the number of additional
charge points that can be added, before a costly upgrade will be required to the grid connection.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 94 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 53 of 70



= Load Balancing —
related to the previous ]
point around scalability is ,
the critical function of v o :
load balancing, whereby \ = Z
the charging station :
automatically divides the - o @ ﬁ
available power over the i “’ Fosd
vehicles that are
charging. The charger
analyses the available Total Consumption .,
capacity and how much
power the vehicles
require. Subsequently, ) ©
the smart charger —— 3
distributes the power
based on the maximum
capacity of the NewMotion Dynamic Load Balancing -
connection. This enables  httos://newmotion.com/en GB/Dvnamic-Power-Solutions-for-Home
a faster charging when
fewer points are in use, but enables the available power to be rationed out more widely when
more vehicles are plugged-in, potentially delaying the requirement to make expensive
investments to upgrade the grid connection. Load balancing the power usage can reduce the
load by around two-thirds relative to a static load managed installation. Typically charge points
would not lower the power any further than 2.2kW. It should be noted some operators charge
additional operating fees for this function. Dynamic load balancing/ active load management
effectively enables charge points to account for the power supply of the whole building, and utilise
the available spare power

= Passive cabling and back plates — for multi-occupancy dwelling like the Barbican, it may be
desirable to pre-install the cabling/ducting/tray to an isolator, MCB board*! and RCD board*? for a
number of additional parking spaces. The space is then ready to simply have a charge point
installed and activated. A number of the charge point suppliers also offer back plates for the
chargers to be slotted onto, and include a cap to protect the supply.

11 Miniature circuit breaker (MCB) - An overcurrent-protection circuit breaker with standardised
current ratings and tripping characteristics, which can be installed in close proximity in consumer
units and distribution boards.

12 Residual current device (RCD), also residual current circuit breaker (RCCB) - A circuit breaker
triggered by non-matching currents in line and neutral wires (i.e., electrical power is passing to
earth). Mandatory for most circuits as of 17th Edition regulations.

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page o5 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 54 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

= Electricity supply — in order to be scalable such that the number of charge points can be
increased in line with demand, in a site the size of the Barbican a 68kVA 3-Phase 100A supply
will be required in each of the car parks.

= Charge Point Access — a number of options are available for accessing and locking the charge
points, including RFID cards/ fobs/ lock and key and via Apps. Some suppliers offer Apps with
NFC (Near Field Communication), enabling a phone or a registered payment card to function as
a key, rather than carrying an additional card. Others offer features whereby if no signal is
available the user can still plug-in and activate once they have signal.

= Single phase or 3-phase - Most UK homes have a single-phase supply, unlike much of northern
and central continental Europe, limiting the scope for domestic charging to 7.4kw single phase
charging. Domestic connections can be upgraded to three-phase but this can be costly. Larger
flats or commercial buildings like the Barbican need more electricity, so will have a three-phase
supply. At present there are relatively few vehicles that charge 11-22kW (Renault Zoe, and LEVC
TX (black cab) and Tesla’s). Beyond enabling higher A/C power outputs, 3-phase supply also
supports phase balancing.

= Communications — for charge points to be smart they must enable communications, as EVCPs
communicate frequently (every 3 seconds in some cases). This is typically achieved using Wi-Fi
connections. Alternative options include GSM (Sim Card) 3G to Wi-Fi routers, though as the
number of charge points increases the data costs of this approach make it more costly option. A
further option is to run a LAN/ Cat-5/ Cat-5e cable to the Wi-Fi router. Effective communication
over Cat5 cable is limited to 80m. Power Line Communication (PLC) are another option, and
useful for connecting to a small number of units out of Wi-Fi range, though there are limitations to
this approach for more than around 20 units.

= Communications back-up contingency protocol — it is important that the charge points have a
backstop measure and continue to function if their communications systems fails, in most cases
they simply revert to dumb chargers and deploy static load management. Some charger points
maintain a downloaded list of enabled users locally.

= Phase balancing — in some case a charge point can offer a phase balancing feature, whereby
single and three phase supplies can be used at the same time via a balancing algorithm, which
determines whether a vehicle can support an 11kW charge, or whether it only support single
phase A/C charges, in which case it will switch supply to that. These units select which of 3-
phases to use, and use the one with most capacity.

= Priority charging - few chargers currently offer this feature as there is currently low market
demand, but several are developing this to future proof their units. This function would allow
users to opt to perhaps pay a slight premium for a faster charge, or conversely to select an eco-
charge, at a discounted rate, if they know they don’t urgently require an additional charge. Other
options for achieving a similar outcome can be to differentiate the charge point usage and charge
rate with differential pricing.

= Warranties — typical warranties on charge points are 3-5 years. There is limited data on expected
life spans of charge point units due to the relatively recent emergence of the technologies, but
provided they are well maintained would be expected to last 10 years.

= Maintenance — most charge points are offered with managed maintenance, and are self-
monitoring, notifying the supplier if there is a fault. The ability for suppliers to conduct remote
checking and proactive maintenance is an important consideration, including a remote reset
option, which can often resolve minor issues. Installation faults would be the responsibility of the
installer to remedy. It is also important to establish whether 24/7 customer support is provided.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 96 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 55 of 70



7.2.

\\\I)

= Operating costs — charge point suppliers typically levy a modest service charge for managing
the back-office systems, rolling out software updates, and fulfilling maintenance and support
functions. These costs can either be included with the usage charges to users, or picked up on a
rolling basis by the host. These costs range from 1.5 pence per kW of charge, or a monthly fee
per charger of £3-10 a month.

= Management controls and data access — the charge point platforms can offer the host access
to all EVCPs via portal, to see real-time usage, and offer controls to restrict access, i.e. to
residents only, or approved visitors, or to manage price setting. Some systems also allow the
host to set a grace period to sign in, i.e. if residents can't log in in basement due to Wi-Fi their
charge commences for a time limited period.

= Government Grants — The Governments Electric Vehicle Homecharge Scheme (EVHS)
provides £500 off the cost of purchasing and installing a home charging point, with funding
committed until March 2020, or until 30,000 installations in 2019/20 have been supported,
whichever is sooner. OLEV require applicants to prove they own their space. Residents at the
Barbican do not own their parking bays so this funding would not be available.

= Falling charge point costs - the EV charging infrastructure market is increasingly competitive,
with significant investments and a series of new entrants to the UK market each wanting to grow
or establish market share, and it is expected charge point costs will fall significantly in view of the
increasing economies of scale and market competitiveness. Though in the short term as chargers
shift from predominantly dumb sockets to smart chargers with added functionality unit costs are
likely to increase relative to previous installations.

FUTURE CHARGING DEVELOPMENTS

Ultra-rapid public charge points

7.2.1. Ultra-rapid public charge points are expected to be rolled out in greater numbers from 2019.
7.2.2. 100 kW units are already being installed, and there are also plans for 150 kW ultra-rapids,

which are effectively expected to become the new ‘standard’ rapid charge point. A number
of the newest generation of EVs can all charge at between 100 kW and 150 kW.

7.2.3. In addition to which the pan-Europe “lonity*®” network of 350 kW CCS chargers is due to
begin being deployed in the UK in 2019. Though at present, only the Porsche Taycan (due
to be launched in 2019) has 350 kW charging capability.

Vehicle to Grid (V2G)

7.2.4. V2G enables certain EVs to feed electricity back into a home, workplace, or grid, when
demand is at its highest, before then charging at off-peak times during the day or night. In
effect using an EV as a portable energy storage system, enabling the user to generate
revenues through energy arbitrage and peak shaving. Whilst many consider V2G charging

13 https://ionity.eu/

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 97 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 56 of 70 City of London Corporation


https://ionity.eu/

\\\I)

is still a few years away from being commercially viable, it may only be a matter of a year or
two years before this technology begins to be deployed.

Inductive charging

7.2.5. The wireless system uses the principle of electromagnetic induction. A magnetic field
generated by an alternating current in a primary coil (the charging pad) induces a current in
a nearby secondary coil (the EV). The charging pads can be embedded within parking
bays.

7.2.6. Inductive charging technologies have been around for a number of years, and the issue has
always been cost, due a lack of standardisation and interoperability. Meaning a bespoke kit
is required for each vehicle type, which does not come as standard on vehicles.

7.2.7. The market is beginning to catch up with the technology in this area however, and in the
medium term they may begin to be more prevalent for off-street charging.
—— R

7.2.8. A US supplier called Plugless sells wireless chargers
for the Tesla Model S, BMW i3, Nissan Leaf and first-
generation Chevrolet Volt. These cost between £880-
£2,100 and deliver a 7.2kW charge. The Plugless
system includes two parts; the charger placed on the
floor, and a power receiver which attaches to the car -
and requires professional installation.

7.2.9. BMW began selling a wireless charging pad as an
optional extra for its 530e iPerformance hybrid in late
2018. This system connects to a regular power outlet and feeds the car with electricity
when it is parked in the right position (as directed by instructions on the infotainment
display). The vehicles 9.5kWh battery can be charged in 3.5 hours.

7.2.10. The Qualcomm Halo has been available since 2012, and is how able to charge at up to
22kW with 90% efficiency, meaning just 10% is lost across the air gap.

Battery Swap

7.2.11. Battery swap technology attracted a lot of attention
and investment earlier in the 2010s, with BetterPlace
investing significant sums launching trial networks in
a handful of countries globally. However, the
operation filed for bankruptcy in 2013, and ever since
has been widely regarded as a technological dead
end.

7.2.12. Nonetheless, a number of innovative companies,
including Tesla and NIO, are still exploring battery LS
swap technologies ecosystems. In part because as EV ranges increase and batteries get
larger, ultra-rapid charging becomes more challenging.

7.2.13. The key challenges are likely to continue to be the significant cost of battery swap stations,
and of establishing a sufficiently standardised and readily removable battery across enough

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 08 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 57 of 70



7.3.

\\\I)

models to sustain the business model. The battery is a very high value component of the
EV, so would necessitate careful safeguarding and quality assurance.

Mobile Charging

7.2.14. In 2018 BP invested in US-based manufacturer N
FreeWire Technologie, the founder of the Mobi mobile (m“ Aw‘rﬁ ¥ 4
charger units. The units are pre-charged, then :
wheeled over to the vehicle in need of charging. Their
models include a 15kW and 50kw DC model.

7.2.15. The most likely application for these units are as part
of a concierge service, and in workplaces

FUTURE VEHICLE DEVELOPMENTS

7.3.1. The number of electric vehicles available has expanded significantly in recent years, and
most mainstream car makers now offer an EV model, with 100 fully- or part-electric vehicles
available to buy or lease in the UK. This includes all vehicle classes from superminis to
SUVs, and sports cars to people carriers.

7.3.2. The notable trends amongst the new models coming to market and upcoming launches are
the increasing batteries capacities and capabilities to support faster charger rates.

7.3.3. The average battery size of planned BEV releases has risen to 68kW, relative to the current
average of 25kW.

7.3.4. Based on our reviews of planned new EV model launches over the coming years, the
majority of future models facilitate a maximum A/C charge of 11kW, and many post 2019
launches support ultra rapid charging.

Key Findings

= 7kW dedicated charges are most suitable based no stakeholder preferences, dwell times and
mileage. Convenience of not needing to move the car.

= Rapid chargers would require resident to move vehicles - risk that someone may use the EVCP
when it's not their turn, block it, resulting in neighbourly disputes and potentially requiring
intervention by the host. The anxiety of this scenario potentially unfolding may discourage them
from switching to EV.

= Fast Chargers are not necessary given the dwell times, and few vehicles currently support them.

= 3.5kW likely to be adequate for long time based on low mileage, but pending findings of available
supply, it is worthwhile future proofing with 7kW. The notable trends amongst the new models
coming to market and upcoming launches are the increasing batteries capacities and capabilities
to support faster charger rates.

= Residents would value being provided the option of tethered cables or sockets

= Chargers must be Smart, with RFID access or alike, and have the capability to support load
balancing, essential for scaling.

= New charging innovations should be monitored but are not currently mainstream options.

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 99 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 58 of 70 City of London Corporation



7.4.

\\\I)

CHARGE POINT COSTINGS AND DELIVERY OPTIONS

7.4.1. The emerging user requirements and preferences from the pilot study were taken forward
to inform a market engagement exercise with 5 charge point suppliers. The table below
summarises the indicative capital and operating cost ranges at the time of writing.

Table -7.1 Charge point cost ranges (November 2018)

Indicative Capex and Opex Costs Low Average High
Capital Costs

Charging unit and installation cost £1,500 £2,000 £3,000
Operating Costs

Annual maintenance £0 £25 £50
Back office, data connection/collection fee £0 £36 £150
Passive Cabling

Cabling, ducting etc cost per parking bay £150 £300 £1,000

Installation of new/ upgraded power supplies

Installation of sub-main cable to car park from
the main UKPN distribution board with sub- £0 £9,490%° £10,900%
distribution board, metering, MPAN registration.

7.4.2. There are a number of payment models available for delivering charge point infrastructure,
which can be broadly summarised as:

= Charge points purchased by the Barbican Estate - with costs recouped to a greater or lesser
degree from the resident. Potentially delivered in batches on an ad-hoc basis when funding
grants like the LEN are available.

= Enabling works/ cabling funded by the Barbican Estate, charge points purchased by the
Barbican Estate with costs recovered from residents — which can be installed rapidly, with the
resident’s permit cost including a surcharge to pay down the cost of the installation over an
agreed period (i.e. 3 years).

14 Based on a supply already being in place and no requirement to upgrade (i.e. as in the 5 car
parks in the Barbican with charge points already installed).

15 Based on average costs when installing the charge points across the 5 Barbican car parks

16 Based on highest cost when installing the charge points across the 5 Barbican car parks

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 100 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 59 of 70



\\\I)

= Fully funded options — with initial capital costs borne by the supplier, and the resident enters
into a contract and pays down the capital costs over time.

= Supplier Offers/ Bulk Discounting — as part of wider commercial agreement with the City, some
suppliers would offer to deploy an initial tranche of charge points at their own cost, and/ or offer
discounts on additional charge point purchases, but would likely entail exclusivity agreements,
additional sites for charge points beyond the Barbican.

Charge points purchased by the Barbican Estate

7.4.3. This approach is the most common approach to date, as installations at multi-occupancy
dwellings are generally fairly small scale, and led by the estate management/ facilities
team. In the case of the Barbican, this approach has been taken to date, utilising specific
funding made available through the LEN programme.

7.4.4. In order to roll out additional charge points in this manner the Barbican would either have
to:

= Secure additional funding (i.e. via funds such as the Mayor’s Air Quality Fund);
= Fund them directly as investment programme in the asset; or
= Recoup some or all of the costs from the resident.

7.4.5. If we take the average cost of around £2,000 per charge point installation, this could for
example be paid down by the resident as:

= A surcharge on the parking permit - for example the resident would enter into a 3-year contract
and pay £83.33 per quarter if they sought to recoup 50% of the cost.

= A surcharge on electricity usage of, for example, 5 pence per kW (on top of the 14p per kW
domestic rate) would entail a long pay-back period. It would also be subject to the usage levels of
the user, which as we have seen in the monitoring study for the Barbican are generally very low.

7.4.6. This option would appear to be best suited to initial smaller scale installations, such as the
Barbican pilot, but in the medium term as the number of charge points required increases,
would saddle the Barbican Estate with high upfront capital costs. The exception to this
being when funding awards such as the LEN become available, and can be used to deliver
a further tranche of charge points.

Positives Negatives
= Potentially a simple process to = High upfront costs borne by Barbican
administer, working within existing Estate, with long payback periods

payment processes for permits.

= Potential to secure bulk discounts

Enabling works/ cabling funded by the Barbican Estate, charge points purchased by
the Barbican Estate with costs recovered from residents

7.4.7. The Barbican Estate could invest in preparing a number of bays within each car with the
necessary cabling/ducting/tray to an isolator, MCB board and RCD board for a number of
additional parking spaces, such that they are ready for a charge point unit to be quickly and
conveniently installed. This is known as a passive charging provision. A number of the

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 101 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 60 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

charge point suppliers also offer back plates for the chargers to be slotted onto, and include
a cap to protect the supply.

7.4.8. The benefit of this approach is that enables the Barbican Estate to gradually expand the
provision of passive bays at relatively low cost, whilst providing a readily scalable platform
for adding additional charge points that can function intelligently to load balance the
available electrical supply. The provision of EV ready bays then provides a clear and legible
process for residents, who can the request a charge point, which the Barbican can procure
from the approved supplier, and can then be quickly installed onto the existing cabling. This
may also offer scope for a choice between different models (i.e. tethered or a socket).

7.4.9. If we take the average cost of around £2,000 per charge point installation, this could for
example be paid down by the resident as a surcharge on the parking permit, at around
£141.67 per quarter if the resident entered into a 3-year contract, and the Barbican covered
the cost of the initial passive cabling (approximately £300 per bay).

7.4.10. This approach is the common model for housing associations in Norway, where their
experience has been that users typically prefer to purchase their own charge point.

Positives Negatives
= Passive cabling helps foster a legible = High cost to residents, but benefit from
process for residents. enabling works being completed.

= Manageable costs to Barbican Estate
= Barbican Estate incurs some costs

Fully funded options

7.4.11. A number of charge point suppliers offer ‘fully funded’ models, whereby they will cover the
initial capital costs, and the resident via the Barbican would enter into a contract and pay
down the investment over time, either in the form of a surcharge on electricity usage, or
fixed repayment programme model.

7.4.12. Operators would typically require long term licenses to enable residents to pay down the
charge point via a surcharge on electricity usage, to ensure they pay down their investment,
though this model is more with a view to ‘right to park’ car parks, rather than allocated bays
and dedicated charge points. Under this model suppliers typically look for a minimum
electric usage per day on average, which would exceed the current average of Barbican
residents, though this may change over time as more BEVs are purchased.

7.4.13. Alternatively, a fixed fee payment can be agreed to enable the resident to pay down the
cost of the charge point over time, as part of a package that includes electricity, though at
the time of the interviews such a model was yet to be launched.

7.4.14. The Barbican Estate could pick up a modest proportion of the costs of the enabling works
(cabling etc.) to establish passive provision, lessening the overall cost to resident.

7.4.15. Some suppliers will only offer fully funded charge points if they can be accessible as part of
a public charging network, which would not be in line with clear preferences of residents for
their own dedicated bays.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 102 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 61 of 70



\\\I)

Positives Negatives
= Minimises cost burden on the Barbican ~ * Limitations to some models in either
Estate requiring minimum electricity
R consumption which exceed current
* Removes high initial cost burden on levels, or public access. Other models
[_esndents, allows them to pay down over are new to the market.
ime.

= Long terms licences required over which

) Rapld dellvery of Charge points on operators can recoup investment.

request
= High overall; cost to residents

Supplier Offers/ Bulk Discounting

7.4.16.

7.4.17.

7.4.18.

In some cases, suppliers/ operators can offer an initial tranche of charge points at their own
cost, as part of wider commercial agreement with the City, which may include exclusivity,
wider deployment in other City Car Parks and Rapid Chargers. The City of London is a
prestigious territory for a charge point supplier to be present in, and this is to the benefit of
the City when it comes to attracting investment.

Suppliers may also offer a discount to the City on additional charge point purchases as part
of such an arrangement.

This is reflective of the increasingly competitive EV charging infrastructure market, with
significant investments and a series of new entrants to the UK market each wanting to grow
or establish market share. The main considerations when assessing such details should be
the strategic fit with the City’s wider plans with regards EV charging. Larger scale and
longer terms agreements require due diligence to be undertaken on the long term financial
viability of the potential partner. If the deal entails an exclusivity agreement of future EV
charging purchases it will be important to ensure prices for charge points in future year fall
in line with the market prices. As it is expected charge point costs will fall significantly in
view of the increasing economies of scale and market competitiveness.

Positives Negatives

= Free charge points initially, and a _ _ _
minimised cost burden on the Barbican ~ * High cost to residents, but benefit from
Estate for additional units. enabling works being completed.

= Discounts passed onto residents.

= Rapid delivery of charge points on = Barbican Estate incurs some costs
request

WSP

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

January 2019 Page 103 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 62 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1.1. Based on the preceding analysis of current and forecast future demand for EVCPs, a
review of technologies, costs and stakeholder feedback, a series of recommendations have
been developed. The objective being to strike a balance between being self-sustaining and
cost neutral to the Barbican Estate Office, whilst also providing a fair and attractive service
to residents.

User Requirements / trends

8.1.2. A charge point specification has been developed based on the feedback and of residents
and the hosts throughout the pilot study. feedback and experiences and usage. This can be
used to inform future procurement and requests for quotations, to ensure the necessary
functionalities are included within the charge points supplied.

Table 8-1 - Charge point specification

Charge Point Specification

7kW power output - 32 Amps, single or three phase AC

Smart chargers with Wi-Fi/ LAN/ CAT-5E/PLC communications, back-up contingency protocols
Dynamic load balancing capability

Preferably the option of models with Sockets or Tethered cables

Secured unit accessible by RFID/ Fob/ App/ NFC.

Passive cabling and back plate pre-installed in phases

Full management control platform and real-time usage data

Warranties for at least 3 years, preferably 5 years.

Comprehensive maintenance package including remote checking and reset functionality

Customer support available 24/7

8.1.3. Key determinants in specifying the charge point have included:

= Dwell time - vehicles are parked for extended periods

= Low mileage due to central London location.

= High proportion of PHEVSs, and whilst it is anticipated in the medium term this profile will shift to
EVs, mileage is expected to remain low.

= Alternative charging options — a number of resident’s charge at other properties homes with
charge points.

= Prioritising user convenience and preferences for dedicated charge points.

8.1.4. There was a clear preference for dedicated charge points in the feedback from residents
and pilot scheme participants. Convenience is key, and this message came across

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 104 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 63 of 70



8.1.5.

8.1.6.

8.1.7.

8.1.8.

8.1.9.

8.1.10.

8.1.11.

\\\I)

consistently. It is recommended therefore to ensure charge points are made available within
each car park, as a number of EV owners were unwilling to even use the charge points
when made available for free and with no charge for the electricity during the pilot, so will
undoubtedly stifle EV uptake otherwise. In some cases, even the assigned car park is a
relatively long distance away from the resident’s flat, and using alternative car parks was
often found to be very inconvenient.

The charge point must also be accessible by quickly and conveniently via RFID / Fob or
Apps. NFC protocols are likely to prove a popular mechanism as they do not necessitate
the user carrying another card, but rather enable a smart phone or credit card to double as
the key card.

Additionally, where possible the Barbicans approach should be to endeavour to provide
residents with choices around personal preferences for things like whether a charge point
comes with a tethered cable or only a socket.

A moderate charge rate (7Kw) was found to be widely acceptable. In the short to medium
term 3.5Kw chargers would be adequate, but it would be advisable to provide an element of
future proofing by ensuring a capability to charge at 7Kw, recognising the trend towards
larger batteries amongst new vehicles coming to market.

It is key to take a longer-term approach, and accounting for both current and future demand
when planning the deployment strategy. This entails specifying chargers capable of making
intelligent and optimal use of the available electricity supply to the Barbican Estate. The
largest costs associated with charge point deployments are inevitably triggered by
requirements to upgrade grid connections. Examples of which may include redistribution of
loads between different feeders or substations, or reinforcement of individual feeders. This
may entail mitigation costs of up to £1k to 50k. Areas of concentrated demand where the
additional load increase from EVs triggers more significant medium to high level
enhancement works, such as upgrades to secondary or, in extreme cases, primary
substations, could cost anywhere from £50k to £1m, and take between 4 months to over 18
months to deliver.

As such it is advisable to forward plan an installation so as to manage with the available
power supply as far as possible. This will often entail higher costs in the short term, and
investing in more robust smart charging units over cheaper dumb sockets, but in the
medium to longer term is the only way to effectively scale a network. The consequences of
more piecemeal or unplanned installations is that the units unable to perform smart
functions such as load balancing will have to be swapped out.

Electrical Supply

The car parks with charge points already installed (5 of 10) currently have supplies with
68kVA of available electrical capacity agreed with UKPN, or 3 Phase 98A per phase, which
should prove adequate to cater for the forecast demand up to 2030. It will be necessary to
install an equivalent sub-main cable for each of the remaining car parks (5), to provide the
same platform from which charge points can be installed in a phased manner in line with
resident requests.

The cost for a new installation is approximately £9,490 which includes the sub-main cable
to the car park, the main UKPN distribution board and infrastructure (in the switch room),

WSP

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

January 2019 Page 105 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 64 of 70 City of London Corporation



\\\I)

8.1.12.

8.1.13.

8.1.14.

8.1.15.

8.1.16.

8.1.17.

8.1.18.

installation of a sub-distribution board, UKPN and metering costs, the temporary shutdown
of supply and the MPAN registration.

Delivery Mechanisms.

It is not viable for the Barbican Estate to fund the full installation of charge points for
residents. The cost of doing so are significant and as the volume of demand ad-hoc funding
awards will not be sufficient, and are unlikely to be sustained in any case as the market
matures. The Barbican’s role instead, in our view, should be to ensure it provides a
supportive platform and the mechanisms required to enable residents to request and fund
the installation of a charge point.

A proactive approach the Barbican can take at relatively modest cost would be to pre-install
the cabling and associated hardware to convert a number of bays to passive bays, ready to
be activated with the simple addition of pre-determined charge point model/ range of
models.

The benefit of this approach is that enables the Barbican Estate to gradually expand the
provision of passive bays at relatively low cost (£2.5-£5k per annum to cater for total
forecast demand in mid-range uptake scenario), whilst providing a readily scalable platform
for adding additional charge points that can function intelligently to load balance the
available electrical supply.

The provision of EV ready bays then provides a clear and legible process for residents, who
can the request a charge point, which the Barbican can procure from the approved supplier,
and can then be quickly installed onto the existing cabling. This may also offer scope for a
choice between different models (i.e. tethered or a socket).

A further benefit of this incremental approach is that is avoids overcommitting given the
uncertainties around demand, particularly given the trend to declining vehicle ownership
and car park usage at the Barbican.

A positive to the available spare capacity may be there is reasonable scope to identify
blocks of available parking bays to be converted to passive charging bays, without needing
to disrupt existing bay allocations, and ideally in reasonable proximity (up to 120m) of a
fuse box and distribution board to reduce installation costs. There may be also be
opportunities to investigate re-sizing the smaller parking bays to overcome some of the
issues encountered by residents. A premium could be levied for larger bays if required. An
additional factor in proceeding with caution in terms of the scale of the installations is that
EVCP costs are expected to fall significantly.

The City of London is a prestigious territory for a charge point supplier to be present in, and
this is to the benefit of the City when it comes to attracting investment. The Barbican Estate
should engage with the market, and explore the potential for securing some of the
potentially very appealing offers from the private sector to deliver a large number of free
high good quality chargers, and discounts on further purchases, where the savings could be
passed onto residents. These models require strategic level decisions to be taken a City-
wide level. A note of caution, would be that there is a balance to be struck in making the
most of offers, whilst not being a hostage to them. Being aware of your objectives and
desired outcomes at the outset is essential in this arrangement. For example, does the City
wish to support rapid and ultra-rapid chargers as part of the deal. These could serve to

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 106 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 65 of 70



8.1.19.

8.1.20.

8.1.21.

8.1.22.

8.1.23.

8.1.24.

8.1.25.

8.1.26.

\\\I)

invite in additional transport, but conversely could accelerate a take up of low emission taxis
and delivery vehicles. So, there is a wider strategic element to consider.

It should also explore other options for leveraging private sector investment, including fully
funded models. In their current form these may prove to not be ideally configured for
Barbican, due to the low electricity usage — a key mechanism by which the investors recoup
their investment. A fixed fee payment can also be, removing the high initial cost burden on
the Barbican, and allowing them to pay down over time.

Pricing

Home charging was found to be a prerequisite amongst residents in promoting EV uptake —
and the industry consensus is that home charging must be reasonably priced, given
savings in fuel costs are one of the major selling points of EV. As such electricity should set

only a few pence beyond the domestic rates for electricity (14 pence per kW). We would
recommend not exceeding 20-25 pence per kKW.

Operating costs such as maintenance, data connection/ collection fees and back office
costs would typically best be incorporated as a small surcharge on the per kW charges. 4-5
pence is usually adequate, but depends on usage, and within the recommend charges
outlined above.

The cost to the residents in ultimately paying for the majority of the charge point is
significant, though can be lessened through the Barbican taking a co-ordinated and
proactive approach in competing the passive charging provision, and potentially securing
discounts or access to fully funded models. This is a standard approach in mature EV
markets like Norway. Additionally, the cost of the charge points will come down over time,
and in our view the key role of the Barbican is to ensure the enabling works are provided
and readied for the charge points to be added in line with demand.

Management Platforms

The Barbican should ensure the preferred suppliers hardware and software facilitates full
management controls and access to data. It should offer the host access to all EVCPs via a
portal, and the ability to see real-time charge point usage, and offer controls to restrict
access, i.e. to residents only, or approved visitors, or to manage price setting.

To maximise convenience to users if possible a grace period should be enabled, to allow
residents who are unable to log in due to a communications issues, forgetting a card etc, to
plug-in and charge for a time limited period.

Additionally, having established a route by which residents can apply for a charge point, the
City should establish a clear and transparent process the can follow to register their
interest. We would suggest this takes the form of a page on the Councils website, as well
as in the existing car park application forms.

It will be important that the page is clear in listing what models are available, the costs,
contractual terms, supply and activation timescales. It could also serve to provide user
instructions and links to helpful tutorials, help lines etc.

WSP

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study

January 2019 Page 107 Project No.: 70040803-
Page 66 of 70 City of London Corporation



8.2

\\\I)

FORECAST EVS AND CHARGE POINT REQUIREMENTS

8.2.1. Table 8.2 on the following page draws together and summarise the existing charge point
provision across the Barbican car parks.

8.2.2. Below this it includes the mid-range forecast growth scenarios for EV uptake amongst
Barbican residents in each car park in the short (2020), medium (2025) and longer term
(2030).

8.2.3. These are then translated into the number of additional charge points required in the short,
medium and longer term.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 108 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 67 of 70



60T abed

Table 8-2 — Forecast EVs and Charge Point Requirements

\\\I)

0] put [} (O]
3 3 & % o S > >
Barbican ? S S — 3 3 = = 2 o 2 &
Residents Car z i g 2 T T = 2 S 02 S 0 S Total
Parks 2 an o > £ 0 It 3 T = S0 o oS00
T > D@ c o = «“ a5} 5 2 o = 3> Z = > =
c o et S = o [ o T O - Zz o9 Zzo¢
< I @ @ Or a n aI == =Id =T
0 9 6 3 0 0 0 4 8 0 30
Existing
2 18 Connected
Charge Points 3Kw 3;1‘4“ & 22Kw 7Kw & 22Kw | 7Kw chargers
w
- Dumb Dumb - - - Connected | Connected -
Connected 12 Dumb
chargers chargers chargers chargers
chargers chargers
Forecast EVs (mid-range scenario)
2020 3 2 3 2 4 4 3 3 3 2 29
2025 8 5 7 5 11 12 7 8 8 7 78
2030 23 16 22 14 31 35 21 22 24 19 228
Forecast Additional EV Charge Points Required (mid-range scenario)
2020 3 0 0 0 4 4 3 0 0 2 16
2025 8 0 1 2 11 12 7 4 0 7 51
2030 23 7 16 11 31 35 21 18 16 19 198
WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Project No.: 70040803-

Page 68 of 70

City of London Corporation



\\\I)

Short term

8.2.4.

8.2.5.

8.2.6.

8.2.7.

8.2.8.

8.2.9.

8.2.10.

8.2.11.

In the short term we would advise that existing bays are reviewed and charges for the
electricity are introduce on a per kW basis, of 20-25 pence, subject to operating costs
incurred.

Review the scope for establishing blocks to be converted incrementally over time to passive
charging bays in each car park, based in the forecast additional charge point requirement
for each charge point identified in Table 9.2. As can be seen these are relatively modest
numbers (16), and at an average cost of £300 per bay to complete the passive cabling
should amount to approximately £5.3k, or £2.65k in 2019 and a further £2.65k in 2020.

This process should include a review of leaseholder bays, and the location of fuse boxes/
distribution boards, and focus on bays within 120m of these.

A key action in the short term will be to investigate the different funding options outlined,
and ultimately identify and procure a long-term supplier from which additional charge points
could be purchased on the request of residents. The specification and requirements derived
through this study can form the basis of the request for quotation (RfQ).

Following which, passive charging provision should be introduced at the car parks not
currently served by the existing EVCPs, as this is likely to stifle demand. These include:
Andrewes House, Defoe House, Speed House, Lauderdale House and Willoughby (Level
03). This will entail a relatively high one-off cost to install a sub-main cable into each car
park (£9,490 average cost) to provide the same platform from which charge points can be
installed in a phased manner in line with resident requests. In order to confirm the
availability of new connections an application must be submitted to UKPN before any dialog
can take place. Given the high cost of these initial connections, the Barbican may wish to
stagger their installation, prioritising those with the greatest forecast demand or requests
from residents. Subject to the outcome of the market engagements, and whether any
discounts or free installations can be secured, it may be necessary to levy a charge on the
charge points already installed. This could be administered in a similar manner as proposed
for residents requesting new charge points (i.e. £141.67 per quarter), to be reinvested in
completing the remaining connections.

At some point it will be necessary to swap out the existing non-communicating charge point
units (14), and replace these with smart chargers, supported by a fixed data connection,
with the capability to support load management functions at a later date. This is likely to
cost around £10k, subject to whether they could be exchanged. A key element of the
market engagement would relate to how the existing supplier, and other prospective
suppliers, would approach upgrading this equipment, with some having suggested they
would swap them out at their own cost.

It may also be necessary to swap out the connected dual 22kW charger in Thomas More
car park, to enable the available electrical supply to be distributed more widely, subject to
whether these could be managed with phase balancing and load balancing.

To understand the scope for scaling up the charge points in line with the longer-term
requirements for charge points, distribution boards should be assessed and what we can
work with.

Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study WSP
Project No.: 70040803 Page 110 January 2019
City of London Corporation Page 69 of 70



\\\I)

8.2.12. Beyond these actions, there is not an immediate requirement for further investment, as for
the most part there should be adequate capacity till 2020. The exception being if the offers
of fully funded models can be agreed, but if so this would still not require significant
investment by the Barbican as the costs would be picked up by the private sector.

= Forecast EVs in the Barbican (2020) - 29
= Additional EVCPs required (2020) — 16

Medium term

8.2.13. In the medium-term dynamic load balancing may begin to become a requirement, though in
the mid-range forecasts the highest number of charge points in a single car park is 12 in
Speed House.

8.2.14. At an average cost of £300 per bay to complete the passive cabling should amount to
approximately £2.5k per annum to 2025.

= Forecast EVs in the Barbican (2025) 78
Additional EVCPs required (2025) - 51

8.2.15. In the high uptake forecast, this increases to:

= Forecast EVs in the Barbican (2025) 112
Additional EVCPs required (2025) - 83

Long term

8.2.16. Inthe longer term, when the number of EVs is likely to begin posing greater challenges in
terms of the available electrical supply, further developments in battery storage, V2G and
energy arbitrage, amongst other innovations have the potential to completely revolutionise
the energy market. For the time being, the Barbican just needs to ensure that it adopts
charge point technologies that can evolve with these developments. The revenue potential
of systems like V2G and energy arbitrage would have the potential to offset (and more) the
growing cost of passive charging provision at this stage. For example, passive provision for
200 bays would cost £59.9k, or £4.9k per year until 2030.

8.2.17. A further longer-term consideration is the potential to by this time open up areas of the car
parks, which by this point may be well under capacity, to car clubs, future mobility models
and autonomous vehicles cycle freight, taxis, low emission freight, which would offer further
potential revenue streams.

Forecast EVs in the Barbican (2030)- 228
= Additional EVCPs required (2030) — 198

8.2.18. In the high uptake forecast, this increases to:

= Forecast EVs in the Barbican (2030) - 351
= Additional EVCPs required (2030) - 321

WSP Barbican estate residents electric vehicle charging infrastructure study
January 2019 Page 111 Project No.: 70040803
Page 70 of 70 City of London Corporation






Agenda Iltem 6

Committee(s) Dated:

Residents Consultation Committee 03/12/2018

Barbican Residential Committee 10/12/2018

Subiject: Public

Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores

Report of: For Information and

Director of Community and Children's Services consultation with the
Residents

Report authors: Consultation

Michael Bennett Committee

Head of Barbican Estates
For decision by the
Barbican Residential
Committee

Summary

The context for the update on the Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores on the
Barbican Estate includes the following:

e Expenditure on car parking on the Barbican Estate has for some years
significantly exceeded income;

e The Barbican car parks are underused with a large number of vacant car
parking spaces that are being put to much better use (including the current
provision of the new storage units for residents);

e Following ongoing extensive marketing there is currently a small number of
Barbican residents who are waiting for additional storage as and when
residents transfer to the new stores;

e The current 1-year Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores (including a
lettings policy for new stores in the car parks) was approved by the Barbican
Residential Committee (BRC) in June 2018 and is due for review next summer;

e The Car Park Charging Working Party updates on its further work on Car
Parking and the Estate Concierge service

e The City Corporation has implemented an ‘Efficiency Plan’, which seeks to
maximise income from its property assets;

e The City Corporation is carrying out a general review of all its car parks within
the City.

At its meeting on 21 June 2018, the BRC received a report on the Charging Policy for
Car Parking on the Barbican Estate. The Committee agreed that the Member/Officer
Working Party consider matters related to Car Parking and the Estate Concierge
service. The Working Party has met and this report comprises an update on its
considerations and its recommendations.

Page 113



Recommendations

The Barbican Residential Committee is asked to endorse the work and
recommendations of the Member/Officer Working Group and specifically, to:

1.

Approve one or more of the following options for disabled users of the car parks:

a. a 25% reduction or

b. the old rate plus a Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase

c. and a concession of 2 hours free parking for disabled residents (blue or red
badge holders) visiting ward motes (in Cripplegate and Aldersgate), and by
prior arrangement with the Estate Office.

Approve that for other Barbican charges for licences (motorcycle and bicycles) and
temporary car parking a CPI increase take affect from September 2019 for 2 years.

Approve that the long-term car bay agreements are updated so that the service
charge is calculated as the estimated cost of services divided by the number of
available car parking spaces less those that are occupied by resident stores or
remains the same as specified in paragraph 17.

The Residents Consultation Committee is asked to comment on the report and
specifically to consider the options as listed in paragraphs 21-29.

Main Report

Background

4.

6.

Expenditure on car parking on the Barbican Estate has for some years significantly
exceeded income. In 2016, the BRC instructed officers to review the underused
Barbican car parking spaces and subsequently agreed that they could and should
be put to other uses including the provision of additional storage space in order to
generate additional income to meet the Service Based Review targets of £154k
and annual efficiency savings from 2017/18 for the Barbican Estate.

Members agreed that a Member/Officer Working Party be established and after a
number of meetings and reports the BRC approved a one-year Car Parking and
Stores Policy at its meeting on 21 June 2018.

At that meeting the Committee asked that the following be progressed:

the Management Plan for the new stores be submitted to Planning for approval
an Equalities Impact Assessment on the new Car Parking Charging Policy

the provision of temporary car parking

the way the Estate Concierge and related services are provided and charged

Other issues that had been brought to the attention of the BRC during the
discussions have also been reviewed by the Working Party:

e Car Parking elasticity of demand
e Public Car Parks Charging Policy

Page 114



e Other Barbican Estate Charges
e Audit of car parks and parcel holding facilities
e Long-term car bay agreement

8. The members of the Working Party are:

Michael Hudson (Chair) — Chairman of the BRC

Sue Pearson — Deputy Chairman of the BRC

Randall Anderson — Member of the BRC

John Tomlinson — Member of the BRC

Paul Murtagh — Assistant Director Barbican & Housing
Michael Bennett — Head of Barbican Estates

Current Position

9. The Member/Officer Working Party convened on 23 October and reviewed the
areas highlighted in paragraphs 6 and 7 which are detailed below.

Stores Management Plan

10.The Barbican Estate Storage Management Plan has been submitted, with is being
progressed by the City Planning Department.

11.The new storage units have been marketed: over 100 agreements have been
signed so far, with deposits taken and 313 units are due to be installed by the end
of the year.

Elasticity of demand

12.So far, there had been the usual surrenders and new licences related to residents
moving in and out, with a low number of comments, none of which had been in
respect of the price increase. There would be a further update at the March BRC
meeting, with no CPI increases recommended at present.

Public Car Parks Charging Policy

13.This would be the subject of a report (of the Director of the Built Environment) for
decision by Planning and Transportation, Resource Allocation Sub and Markets
Committees in January 2019. The report would be presented to the Working Party
for information only.

Audit of car parks and parcel holding facilities
14.Following an audit of the car parks and demand for parcel storage additional
facilities including the making use of the new stores over the next few months will

facilitate the increased demand for parcel storage at the Car park offices (see
appendix 1).

Page 115



Options
Equalities Analysis for Car Parking

15.An Equalities Analysis was carried out of the new Car Parking Charging Policy
approved by the BRC in June (see appendix 2). The Working Party supported this
document and asked that the BRC consider the following options for disabled rental
users:
e as the Barbican is not a Housing Revenue Estate, a 25% reduction
e or the old rate plus a CPI increase
e a concession of 2 hours free parking for disabled residents (blue or red
badge holders) visiting ward motes (in Cripplegate and Aldersgate), and by
prior arrangement with the Estate office.

Other Barbican Estate Charges

16.A number of other charges for licences (motorcycle and bicycles) and temporary
car parking had not been reviewed as part of the Policy decisions during June 2018
and there is the option of the BRC reviewing these with a CPI increase to take
affect from September 2019 for two years. This would also maintain the policy of
all car parking and stores charges taking affect at the same time, rather than mid-
year, that is September 2019.

Long-term bay agreements

17.Leaseholders requests for long-term car bay agreements have been on hold during
the stores project but there is still interest. The agreement states that the service
charge is calculated as the estimated cost of services (car parking staff, repairs
and maintenance, electricity, water, insurance, equipment, cleaning, supervision
and management) divided by the number of available car parking spaces.

18.The new stores project would reduce the number of available car parking bays and
it is estimated that there would be a relatively large increase in the service charges
for long-term car bay users in 2019/20. The Working Party queried the history of
the differentials between the annual service charge for long-term car bay users and
the rental charges and whether there could be resistance to a large increase in
service charge (history of charges has therefore been shown in appendix 3).

19. Furthermore, income from the car park stores are now attributed to the Car Park
Account. Therefore, the agreement could be amended to state that the service
charge is calculated as the estimated cost of services divided by the number of
available car parking spaces less those that are occupied by resident stores.

20.The City Solicitor has advised that any variation to the 94 resident agreements
would have to by agreement with all current users.

Temporary Car Parking

21.The Working Party noted that all payments were made in advance: very few
residents used the car park on a temporary basis and all were likely to have

Page 116



visitors/contractors in varying quantities. Appendix 4 illustrates the volume of free
and paid temporary car parking as well as a worked example of the income and
costs.

22.The City Solicitor has advised that it would be difficult to bring the car parking duties
incurred in respect of the temporary car parking services within the service charge,
unless there were certain employees specifically employed to deal with this. The
City Solicitor has also advised that to pursue this may not be an exercise of
reasonable discretion.

23.Therefore, the Working Party suggested that possibly one or two hours free parking
could be an option (rather than the current five hours) and that residents be balloted
and/or the Resident Consultation Committee (RCC) be asked as to whether this
should be subject to full consultation.

Estate Concierge Services and allocation to service charge

24.The advice from the City Solicitor is that the standard lease is quite proscriptive in
what employment costs can be put through the service charge account. The Fifth
schedule of the lease (Services) Part IV states the salary emoluments and wages
together with any expenses connected therewith of:

(a) the key porters
(b) the storekeepers
(c) the resident housekeepers
(d) the resident engineers
(e) any other staff which the City shall in its reasonable discretion employ from
time to time

25.Key porters, storekeepers and resident housekeepers are not defined in the
leases. The City Solicitors advice is that there is no reason why time spent on
what can be classed as the duties of key porters, storekeepers and resident
housekeepers should be excluded from the service charge. The Concierge,

parcel and key service duties should be appropriate to (a) above. This would be
subject to leaseholder consultation.

26.The Working Party noted the time recording for the key service was high and
should be audited (see appendix 5). It was also agreed that the car parking and
stores element of security should be separated; that is, security for the car parks
only and not walkways and blocks. It was also suggested that the use of stores for
non-residents would change time recording for Estate Concierges, as the time
spent on security duties would likely increase.

27.The Working Party agreed that it was unfair on car users to take the bulk of
concierge charges, as they provide a service to all residents.

28.The Working Party suggested the option of consulting the House groups and RCC
on the feasibility of a full external report of the Estate Concierge service to include:

e Defining the service and reviewing the breakdown of time recording and their
current definitions

Page 117



e Historical analysis of time recording from April 2016 to September 2018
¢ Interviews of a number of the Estate Concierge staff

29. The estimated costs of this analysis and report would in the region of up to £10k
which could lead to recommendations to a future RCC/BRC. This should also be
subject to 3 yearly reviews and, should the pattern change, it will require a policy
to reflect the changes.

Proposals from the Working Party
30.That the BRC consider the following options:

e that disabled users of the car parks be subject to a 25% reduction in rental
charges or the old rate plus CPI increase, and a concession of 2 hours free
parking for disabled residents (blue or red badge holders) visiting ward motes
(in Cripplegate and Aldersgate), and by prior arrangement with the Estate Office

e other Barbican charges such as licences (motorcycle and bicycles) and
temporary car parking be subject to a CPI increase to take effect from
September 2019 for two years

e that long-term car bay agreements are updated so that the service charge is
calculated as the estimated cost of services divided by the number of available
car parking spaces less those that are occupied by resident stores or remains
the same and specified in paragraph 17.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

31.In terms of the relevant policies incorporated in the City Corporation’s Corporate
Asset Management Strategy, the proposals contained in this report will ensure that:

e Operational assets remain in a good, safe and statutory compliant condition;

e Operational assets are fit for purpose and meet service delivery needs;

¢ Annual revenue expenditure is efficiently managed to ensure value for money
and operational asset running costs are reduced wherever possible;

e Opportunities to create added value and maximise income generation be
pursued.

Conclusions
32.The Member/Officer Working Party, set up at the instruction of the BRC, has
reviewed comments from Members and residents presented at its last meeting on

21 June and their recommendations are laid out in paragraphs 1-3 of this report.

33.A number of other options are listed in paragraphs 21-29 for consideration by the
RCC.

Page 118



Appendices

e Appendix 1 — Audit of car parks and parcel holding facilities

e Appendix 2 — Equalities Analysis

e Appendix 3 - Differentials between the annual service charge for a long-term car
bay agreement and the rental charge

e Appendix 4 — Volume of free and paid temporary car parking as well as a
worked example of the income and costs

e Appendix 5 — Estate Concierge Time Recording

e Appendix 6 - Extract from the Draft RCC Minutes of 3 December 2018 in respect
of this report

Background Papers

Car Park Strategy Stage One 2009

Car Park Strategy Update 2009

Barbican Estate Car Park Efficiency Strategy Working Party 2011

Baggage Stores Charging Policy 2011

Car Park Charging Policy February 2013

Car Park Charging Policy December 2013

Car Park and Baggage Stores Charging Policy January 2014

Revenue and Capital Budgets — Latest Approved Budget 2013/14 and Original Budget
2014/15

Service Based Review Proposals — Department of Community & Children’s Services
2014

Car Park Charging Policy 2015

Car Park Charging Policy March 2016

Service Based Review March 2016

Review of Public Car Park Provision in the City November 2016

Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores November 2016

Charging Policy for Car Parking June 2017

Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores June 2018

Michael Bennett

Head of Barbican Estates

Department of Community and Children's Services

T: 020 70293923 and E: michael.bennett@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 120



Audit of car parks and parcel holding facilities

Appendix 1

The Conclerge Staff and Management Team have reviewed the onsite locations and the following table presents whether the facllities for the resident parcel
holding service are suitable or not.

to utllise one of the
new stores

| Would it be possible | Alternative Options

No

Yes

A temporary transportable store until a full review

Yes

Yes

Car Park Day to Day basis | At Peaks (l.e. | What size store would
Christmas) be required (based on
new store sizes)

Andrewes No No XXL
Breton No No XL

| Bunyan Yes No. L

 Defoe No No XL
Speed Yes No L
Thomas More No No XXL
Willoughby No No L

T2T obed

No
No

Review 2019
Current Store in Car Park

Yes




TEST OF RELEVANCE: EQUALITY ANALYSIS (EA) Appendix 2

CITY
LONDON

The screening process of using the Test of Relevance tempiate aims to asslst in determining whether a full Equality Analy5|s (EA) Is required. The EA template and guidance plus
informatlon on the Equality Act and the Public Sector Equality Duty {PSED) can be found on Coinet at: ;

Introduction
The Public Sector Equality Duty {PSED) Is set out In the Equality Act 2010 (s.149). This
requires public authorlties, in the exercise of thelr functlons, to have ‘due regard’ to the

need to:

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation

Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not, and

e Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and

those who do not
o
o
ﬁcglhat is due regard?
|~ ¢ Itinvolves considering the aims of the duty In a way that is proportionate to the
B issue at hand

Ensuring that real consideration is given to the alms and the impact of policies with
rigour and with an open mind in such a way that it influences the final decision

e Due regard should be given before and during policy formation and when a
decision s taken Including cross cutting ones as the impact can be cumulative.

The general equality duty does not specify how public autherities should analyse the effect
of their business activities on different groups of people. However, case law has established
that equality analysis Is an important way public authorities can demonstrate that they are
meeting the requirements.

Even in cases where It Is considered that there are no implicatlons of proposed policy and
decision making on the PSED it is good practice to record the reasons why and to include
these In reports to committees where decislons are being taken.

It is also good practice to consider the duty In relation to current policies, services and
procedures, even If there Is no plan to change them.

The characteristics protected by the Equality Act 2010 are:

Age

Disabllity

Gender reassignment
Marrlage and civil partnership.
Pregnancy and maternity

Race

Rellgion or belief

Sex {gender)

Sexual orientation

How to demonstrate compliance
Case law has established the following principles apply to the PSED:

Knowledge - the need to be aware of the requirements of the Equality Duty with
a conscious approach and state of mind.

Sufficlent Informatlon — must be made available to the declsion maker
Timeliness — the Duty must be complied with before and at the time that a
particular policy is under consideration or declsion Is taken not after it has been
taken.

Real consideration — consideration must form an integral part of the declision-
making process. It is not a matter of box-ticking; It must be exercised in substance,
with rigour and with an open mind In such a way that it influences the final
decision.

Sufficlent Information - the decision maker must conslder what information he or
she has and what further Information may be needed In order to give proper
consideration to the Equality Duty

No delegation - public bodies are responsible for ensuring that any third partles
which exercise functions on thelr behalf are capable of complying with the
Equality Duty, are required to comply with It, and that they do so In practice. ItIs a
duty that cannot be delegated.

Review — the duty Is continuing applying when a policy Is developed and decided
upon, but alsc when it Is implemented and reviewed.



Test of Relevance screening
The Test of Relevance screening Is a short exercise that involves looking at the overall
nﬁ:posal and deciding if It is relevant to the PSED.

&te: If the propaosal is of a significant nature and It Is apparent from the outset that a full
EQuality analysis will be required, then It Is not necessary to complete the Test of
Hl\ejlevanne screening template and the full equallty analysis and be completed.

w

The questions In the Test of Relevance Screening Template to help decide If the proposal is
equallty relevant and whether a detalled equality analysis Is required. The key question Is
whether the proposal s likely to be relevant to any of the protected characteristics.

What to do
In general, the following questions all feed Into whether an equality analysis Is required:
e How many people Is the proposal likely to affect?
* How significant is its impact?
e Does it relate tc an area where there are known inequalities?

At this Initial screening stage, the point Is to try to assess obvious negative or positive impact.

If a negative/adverse Impact has been Identified (actual or potentlal) during completion of
the screening tool, a full equality analysis must be undertaken.

If no negative / adverse impacts arising from the proposal it Is not necessary to undertake a
full equallty analysls.

However there Is no requirement to:

Produce equality analysis or an equality impact assessment

Indiscriminately collect diversity date where equalities issues are not significant

Publish lengthy documents to show compliance

Treat everyone the same. Rather, it requires public bodies to think about people’s

different needs and how these can be met

e Make services homogeneous or to try to remove or ignore differences between
people.

The key points about demonstrating compliance with the duty are to:
o Collate sufficient evidence to determine whether changes being considered will
have a potential impact on dffferent groups
e  Ensure declsion makers are aware of the analysis that has been undertaken and
what conclusions have been reached on the possible implications
e Keep adequate records of the full decision making process

Quite often, the answer may not be so obvious and service-user or provider information
will need to be considered to make a preliminary Judgment. For example, in considering
licensing arrangements, the location of the premises in question and the demographics of
the area could affect whether section 149 considerations come into play.

There is no one size fits all approach but the screening process is designed to help fully
consider the circumstances.

On completlon of the Test of Relevance screening, officers should:

®  Ensure they have fully completed and the Director has signed off the Test of
Relevance Screening Template.

e Store the screening template safely so that it can be retrieved If for example,
Members request to see it, or there is a freedom of information request or there is
a legal challenge.

e [f the outcome of the Test of Relevance Screening identifles no or minimal impact
refer to it In the Implications sectlon of the report and include reference to it In
Background Papers when reporting to Committee or other decision making
process.



1. Proposal / Project Title: Car Park Charging Policy

2. Brief summary (Include main aims, proposed outcomes, recommendations / decislons sought):
Achleve a falr return on assets for the car parking spaces within the Barbican Estate.
Review and implement a charging policy for car parking.

Obtalned advice from two separate independent consultations on opinions of value for
car parking — use as basis for decislon with committee.

3. Considering the equality aims {eliminate unlawful discrimination; advance equality of opportunity; foster good relations), indicate for each protected group whether
there may be a positive Impact, negative (adverse) Impact or no impact arising from the proposal:

Protected Characteristic (Equality  Positive Impact Negative No Briefly explain your answer. Consider evidence, data and any consultation.
Group) X Impact Impact
Age O | X Not possible to distinguish if relevant and whether someone of a
different age group be able to meet possible increases or not.
Disability O X O Possible negative impact, depending on disability and related
g-? restrictions. Should consider fostering a good relationship.
L% Gender Reassignment O O X Not Relevant, as does not discriminate and would neither cause a
- Positive or Negative effect.
N Marriage and Civil Partnership O O X Not Relevant, as does not discriminate and would neither cause a
B Positive or Negative effect.
Pregnancy and Maternity O O X Not Relevant, as does not discriminate and would neither cause a
Positive or Negatlve effect.
Race ] O X Not Relevant, as does not discriminate and would neither cause a
Positive or Negative effect.
Religion or Belief O O X Not Relevant, as does not discriminate and would neither cause a
Positive or Negative effect.
Sex (i.e gender) O O 24| Not Relevant, as does not discriminate and would neither cause a
Positive or Negative effect.
Sexual Orientation O O X Not Relevant, as does not discriminate and would neither cause a

There are no negative/adverse
impact(s)

Please briefly explain and provide
evidence to support this decision:

<
>

Positive or Negative effect.



5. Are there positive Impacts of the
proposal on any equality groups? N/A
Please briefly explain how these
are in line with the equality aims:

6. As a result of this screening, Is a Yes No
full EA necessary? (Please check

appropriate box using [1)

Briefly explain your answer:
Disability awareness is the only factor that could possibly be impacted by the increases.

Recommend reviewing Disability Allowances as part of the Car Park Charging Working Party, which
reviews policy and is attended by Senior CoL Officers and elected Members.
e Current number of disabled resident users - 11
¢ Availabllity of marked disabled bays - 0
e Comments received since commencing the new charging policy from 25 June 2018.
o 14 Surrendered in total, none relating to disability or to cost.
o 4 Moved away from the Estate, 2 no longer need a car and the others did not comment
(as per appendix 2 (1))

Options for Disability Allowances;
1. Providing a pre-set number of disabled bays in designated areas s not practically possible, due
to the scattering of the residential staircase entrances

U 2. Making use of two car parking bays for each disabled user for ease of access etc
8 O X 3. CPlincreases as previous basis for charging only to those that have a disabllity (subject to
® annual review).
- 4. City of London Public Car Parks Pollcy
8 o The Blue Badge Scheme does not apply in the City but they do operate its own Red
Badge scheme for people with disabilities who are City residents or permanent City
workers.
o Red Badge holders can park on a single yellow line for a period of 30 minutes, at
payment parking bays and disabled bays without paying.
5. Housing Car Parks (other than BE) Policy
o Have a small number of Designated Bays
o Offer Discounted Rate of 50% (Acknowledge Biue and Red Badge Holders)
o Have a report to Committee 24 September with the following three options
= Maintain the 50% discount
* Increase to a 75% discount
* Provide Disabled Users a Bay for free
7. Name of Lead Officer: Barry Ashton Job title: Car Park & Security Manager Date of completion: 24 August 2018
Signed off by Department

Director:

Name: Date:



Appendix 3

Differentials between the annual service charge for a long-term car bay agreement and the rental charge

Date Rental Service
Charge Charge
2009/2010 £1,038 £855
2010/2011 £1,038 £803
2011/2012 £1,070 £818
2012/2013 £1,126 £832
2013/2014 £1,155 £940
2014/2015 £1,183 £864
2015/2016 £1,210 £867
T 2016/2017 £1,225 £876
& 2017/2018 £1.258 £920
@ 2018/2019 £1,340 £062
B 2019/2020 £1,420* £1130™
(@)]

* To be reviewed by Car Park Charging Working Party and Barbican Residential Committee - Spring 2019
**TBC



/2T abed

Barblcan Estate Temporary Car Parking

Appendix 4

History of Barbican Estate Temporary Car Parking. Displaying the Daily charges, the number visitors who parked without charge and aiso

those who stayed longer than 5 hours and the

total income this generated - from 2004 to September 2018

| 2008 2009 2010 ! 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2018 2017 2018* |
| Non-Ticketed Visitora 7,978 12,145 b e | 6,507 - b b ‘ - 5,044 3._871" .
Ticketed Visitors [ 8,502 | 7.527 8,156 ‘ 7,384 | 7,805 [ 7,765 7,380 5,617 . 4,278 4,320 4,401*

| £68,021 | £62,101 | £70,494 | £64,837 . £71,806 £73,588 £71,468 | £656,653 | £42,798 £44,375 £45,198"

*Part year, up to 30 September 2018

**Information unavailable

Worked Example — Cost of Temporary Car Parking Service based on sample month of July 2018

[ ]
¢ Based on 2018/19 budgets Conclerge Staff costs estimated to be £1,510k (£126k per month)
¢ Based on the above Conclerge staff costs estimated to be £10.1k
¢ Costs for officer time £506
o Contractor charges for transactions £101
¢ [ncome per month based on estimates for 2018 £5k
¢ Cost of service to the car park account £5.7k
Cost item ' Cost (£k) ,
Conclerge Staff Costs 10.1
Officer Time 0.5 ]
Contractor 0.1
| Sub-Total 10.7
Income | 1K
| Cost to Car Park Account | |87

8% of Conclerge time spent on Temporary Car Parking (see Appendix 5)



Estate Conclerge Time Recording - Percentage APRIL 2016 to SEPTEMBER 2018 Appendix 5
Car Parking l. |
Temporary| General Security | Conclerge | Parcels Keys Car Parking Service

April 2018 22 22 29 21 8 Time spent with elther Temporary {Inc. visitors and
May 2016 23 17 31 22 7 contractors) or car parking In General {Inc.
June 2016 21 21 22 27 9 Permanent users)
July 2016 20 28 19 25 8
|August 2016 18 22 24 25 11 Security Service
Sentember 2016 2 19 28 22 12 Not only specific Incldents, but also ime spent
October 2016 27 16 22 25 10 monitoring the CCTV and general security of the
November 2016 18 23 29 28 12 estate as a whole,
|December 2016 19 21 22 28 10
January 2017 21 20 24 23 12 Conclerge Service
February 2017 20 28 20 24 8 Dealing with anything relating to residents, thelr
March 2017 15 26 30 12 17 visitors, flats or estate wide Issues
Aprl 2017 20 22 25 23 10
May 2017 22 17 26 24 11 Parcel
June 2017 21 19 26 23 11 The recelving, safe guarding, forwarding and
July 2017 20 18 27 24 11 administration of the residents’ parcels and post.

—U|August 2017 18 27 24 22 9

Q) |Seplember 2017 18 27 25 22 8 Key Sarvice

Lc?) October 2017 20 23 25 22 - The recelving, safe guarding, forwarding and
November 2017 19 22 24 24 11 administration of the residents’ keys

I—|December 2017 19 23 22 26 10 '
January 2018 19 24 24 23 10
February 2018 198 26 23 22 10
March 2018 23 24 21 19 14
April 2018 18 24 26 23 9
May 2018 20 27 24 22 8
June 2018 22 29 22 18 9
July 2018 8 12 28 22 13 19
August 2018 ) 11 28 24 10 18
September 2018 10 12 16 26 26 10
Average Total 19 23 24 23 11
*Car Park Dutles % Residentlal Block Dutles %
42 58

*Includes car park and estate wide patrols

New Stores In the Car Parks and Potential Non-BE Resldents may have an effect on the
Conclerge Staff's Time Recording.



APPENDIX 6

Extract from the DRAFT Minutes of the RCC Meeting held on 34 December 2018

CHARGING POLICY FOR CAR PARKING AND STORES

Members received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services in respect of the
Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores and were asked to comment on the report and specifically
the options listed in paragraphs 21 —29. Members noted an error in recommendation 3 to the BRC
which should read ‘ available car parking spaces plus (Not less) those that are occupied ...."

During the discussion on options 21 — 29, the following points were noted:

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

A strong resistance to any reduction in the free period of visitor car parking, as most trades
were likely to work longer than the minimum suggested.

Visitors may be considerably longer than 1 or 2 hours — an amenity greatly valued by the
residents.

Parking by visitors and trades should not be subject to an additional charge and any
changes/additional charges should be subject to full consultation.

The comparison to other London car parks was unfair.

Officers advised that they could issue double bays to disabled users without Committee
approval. With any costs accruing to the Landlord.

Will there be extra pressure on parking in Lauderdale Place rather, than paying for Thomas
More Car Park.

Officers advised that income from Temporary Car Parking would go into the car parking
account, to the benefit of external decorations and other similar work. Payments for
Temporary Car Parking are in advance; cashless and monitored by the Concierges.

Some Members stated that it was unfair on car users to take the bulk of Concierge charges,
as they service all residents.

In respect of the CPI increase for motorcyles and bicycles; the Working Party felt that the
volume would be relatively low and this would keep the calculation simple. A Member
suggested this should be pro-rata to the recent car park charge increases and officers agreed
to take this back to the Working Party.

If car parking spaces were being removed for the new residents stores, then would the service
charges be spread across less spaces?

The potential for the re-allocation of concierge charges was noted by some Members

Security duties by the Concierge does include other areas of the Estate and will need further
analysis by officers.

Should electric cars be discounted or parking free? Members noted that there would be a full

report to the RCC’s AGM in January and to a Special BRC in February on the Electric Vehicle
Charging policy.

Page 129



APPENDIX 6
Extract from the DRAFT Minutes of the RCC Meeting held on 34 December 2018

14. In respect of an external consultation, there was a view expressed that this might compromise
the good relationship between concierges and residents There were further comments in that
the questions would need to be very precise and it was suggested that paragraph 28 in the
report was a little vague. Members agreed not to recommend the commissioning of an
external report.

RESOLVED, That — the report be noted ahead of its presentation to the BRC on 10t December
2018, and subject to the comments on paragraphs 21-29 of the report as set out above, and
Members’ agreement NOT TO commission an External Report on the Concierge Service.

Page 130



Agenda Item 7

Commiittee: Date:

Barbican Residential Committee (Special Meeting) 31st January 2019

Subject:
Decision taken under Urgency since the last meeting of
the Committee Public

Report of:
Town Clerk

Report author: For Information
Julie Mayer, Town Clerk’s Department

Summary

This report advises Members of action taken, under Urgency, by the Town Clerk in
consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman, in accordance with Standing
Order No. 41 in respect of :

1. Housing Governance
The Policy and Resources Committee was due to consider the outcome of its
consultation with the relevant committees on housing governance at its meeting
on 15" November 2018. The Barbican Residential Committee (BRC) was not
due to meet again until 10" December 2018.

Action taken:

The views of the inquorate meeting of the BRC (held on 17" September 2018)
were approved formally, by the Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chairman
and Deputy Chairman of the Barbican Residential Committee, in order for them
to be presented to the Policy and Resources Committee.

2. Revenue and Capital Budgets — Latest Approved Budget 2018/19 and
Original 2019/20 - Excluding Dwellings Service Charge Income and
Expenditure
This report was presented to the Barbican Residential Committee (BRC) on 10t
December 2018 but the meeting was inquorate. In order to meet the budget
preparation timetable for 2019/20, a decision was required before the end of
December 2018.

Action taken:
The Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chairman and Most Senior Non-
resident Member of the Barbican Residential Committee agreed to:

1. approve the Provisional 2019/20 Revenue Budget for submission to the
Finance Committee;

2. approve the Draft Capital Budget;

Page 131



3. authorise the Chamberlain, in consultation with the Chairmen of the
Barbican Residential Committee/Finance Committee (as appropriate) to
revise these budgets to allow for further implications arising from
departmental reorganisations and other reviews and corporate projects.

3. Service Charge Expenditure and Income Account - Latest Approved
Budget 2018/19 and Original Budget 2019/20
This report was presented to the Barbican Residential Committee (BRC) on 10t
December 2018 but the meeting was inquorate. In order to meet the budget
preparation timetable for 2019/20, a decision was required before the end of
December 2018.

Action taken:
The Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chairman and Most Senior Non-
resident Member of the Barbican Residential Committee agreed to:

1. approve the Provisional 2019/20 Revenue Budget to the Finance
Committee;
2. authorise the Chamberlain, in consultation with the Chairmen of the

Barbican Residential Committee/Finance Committee (as appropriate) to
revise these budgets to allow for further implications arising from
departmental reorganisations and other reviews and corporate projects.

RECOMMENDATION - that, the report be noted.

Page 132



Agenda Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	DRAFT MINUTES SPECIAL BRC 21 JUNE - MH Comments

	4 Minutes of Inquorate Meetings
	draft minutes of inquorate meeting of the BRC on 10 December 2018

	5 Electric Vehicle Charging
	Draft Final Report - Barbican EV Inftrastructure Study v2.00 public

	6 Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores
	charging policy for car park and stores - appendices
	Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores - apx 6

	7 Report of Action Taken
	11 Non-Public Minutes
	12 Minutes of the Car Park Charges Working Party
	CAR PARK CHARGES WORKING PARTY - 23 October - draft minutes

	13 Enforcement action
	14 Report of Action Taken

